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HOLISTIC WATER
SUPPLY MANAGEMENT
PBA Holdings Bhd’s primary subsidiary is
Perbadanan Bekalan Air Pulau Pinang Sdn Bhd (PBAPP),
the licensed water operator that serves
the State of Penang in Malaysia.
With a land area totalling only 1,048 sq. km,
Penang is a state with unlimited potential
but very limited raw water resources.
Our primary business is to sustain continuous
good water supply in Penang. With population growth
and increasing socio-economic developments,
we have to employ holistic water supply management strategies.
As such, we manage both water demand and supply
in a water-stressed state.

KEY CORPORATE
OBJECTIVES
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Uninterrupted water supply
Customer satisfaction
Skilled, competent and motivated workforce
Effective teamwork
Timely and orderly development of water resources
Productive utilisation of financial and other resources
Continuous improvement in all fields
Compliance with all relevant legislations
Effective relations with government agencies
and industrial organisations
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VISION
Meeting all your water supply needs.

MISSION
Perbadanan Bekalan Air Pulau Pinang Sdn Bhd (PBAPP)
will be the leading organisation in water supply.

COMMITMENT
We will be environmentally sensitive, responsible, proactive,
professional, innovative and committed to excellence
and sustainable development.
We will be responsible for the development of water supply
and delivering the best possible service
by being customer-oriented.

CORE VALUES
Accountability
Communication
Teamwork
Integrity
On-Going Learning
New Ways of Improvement
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ISO 9001 : 2015
QUALITY POLICY
In line with its corporate objectives, Perbadanan Bekalan Air Pulau Pinang Sdn Bhd (PBAPP) is fully
committed towards continual improvement as it strives to provide high quality services and products that
will satisfy customers and other interested party.
Accordingly, PBAPP will:
• Regularly review its business operations by carrying out appropriate business risk assessment for setting
measurable Quality Objectives, which comply with good corporate governance and corporate social
responsibilities, emphasis on measurable key perfonnnance and results;
• Comply with all related legislative and legal standards, requirements and laws set by the Malaysian
Government;
• Continually improve and update its Quality Management System which is based on ISO 9001:2015
standard;
• Sustain a corporate culture driven by continual improvement by promoting and encouraging innovation,
teamwork, diligence and creativity, as well as a proactive approach to water supply services;
• Provide the best possible training opportunities to encourage its employees to continuously upgrade
their competency levels, knowledge and skills;
• Uphold its reputation as a model water supply organisation in Malaysia; and
• Ensure that all its personnel are fully committed towards promoting and implementing this quality
management policy in all aspects of its operations and services.
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ISO 14001 : 2015
ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY
In line with its corporate objectives, Perbadanan Bekalan Air Pulau Pinang Sdn Bhd (PBAPP) is fully
committed towards protecting, preserving and conserving the environment while striving to meet all of
Penang's water supply needs.
Accordingly, PBAPP will:
• Regularly review its business operations by carrying out appropriate assessment for setting measurable
Environmental Objectives, which comply with good corporate governance and corporate social
responsibilities, emphasis on measurable key performance and results;
• Strive to conduct its operations in a manner that is in harmony with nature;
• Reduce and / or control wastage of natural water resources and consumption of energy and chemicals;
• Prevent and avoid, as far as possible, any form of pollution by practising proper procedures, implementing
control and monitoring mechanisms, and conducting audit practices and reviews;
• Comply with all related obligatory requirements, environmental legislative and legal standards, requirements
and laws set by the Malaysian Government;
• Ensure that all its personnel are fully committed towards promoting and implementing this environmental
management policy in all aspects of its operations and services; and
• Continually improve, update and expand its Environmental Management System which is based on ISO
14001 : 2015 standard.
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OHSAS 18001 : 2007
OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY &
HEALTH POLICY
In line with its corporate objectives, Perbadanan Bekalan Air Pulau Pinang Sdn Bhd (PBAPP)
is fully committed towards protecting, sustaining and supporting the wellbeing of its workforce.
Accordingly, PBAPP will:
• Continually improve and update its Occupational Safety & Health Management System which
is based on international OHSAS18001:2007 specifications;
• Promote safe and healthy work practices in all its offices, complexes and installations by
identifying the hazards, assessing the risks and implementing control measures;
• Ensure that all its business activities are conducted without compromising the safety and health
of its employees, contractors, suppliers, customers and visitors;
• Prevent and avoid, as far as possible, any workplace mishap by practising proper procedures,
implementing control and monitoring mechanisms, and conducting OHSAS18001:2007 audit
practices and reviews;
• Comply with all legislative and legal requirements and laws set by the Malaysian Government in
relation to occupational safety and health; and
• Ensure that all its personnel are fully committed towards promoting and implementing this
occupational safety & health management policy in all aspects of its operations and services.
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TELUK BAHANG DAM

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY
• Continuously identifying and assessing risks and improving control measures steered by clear
guidelines for preventing, detecting and minimising risks.
• Maintaining a continuous effort towards prioritising and managing business risk based on the
likelihood of occurrence (possibility) and magnitude of impact (severity) to:
> Ensure business continuity;
> Minimise any unexpected damage to reputation, shareholders’ value and confidence; and
> Prevent capital leakage, wastage and loss of earnings.
• There shall be a continuous effort by management to create, promote and sustain a companywide culture of risk awareness and management.
• Daily operating business risks shall be the primary responsibility of the management and
employees of the Company whilst corporate risks and responsibilities shall remain with the
Board.
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SUNGAI DUA
WATER TREATMENT PLANT

WHISTLEBLOWER POLICY
WHISTLEBLOWER POLICY WITHIN PBA
HOLDINGS BHD GROUP OF COMPANIES
“Whistleblowing” involves the disclosure of
information to the relevant authorities by specific
employees (within PBAHB and its subsidiaries),
vendors and the general public, who discover
breaches of the securities laws or any possible
serious violation of internal policies, procedures
or external laws by the perpetrators, culprits or
fraudsters.
The WHISTLEBLOWER POLICY gives protection to
such persons against harassment or victimisation
as a result of such disclosures; the Company
has established internal procedures for handling
employee concerns, to assist companies to
address any shortcomings within its processes,
and to facilitate good governance practices.
Therefore, employees, vendors and the general
public are encouraged to raise genuine concerns
about possible improprieties in matters of financial
reporting, compliance and malpractices at the
earliest opportunity via the appropriate channel.
THE UNDERLYING FUNDAMENTALS AND
RATIONALE OF THE POLICY
i)
ii)
iii)
iv)

All concerns raised will be treated fairly and
properly;
The Company will not tolerate harassment or
victimisation of the employee, vendors and the
general public raising genuine concerns;
Any employee, vendors and the general public
making a disclosure will retain anonymity
unless he agrees otherwise;
The Company will ensure that the employees,
vendors and the general public raising a
concern is aware of who is handling the
matter;

v)

vi)
vii)

viii)

ix)

The Company will ensure no employees,
vendors and the general public will be at risk
of suffering any form of reprisal as a result of
raising a genuine concern;
To enable the Company to achieve the highest
possible standards of corporate governance
ethical standards;
The Company’s workforce represents a
valuable source of information that can be
utilised to identify a potential problem, and
deal with it, before it causes potential damage
to the Company’s reputation or stakeholders;
This Policy provides employees, vendors and
the general public with a secure channel of
reporting impropriety in the knowledge that the
matter will be treated confidentially;
An effective whistleblowing procedure will
provide an open, honest and accountable
culture amongst all employees, vendors and
the general public where they can express
their concerns, without fear of victimisation or
termination of employment.

To report any incidents please contact any of
the following Company Directors who have been
appointed as the Liaison Officers, via telephone,
mail or email. The appointed persons will act
promptly to investigate the issue:
•

YB Prof. Dr. P. Ramasamy a/l Palanisamy
Tel : 04-262 9930
Fax : 04-261 8715
Email : ramasamy@penang.gov.my

•

YBhg. Dato’ Seri Nazir Ariff bin Mushir Ariff
Tel : 04-227 5000
Email : nazir@aspen.com.my

•

By mail :
PBA Holdings Bhd
Level 32, KOMTAR, Jalan Penang,
10000 Georgetown, Pulau Pinang.
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GUILLEMARD RESERVOIR

ISO/IEC 27001:
2013 INFORMATION SECURITY POLICY
INFORMATION SECURITY POLICY
PBAPP recognises the value and importance
of information and Information Assets for the
organisation in providing adequate clean and safe
water to the state of Penang. This Policy is aimed
at protection of Information Assets of Sungai Dua
Water Treatment Plant (WTP) and all its supporting
services which shall serve as point of reference for all
other subsequent policies pertaining to Information
Security and shall also act as a guide towards
planning for emergency and crisis situations.

6.

Availability of information security training to all
staff of Sungai Dua WTP.

7.

Continual improvement to Information Security
Management System (ISMS) security initiatives
with sufficient provision of resources.

Application of this Policy
1.

This Policy applies to all staff at Sungai Dua
WTP and its supporting services and to all
information contained therein, whether owned
by, held in custody for customers, or, used by
Sungai Dua WTP and its supporting services.

2.

The ISMS Management Representative
(ISMS MR) shall be responsible for structuring
information security within Sungai Dua
WTP and its supporting services. He/She
shall maintain the policies and advise on its
implementation.

3.

All Department Heads are directly responsible
for implementing the Policy within their own
departments, and for adherence by their staff.

4.

It is the responsibility of each employee of the
Sungai Dua WTP to adhere to the Policy and
related Standards, Procedures and Guidelines.
Breach of these may result in disciplinary
action.

5.

Staff should report all breaches of information
security, actual or suspected, to their
respective Managers for further action.

It is the Policy of the Management of PBAPP to
ensure:
1.

Information Assets will be protected against
unauthorised access.

2.

Confidentiality, Integrity and Availability of
information and Information Assets will be
assured, maintained and met accordingly.

3.

Classification of Information Assets is applied
and to perform Risk Management to identify
and evaluate security risks so that appropriate
measures can be taken.

4.

5.

Standards, Procedures and Guidelines relating
to the Information Security is in place to
support its implementation as well as to define
the minimum level of information security
compliance for all employees and third parties
who conduct business with the Sungai Dua
WTP.
Regulatory and legislative requirements will be
met.
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CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE

"We are proposing a final single tier dividend of 2.25 sen per share for
the year in review, and are pleased to table, for your kind approval,
this final dividend payment."

PBA Holdings Bhd
(515119-U)

In 2017, the PBA Holdings Bhd (PBAHB) Group’s
core business was water supply in State of Penang.
We strived to supply water continuously, on a 24/7
basis, for the benefit of 1.76 million people and
thousands of businesses.
Our main 100% owned subsidiary, Perbadanan
Bekalan Air Pulau Pinang Sdn Bhd (PBAPP), serves
as the licensed water operator for Penang. As
such, PBAPP’s performance should be evaluated
on 3 fundamental criteria: water supply engineering
efficiency, corporate social responsibility and
financial results.
PBAPP’s primary achievement in 2017 was the
success of our “no water rationing" policy, bearing
in mind that Penang is a “water-stressed state”.
With a growing population and socio-economic
growth, we are becoming more water-stressed with
each passing year in this age of climate change.
Nevertheless, PBAPP continued to supply water
efficiently throughout Penang in 2017, sustaining
100% urban supply coverage and 99.8% rural
supply coverage.
Secondly, PBAPP also fulfilled its key social
obligation of sustaining the lowest domestic
water tariffs for the benefit of more than 75% of
households in Penang.
Our average domestic tariff was RM0.32 per
1,000 litres for the first 35,000 litres per month.
Despite misleading aspersions, the fact remains
that the majority of Penang households pay the
lowest average domestic tariff in the country. In
comparison, the average tariff for this category of
domestic consumption in Malaysia is RM0.69 per
1,000 litres, with states such as Johor charging
RM1.31 per 1,000 litres.
Our third key performance indicator is the
achievement of operational profits for the 17th
consecutive year since PBAHB’s incorporation in
2000. In 2017, our PAT was lower (as compared to
2016) due to 3 key reasons:
1. PBAPP’s discounted all Penang water bills
for one water billing cycle, in support of the
Penang State Government’s “Pulau Pinang
Bangkit” flood relief efforts in November 2017.
This caring gesture cost PBAPP about RM16.6
million in revenue but it was well appreciated.
2. PBAPP incurred RM3.6 million in slope repair
and rectification costs due to landslides that
occurred in various water supply facilities in
Penang during the violent storms of 2017.
Affected facilities include the Air Itam Dam,
Air Itam Water Treatment Plant, Batu Ferringhi
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Aqueduct, Guillemard Water Treatment Plant,
Penang Hill Water Treatment Plant and Waterfall
Water Treatment Plant.
3. In 2017, the National Water Services
Commission (SPAN) did not approve PBAPP’s
application for a review of Penang’s Water
Conservation Surcharge (WCS) from RM0.48
per 1,000 litres to RM1.00 per 1,000 litres.
Kindly note that this proposed WCS review
is only applicable to approximately 23.3%
of domestic consumers who use more than
35,000 litres of water per month. As such,
the WCS is an important water demand
management strategy that is aimed at curbing
domestic water wastage, reducing PBAPP’s
domestic tariff subsidy costs and ensuring
long-term water supply sustainability for all.
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
As in previous financial years, PBAHB Group’s
primary source of revenue were the proceeds from
the sale of potable water in Penang.
During the year in review, PBAHB Group’s revenue
amounted to RM312.4 million. In comparison,
our revenue was RM326.7 million in 2016. This
represents a 4.38% decrease in revenue year-onyear.
The decrease in revenue was due to the RM16.6
million reduction as a result of the discount in
water bills for 604,547 water consumers in 2017,
in support of the Penang State’s Government’s
“Pulau Pinang Bangkit” flood relief efforts.
In 2017, we also managed to marginally reduce
cost of sales and administrative costs. Cost of
sales was recorded at RM225.8 million in 2017, as
compared to RM226.3 million in 2016. Meanwhile,
administrative costs amounted to RM70.8 million in
2017 as compared to RM72.2 million in 2016.
Finally, PBAHB Group incurred an income tax
expense of RM3.7 million in 2017. In 2016, we
received RM7.1 million in tax refunds due to an
extension in reinvestment allowances.
As a result, PBAHB Group recorded a profit after
tax (PAT) of about RM37.3 million in 2017, as
compared to RM61.8 million in 2016.
FINAL DIVIDEND
Although we achieved a lower PAT, 2017 is a
profitable year. Accordingly, the PBAHB Board
will continue to keep its promise of rewarding
shareholders with a suitable annual dividend payout.
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Chairman’s Message (Cont’d)

THE MENGKUANG DAM HAS BEEN EXPANDED
We are proposing a final single tier dividend of
2.25 sen per share for the year in review, and are
pleased to table, for your kind approval, this final
dividend payment.
With approval, all shareholders will receive a net
single tier dividend proposed and declared of
approximately 4 sen per share for the financial year
ended 31 December 2017.
If approved, the amount of this dividend pay-out
will be RM13.2 million.
FOCUS ON SUSTAINABILITY
In 2017, PBAHB and PBAPP also focused on
various strategic initiatives to ensure long-term
business sustainability.
PBAPP’s business is unlike most other commercial
ventures, due to the following considerations and
factors:
• Public Service
The public service commitment of water supply

on a 24/7 basis is the root of the Penang State
Government’s “no water rationing” policy. PBAPP
is empowered to plan and act to avoid water
rationing that will inevitably cause suffering to the
people and losses to businesses.
Public service also compels PBAPP to conduct
its business as a responsible corporate citizen in
Penang. Unlike purely profit-oriented commercial
entities such as bottled or mineral water suppliers,
PBAPP does not arbitrarily “price” domestic water
supply in accordance to the “market demand”.
While the people may choose to forgo bottled or
mineral water, they cannot do without water supply.
Similarly, PBAPP cannot arbitrarily set trade
water supply to a level whereby it affects the local
economy in the ways that the GST, petrol prices
and electricity tariffs have.
On the other hand, as a wholly owned subsidiary of
a public listed company, PBAPP is also expected
to record operational PAT annually and reward
shareholders with dividends.
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to become the biggest water treatment plant in
Malaysia, with a maximum treatment capacity
of 1,228 million litres per day (MLD);
b. Penang’s water treatment reserve margin is the
highest in Malaysia in 2017 at 34.8%, which is
158% above the national average of 13.2%;
c. PBAPP is undertaking the 3rd Penang Twin
Submarine Pipeline Project to deliver more
treated water from the Sungai Dua WTP to
Penang Island. When completed in 2020, this
project will ensure that we can deliver another
315 MLD of treated water to the island;
d. Penang is looking forward to taking back the
expanded 73.5 billion litre Mengkuang Dam
from the Ministry of Energy, Green Technology
and Water (KeTTHA) to serve as our biggest
strategic drought reserve; and
e. PBAPP has successfully implemented effective
dry weather control protocols every year to
ensure that the strategic drought reserves
stored in our dams may outlast dry seasons.
However, there are certain raw water issues
that are beyond the control of Penang State
Government and PBAPP.

It is the ability to walk the thin line between public
service and profitability that distinguishes PBAPP
as a leading water supply operator in Malaysia.
• No Water Rationing
Continuous good water supply in Penang is often
taken for granted. Unlike other states where the
people and businesses may be subjected to water
rationing, there has been no incidence of water
rationing in Penang since this PBAHB Board was
appointed in 2008.
In fact, Penang is the only Malaysian state that
dares to publicly promote a “No Water Rationing”
policy. This policy is not an expression of pride or
egotism. It is a statement that simply reflects public
expectations of PBAPP’s performance.

• One Main Raw Water Resource
More than 80% of the raw water that is treated
by PBAPP (and distributed throughout Penang
daily for domestic and trade use) is abstracted
from Sungai Muda, the river that defines Penang’s
northern boundary with Kedah.
All of Penang’s other viable in-state raw water
resources, including the famous Waterfall in the
Botanic Gardens, have been fully exploited for
potable water usage. Due to Penang’s small
geographical footprint, there are no other new raw
water resources to tap.
In short, as and when there is insufficient raw water
to abstract from Sungai Muda, PBAPP cannot
supply sufficient treated water in Penang.

Moreover, our “No Water Rationing” policy is based
on sound water engineering facts and figures:

Moreover, Sungai Muda is a raw water resource
that Penang shares with Kedah; and Kedah draws
raw water from this river via 14 water treatment
plants and 3 irrigation intakes upstream of Penang.
Kedah also manages the Muda Dam and the Beris
Dam, the two strategic drought reserves that have
been built to release water into Sungai Muda during
extended dry seasons.

a. The Sungai Dua Water Treatment Plant (WTP)
in Seberang Prai has been gradually upgraded

Sungai Muda has served as Penang’s main raw
water resource since the opening of the Sungai
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Chairman’s Message (Cont’d)

SUNGAI MUDA
Muda Water Scheme (SMWS) by the late Tun Abdul
Razak bin Hussein, the second Prime Minister of
Malaysia, on 1 September 1973. That was more
than 44 years ago.
In his message printed on the official programme
for the 1973 SMWS opening ceremony, the late
Tun Dr. Lim Chong Eu (who was then serving as
Penang Chief Minister) noted that the SMWS was
“an in-state water supply scheme that is projected
to meet development needs until Year 2000.” It is
now 2018.
With these considerations in mind, the Penang
State Government and PBAPP have been asking
the Federal Government of Malaysia to develop a
second raw water resource for Penang in the 21st
Century. As per an agreement signed to facilitate
Penang’s migration to the National Water Services
Restructuring Initiative (NWSRI) in 2011, the task of
developing new raw water resources for Penang
has become the responsibility of the Federal
Government.

In 2009, Penang took the initiative to identify a new
raw water resource and propose the implementation
of the Sungai Perak Raw Water Transfer Scheme
(SPRWTS) to the Federal Government. Located in
Perak, Sungai Perak has not been fully exploited
as a raw water resource. The SPRWTS would fully
realise the potential of this river as a raw water
resource for the benefit of both Perak and Penang
towards Year 2050.
Until today, the Federal Government’s official stand
is for Penang to negotiate directly with Perak on the
proposed SPRWTS.
Moreover, in a letter dated September 2013, the
Minister of Energy, Green Technology and Water
(KeTTHA) stated that Penang should reduce its
high per capita domestic consumption before
requesting for the SPRWTS. This is disappointing
as KeTTHA is not addressing the problem of
ensuring adequate water supply after 2030.

PBA Holdings Bhd
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• Logging in Ulu Muda
The Ulu Muda Forest Reserve (UMFR) is the water
catchment area for Sungai Muda, as well as for 3
major dams in Kedah – the Ahning Dam, the Muda
Dam and the Pedu Dam. It catches rain water for
use in Perlis, Kedah and Penang.
And yet, Kedah continues to license logging in the
UMFR. The present Penang State Government
and PBAPP have spoken out against logging in the
most important water catchment area in the NCER
since 2008.
In 2017, we were not alone in calling for a total
ban of logging in the UMFR. Other organisations
that have spoken up include Forum Air Malaysia,
the Penang Institute, PEKA (Pertubuhan Pelindung
Khazanah Alam Malaysia), Sahabat Alam Malaysia
(SAM), the South Centre, Universiti Sains Malaysia
(USM), Water Watch Penang and WWF-Malaysia.
Make no mistake, logging in Ulu Muda is a threat
to water supply for Perlis, Kedah and Penang. So
long as Kedah continues to license logging in the
UMFR, it is a matter of time before logging causes
a water crisis in 3 Northern Corridor Economic
Region (NCER) states.

•

Water Tariffs and Federal Government
Approval
The following Table A shows the average domestic
water tariff charged in various states in Malaysia for
the first 35,000 litres per month.
It should be noted that all water tariffs in Malaysia
are regulated by the Federal Government. Since the
implementation of the Water Services Industry Act
2006 (Act 655) and the SPAN Act 2006 (Act 654),
all water supply operators are legally required to
submit applications to the National Water Services
Commission (SPAN) for tariff reviews.
PBAPP’s policy to price its domestic water tariffs
as the lowest in Malaysia has often been called
to question. The basic answer is that the Penang
State Government and PBAPP do not wish to
“over-burden” domestic consumers in Penang who
use water wisely (below 35,000 litres per month),
especially the lower income groups.
As such, PBAPP will sustain the RM0.32 average
domestic tariff for the benefit of the people in
Penang, as long as it is financially viable.
“Financially viable”, in this context, refers to
PBAHB’s ability to record a PAT. When the cost of

Table A :
Domestic water tariffs in Malaysia (first 35,000 litres per month in 2016)
State
Johor
F.T. Labuan
Selangor
Melaka
Sabah
Perak
Negri Sembilan
Kedah
Sarawak1
Sarawak2
Perlis
Sarawak3
Terengganu
Penang
National average

RM
per 1,000 litres

Ranking
(highest to lowest)

1.31
0.91
0.77
0.75
0.73
0.71
0.68
0.67
0.62
0.61
0.57
0.56
0.52
0.32
0.69

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14

Source: Malaysia Water Industry Guide 2017
Sarawak1: Sibu, Kuching, Sri Aman, Limbang, Sarikei, Kapit and Miri.
Sarawak2: Bintulu.
Sarawak3: Other parts of Sarawak
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Chairman’s Message (Cont’d)

domestic water subsidies compromise PBAHB’s
ability to achieve PAT, PBAPP will be compelled
to apply for a tariff review. As shown in the ‘Table
A’, there is ample leeway for PBAPP to review
Penang’s domestic water tariffs and still offer “the
lowest domestic water tariffs in Malaysia”.

per capita domestic consumption is 201 l/c/d.

Please note that domestic water tariffs (for the first
35,000 litres per month) in all Malaysian states
are subsidised. Water operators use the revenue
from trade/commercial/industrial water billings to
provide domestic tariff subsidies.

Perhaps unsurprisingly, Penang’s per capita
domestic consumption is 276 l/c/d because
PBAPP’s average water tariff for the first 35,000
litres of domestic consumption is only RM0.32.

• High Per Capita Domestic Consumption
Although Penang is a water-stressed state, its
per capita domestic consumption statistic is
the highest in Malaysia in 2017, as shown in the
following Table B.
In Johor, where the average domestic water tariff
for the 1st 35,000 litres per month is RM1.31, the

If we look to Singapore, the per capita domestic
consumption was 148 l/c/d in 2016 because the
average water tariff for the first 35,000 litres of
domestic consumption is SGD1.61 (RM4.78).**

Management of domestic consumption is important
because domestic consumption accounted for
58.4% of total water consumption in Penang in
2017. In other words, households used more
water than all the businesses and industries. As
such, reductions in domestic consumption would
have a larger impact on water conservation efforts
in Penang.

Table B :
Per capita domestic consumption in Malaysia (2016)
State

Penang*
Perlis
Perak
Melaka
Selangor
Negeri Sembilan
Kedah
Pahang
Johor
Sarawak
F.T. Labuan
Kelantan
Sabah
National average

Litres/capita/day
per 1,000 litres
(l/c/d)

Ranking
(highest to lowest)

276
259
235
234
234
229
223
202
201
168
165
144
115
209

1
2
3
4
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12

Source: Malaysia Water Industry Guide 2017 / Penang*: PBAPP statistics 2017
** https://www.pub.gov.sg/watersupply/waterprice

While it is possible to apply for higher tariffs to reduce
domestic per capita consumption, PBAPP has
chosen to pursue a more people-friendly approach
to water demand management in Penang.
In 2010, PBAPP introduced its Water Conservation
Surcharge (WCS) in Penang at RM0.24 per 1,000
litres, only for domestic consumption above 35,000
litres per month. Unlike a tariff review that would
affect all domestic water consumers, the WCS only
penalises consumers who use too much water. Any
domestic consumer who uses less than 35,000
litres per month automatically avoids paying the
WCS.

In 2013, the WCS was reviewed to RM0.48 per
1,000 litres.
The records show that the WCS helped to arrest
a 10-year trend of increasing per capita domestic
consumption in Penang. It was projected that per
capita domestic consumption could have reached
319 l/c/d in 2017 without the WCS. With the WCS,
per capita domestic consumption was capped to
276 l/c/d in 2017.
In April 2017, PBAPP submitted an application to
SPAN to review the WCS to RM1.00 per 1,000 litres
(only for domestic consumption above 35,000 litres

PBA Holdings Bhd
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BUKIT DUMBAR
RECREATIONAL PARK

per month). The target was to reduce Penang’s per
capita domestic consumption by 10% in 2017, to
about 257 l/c/d.
However, PBAPP’s RM1.00 WCS application was
not approved in 2017. As a result, Penang was
only able to record a 3.5% reduction in per capita
domestic water consumption, to 276 l/c/d year-onyear, resulting from a proactive water awareness
campaign.
These facts and figures prove that the WCS is an
important component of PBAPP’s overall water
demand management programme in Penang.
2018 AND BEYOND
Looking ahead, the PBAHB Group will continue to
focus on its 3 key performance indicators: water
supply engineering efficiency, corporate social
responsibility and financial accountability.
At the same time, PBAPP will strive to:
•

Reduce high per capita domestic consumption,
to curb water wastage, reduce domestic
tariff subsidy costs and ensure water supply
sufficiency for all.

•

Convince the Federal Government and Kedah
to abolish logging and conserve the UMFR as a
NCER Water Catchment Area, to achieve water
supply security for Penang towards Year 2050.

•

Ensure that the Federal Government implements
the Sungai Perak Raw Water Transfer Scheme
(SPRWTS), to create a second key raw water
resource for Penang.

•

Manage water supply in Penang as a critical
public service, thereby protecting the interests
of the people who live here and the businesses
that operate here.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
In closing, I wish to commend and thank my fellow
Board Members, as well as the management and
staff of PBAHB and PBAPP, for the achievements
in the face of adversity in 2017.
PBAPP’s response to the “Pulau Pinang Bangkit”
flood relief efforts reflected its unwavering
commitment to stand by the people of Penang in
times of need.
We have proved that we are truly a “Penang
company” at heart. We will continue to serve
Penang by meeting all its water supply needs
in the years to come, while striving to meet the
expectations of all our shareholders.
Thank You.
Lim Guan Eng
March 2018
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WATER DEMAND MANAGEMENT:
MANDATORY INSTALLATION OF WATER SAVING DEVICES
(WSDs) IN ALL NEW DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS.

•
•

First state in Malaysia to require water saving devices (tap fittings, shower fittings, toilet
cisterns and urinals), to be installed in all new projects.
WSDs “automatically” reduce water consumption by between 14% and 87%

Penang is the first Malaysian state to approve a regulation requiring developers to install water saving devices
(WSDs) in all new development projects. Penang is the only state in Malaysia that has publicly adopted a
“no water rationing” policy. The mandatory installation of WSDs reflects Penang’s firm commitment to this
policy, for the benefit of its people and all businesses based here.
The Penang State Executive Council approved Perbadanan Bekalan Air Pulau Pinang Sdn Bhd’s (PBAPP’s)
proposal for the mandatory installation of WSDs on 28/11/2017. The next step is the necessary legal
process for amendment and gazettement. Following the gazette, the Penang City Council (MBPP) and the
Seberang Prai Municipal Council (MPSP) will be able to enforce the new regulations. PBAPP will assist in
the implementation.
WATER-FRIENDLY
WSDs are “water-friendly” devices that allow consumers to automatically save water without any changes
to daily routines or habits. WSDs reduce and regulate water flow and, hence, water consumption with every
use. WSDs include:

PBA Holdings Bhd
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Taps and shower heads which are equipped with flow regulators.
Toilet cisterns with “dual flush” systems that enable “half flushes” (3 litres) and “full flushes” (6 litres).
Water saving urinals with “timer” and/or “spring” triggers.

WATER SAVING IMPACT
Penang’s WSD regulation will have a huge impact on water conservation in a water-stressed state. Essentially,
all new buildings will automatically become “water friendly” buildings.
These buildings will also be greener and will comply with the Garis Panduan Perancangan Kejiranan Hijau
2012, promoted by the Jabatan Perancangan Bandar dan Desa Semenanjung Malaysia (JPBDSM) and the
“Cleaner, Greener, Healthier and Safer Penang” policy.
During dry seasons, WSDs automatically regulate water consumption to ensure that Penang’s water
reserves may last until the rains arrive.
The mandatory installation of WSDs in all new properties will allow more households to conserve water with
minimal effort. The “automated” nature of the WSDs will help to reduce per capita domestic consumption
significantly in the long run.
Penang’s per capita domestic consumption was 276 litres/capita/day (l/c/d) in 2017, as compared to the
national average of 209 l/c/d. With population growth, this high level of domestic water consumption is not
sustainable.
PBAPP has been promoting WSDs as part of its “water demand management” programme in Penang,
alongside the implementation of the water conservation surcharge (WCS) and water education/awareness
projects. To try out how a WSD can help you to save money, please visit the nearest PBAPP Customer
Care Centre and pick up a free water saving kit. The kit contains “water saving thimbles” that can be fitted
onto household taps.
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CEO’S MESSAGE

"When it comes to the Ulu Muda Forest Reserve (UMFR), logging is
not merely a forestry issue. It is a growing socioeconomic threat. It
is a matter of time before logging in the UMFR causes a water crisis,
and consequently, a socioeconomic crisis in the Northern Corridor
Economic Region."

PBA Holdings Bhd
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During the year in review, Perbadanan Bekalan
Air Pulau Pinang Sdn Bhd (PBAPP) worked hard
to fulfill its responsibilities as the licensed water
operator that serves the State of Penang.

The following 8 key performance indicators
summarise our operational performance as a water
supply operator in 2017:

1

No. of Customers Served

• Domestic
• Trade
• Total

518,001
86,546
604,547

2

Water Supply Coverage

• Urban
• Rural

100.0%
99.8%

3

Water Supply Duration

24 hours a day

4

Average Water Production

1,057.7 MLD (million litres per day)

5

Average Metered Consumption

826.3 MLD

6

Water Treatment Reserve Margin

34.8% (Highest in Malaysia)

7

Treated Water Quality

Exceeds Quality Assurance Programme (QAP) parameters
set by the Ministry of Health.

8

Incidences of Water Rationing

NIL

In short, PBAPP continued to meet all of Penang’s
water supply needs efficiently and effectively, while
complying with the requirements of the Individual
Licence (Facilities and Services) issued by the
National Water Services Commission (SPAN).
CONSERVATION OF ULU MUDA
Above and beyond efficient water supply
operations, PBAPP is calling for an immediate
and total ban of logging activities in the biggest
and most important water catchment area in the
Northern Corridor Economic Region (NCER).
For the 3 NCER states of Perlis, Kedah and Penang,
it is a case of: “When the rainforests are gone, then
only will we know the true value of water.”
Some 90km north-east of Penang’s northern
border with Kedah lies a 163,103 sq. km expanse
of rainforests classified as the Ulu Muda Forest
Reserve (UMFR).
The UMFR is one of Malaysia’s “natural assets”,
as defined in Chapter 6 of the 11th Malaysia Plan.
It shelters thousands of species of endemic flora
and fauna; acts as a natural carbon sink that traps
carbon dioxide and produces oxygen; and even
generates a micro-climate that mitigates the effects
of global warming in the region.
The UMFR is also the largest and most important
water catchment area in the NCER. Rain water
collected in the UMFR fills 3 major dams in Kedah:
the Muda Dam, the Ahning Dam and the Pedu
Dam. Raw water collected in the UMFR also flows
through Sungai Muda to Penang.
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The raw water that originates from the UMFR is
used to meet 70% of Perlis’ daily water needs,
96% of Kedah’s daily water needs and more than
80% of Penang’s daily water needs.
As such, the UMFR is more than just a natural
heritage asset, it is an indispensable “raw water
asset” for Perlis, Kedah and Penang.
That said, Kedah has been licensing logging
activities in the UMFR to earn “forest premiums”
from logging companies.
In January 2018, a series of news exposés
published by Kosmo! (with the cooperation of
Pertubuhan Pelindung Khazanah Alam Malaysia, or
PEKA) revealed that logging has been carried out in
the UMFR since 2008. Logging is allegedly being
carried out 50km in the forest reserve, with 1,200
hectares marked as “new logging areas”.
In October 2017, PBAPP had requested for the
Ministry of Natural Resources (NRE) to investigate
the possibility that the water catchment area for
the Muda Dam in the UMFR had been reduced by
87.3%, from 98,400 hectares in 1969 to 12,484
hectares in 2017.
In 1969, when the Muda Dam was built, its water
catchment area was specified to be 98,400
hectares. In August 2017, the NRE Ministry wrote
to YAB Tuan Lim Guan Eng (as the Member of
Parliament for Bagan), to inform him that only
12,484 hectares of the UMFR had been gazetted
as “forest water catchments”.
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ULU MUDA FOREST RESERVE (UMFR)
The NRE data seems to indicate that large sections
of forestlands that should have been protected had
been opened to logging, including water catchment
areas for the Muda Dam which has a maximum
capacity of 160 billion litres.
Logging in the UMFR causes deforestation, thereby
reducing the rainforests’ natural rain catching
capacity. Logging also causes soil erosion and
sedimentation in rivers and dams. In these ways,
logging compromises both the quantity and quality
of raw water available from the UMFR.
Perlis, Kedah and Penang are very dependent on
the UMFR as a water catchment. In this context,
logging in the UMFR threatens:
•

Water supply for 4.09 million people living in
Perlis, Kedah and Penang.*

•

Water supply for thousands of businesses,
including international 5-star hotels and
multinational corporations operating in the

*

Kulim Hi-Tech Park in Kedah and Penang’s
industrial areas.
•

Irrigation for 100,685 hectares of padi fields
managed by the Muda Agriculture Development
Authority (MADA) in Kedah and Perlis.**

•

Perlis, Kedah and Penang’s combined GDP
contributions which was projected to be
RM124.3 billion in 2017.***

When it comes to the UMFR, logging is not merely a
forestry issue. It is a growing socioeconomic threat.
It is a matter of time before logging in the UMFR
causes a water crisis, and consequently, a
socioeconomic crisis in the NCER.
To avoid this foreseeable crisis, the Federal
Government must step in to compel Kedah to
stop all logging activities in the UMFR. The Federal
Government should allocate funds to compensate
Kedah in lieu of forest premiums; and work with
Kedah to conserve the UMFR… before it is too late.

https://www.dosm.gov.my/v1/index.php?r=column/ctheme&menu_id=L0pheU43NWJwRWVSZklWdzQ4TlhUUT09&bul_id=OWlxdEVoYlJCS
0hUZzJyRUcvZEYxZz09
** http://www.mada.gov.my/en/corporate-information/reports-by-program/rice-industry-development-program/
*** https://www.dosm.gov.my/v1/index.php?r=column/cthemeByCat&cat=102&bul_id=VS9Gckp1UUpKQUFWS1JHUnJZS2xzdz09&menu_id=TE5CRUZC
blh4ZTZMODZIbmk2aWRRQT09 and http://www.treasury.gov.my/index.php/en/economy/key-economic-indicator.html
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WATER DEMAND MANAGEMENT
Water demand management has become another
key responsibility for PBAPP, in view of Penang’s
high per capita domestic consumption. PBAPP’s
water demand management programme is based
on 3 key strategies:
•

Public awareness and education, through
the mass media, electronic media, social
media and special events (such as the annual
commemoration of World Water Day in
Penang);

•

Implementation of a water conservation
surcharge (WCS) that applies only to domestic
consumption above 35,000 litres per month;
and

•

Promotion of water saving devices (WSDs) that
“automate” water saving processes.

In April 2017, PBAPP applied to the National Water
Services Commission (SPAN) to review the WCS
from RM0.48 per 1,000 litres to RM1.00 per 1,000
litres (only for domestic consumption above 35,000
litres per month). The target was to reduce per
capita domestic consumption to about 257 litres/
capita/day (l/c/d).
However, SPAN did not approve the RM1.00
application in 2017. Under the Water Services
Industry Act 2006 (Act 655) and the SPAN Act
2006 (Act 654), PBAPP cannot legally review the
WCS if it is not passed as a federal regulation.
Despite the setback, public awareness of the
proposed WCS review resulted in a reduction of
domestic water consumption in Penang by 10
l/c/d, from 286 l/c/d in 2016 to 276 l/c/d in 2017.
Type of
Fittings
Basin Tap
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Insofar as WSDs are concerned, PBAPP marked
an important milestone during the year in review. On
28/11/2017, the State Executive Council approved
PBAPP’s proposal for the mandatory installation of
WSDs in all new development projects in Penang.
Penang is the first state in Malaysia to approve such
a regulation. It is in line with the “Cleaner, Greener,
Healthier and Safer Penang” policy; and supports
the state’s “No Water Rationing” policy as well.
The next step is the publication of a state gazette
to legalise an amendment to the “Uniform Building
By-Laws (State of Penang) 1986”. Following the
gazette, the Penang City Council (MBPP) and the
Seberang Prai Municipal Council (MPSP) will be
able to enforce the new regulations. PBAPP will
assist in the implementation.
WSDs are “water-friendly” devices that allow
consumers to automatically save water without any
changes to daily routines or habits. These devices,
which “automatically” reduce water consumption,
include:
•

Taps and shower heads which are equipped
with flow regulators.

•

Toilet cisterns with “dual flush” systems that
enable “half flushes” (3 litres) and “full flushes”
(6 litres).

•

Water saving urinals with “timer” and/or “spring”
triggers.

PBAPP has installed various types of WSDs in its
buildings since 2012. Our findings indicate that
WSDs can effectively reduce water consumption
by between 14% and 87%:

BEFORE
(litres per minute)

AFTER
(litres per minute)

%
Water Savings

12 - 16

Self-shutting type :
2

83 - 87%

Tip touch type :
6

50 - 63%

Bib Tap

12 - 15

5

58 - 67%

Shower Head

14 - 20

12

14 - 40%

Sink Tap

12 - 18

6

50 - 67%
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24-HOUR CALL CENTRE

WSDs also include washing machines and dish
washers that are “water friendly”.
WSD installation has been acknowledged as
one of the most effective water conservation
measures worldwide. Countries such as Australia,
Hong Kong, New Zealand, Singapore, the United
Kingdom and the USA actively promote WSDs.
In Malaysia, the National Water Services
Commission (SPAN) has introduced a “Water
Efficient Product Labelling Scheme”.
Penang’s WSD regulation will have a huge impact
on water conservation in a water-stressed state.
Essentially, all new buildings will automatically
become “water friendly” buildings.
The mandatory installation of WSDs in all new
properties will allow more households to conserve
water with minimal effort. Accordingly, the
“automated” nature of the WSDs will help to reduce
per capita domestic consumption significantly in
the long run.
NEW CALL CENTRE IN KOMTAR
On 4/12/2017, Penang Chief Minister YAB Tuan
Lim Guan Eng launched PBAPP’s new 24-hour
Call Centre in Komtar. This call centre is a fully
out-sourced facility that is managed by TM ONE, a
subsidiary of Telekom Malaysia.
The contact number for the new call centre is 04
255 8 255.

All the centre’s operational components, including
technologies, facility management services and
training, are managed by TM ONE. The costs of
managing and running the centre are borne by TM
ONE, and PBAPP pays a “yearly recurring charge”
to TM ONE.
There are 5 key reasons for the establishment of a
new PBAPP 24-hour Call Centre in Komtar:
•

Continuous improvement in customer services,
in accordance to PBAPP’s ISO 9001:2015
commitment;

•

Benchmarking the PBAPP 24-hour Call
Centre’s services to the international “Customer
Operations Performance Centre” (COPC)
standards, via the collaboration with TM ONE;

•

Continuing compliance to the key performance
indicators (KPIs) set by SPAN for attending
to customer complaints. PBAPP’s customer
base has grown by about 27%, from 476,179
registered water consumers in 2008 to 604,547
consumers in 2017;

•

Cost savings over a 10-year period through
out-sourcing, instead of upgrading PBAPP’s
previous call centre that had been operational
in the period 2002 - 2016; and

•

Customer satisfaction through the provision of
precise and timely information to consumers,
who are likely to call PBAPP only in times of
need.
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The launching of the new call centre is the third
key customer care initiative undertaken by PBAPP
since 2016. The other 2 initiatives are:
•

•

The “myPBA” mobile app for smart phones and
tablets, launched in January 2017. “myPBA”
is the first app in Malaysia that allows Penang
water consumers to settle their water bills
via connected smart devices. Available for
download from the “Apple App Store” and the
“Google Play Store”, “myPBA” also keeps users
updated on the latest water supply information
and notices when they are on-the-move;
Postings in the “PBAPP Penang” Facebook
page to share timely and precise information
with the public, 24/7.

3RD PENANG SUBMARINE PIPELINE
PROJECT
Looking ahead, PBAPP has completed Package
1 of the new RM125 million Butterworth-Penang
Island Twin Submarine Pipeline Project.
This project is being implemented in 3 packages:
•

•

Package 1, which encompasses the laying
of 0.9km of 1,800mm land pipelines in the
Macallum area in George Town at a cost
of about RM9.2 million. This package was
completed in 27/11/ 2017.
Package 2A and 2B involves the laying of 0.8km
of 1,800mm land pipelines in Butterworth.
Work has commenced since 6/11/2017, and
PBAPP is awaiting approval from the Majlis
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Perbandaran Seberang Prai (MPSP), Lembaga
Lebuhraya Malaysia (LLM) and Keretapi Tanah
Melayu Berhad (KTMB) for pipe-laying work at a
few locations. The combined projected cost for
Package 2A and 2B is RM15.2 million.
•

Package 3 will see the laying of 3.2km of
1,200mm twin submarine pipelines from
Butterworth to the Macallum area on Penang
Island. The open tender for Package 3
scheduled is to be called by May 2018 and
expected to be commissioned by December
2020.

When completed, the new Butterworth-Penang
Twin Submarine Pipeline will deliver up to 315
MLD of treated water from the Sungai Dua WTP
to PBAPP’s pump houses and treated water
reservoirs at Bukit Dumbar on Penang Island.
The treated water will then be re-pumped to water
consumers throughout the southern parts of
Penang Island and also, Balik Pulau.
•

Efficient delivery of more treated water to
Penang Island to address future water demand;

•

Replacement of the first twin submarine pipeline
that was commissioned in 1973 (45 years old);
and

•

Ensuring that Penang lives up to its “No Water
Rationing” policy in the future.

PACKAGE 1 OF THE 3RD PENANG SUBMARINE
PIPELINE PROJECT COMPLETED
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PENANG WATER SUPPLY COMMAND CENTRE

PENANG WATER SUPPLY
COMMAND CENTRE
On 15/3/2018, Penang Chief Minister YAB Tuan
Lim Guan Eng officiated the soft opening of the
Penang Water Supply Command Centre (PWSCC)
in the Sungai Dua WTP.
The PWSCC is equipped with state-of-the-art
data centre servers; a command centre software
system; a 10-screen video wall; a dedicated lease
line; hardware and software to monitor electronic
data from key treated water installations; and
dedicated workstations.
Phase 1 of the PWSCC enables:
•

Collection and integration of key data from all
PBAPP electronic monitoring systems installed
in various locations in Penang;

•

Comprehensive, convenient and real-time
review, monitoring and analysis of water supply
operations in one location;

•

Better
maintenance
infrastructure;

•

Predictive detection of possible water supply
issues;

•

Automatic system alerts on possible water
supply issues based on data anomalies; and

•

Improved non-revenue water (NRW) or water
loss management.

of

water

supply

PBAPP decided to set up the PWSCC after studying
similar command centres that have been set up in

Kuala Lumpur, Bangkok and Tokyo. Phase 1 of the
PWSCC was developed at a cost of RM6.1 million.
Phase 2 will widen the scope of operations to
include monitoring of more points in Penang’s water
supply network; a pilot study on water network
optimisation; and a pilot study on advanced
underground pipe leakage detection technology.
Phase 2 is scheduled for commissioning by 2019.
Phase 3 will encompass full integration of all
point monitoring systems, as well as the full
implementation of water network optimisation,
NRW management and advanced pipe leakage
detection systems. Phase 3 is projected to be
commissioned by 2021.
The 5 key benefits of the PWSCC include:
1. Avoidance of water supply interruptions through
predictive and proactive water engineering
initiatives, whenever possible;
2. Less incidences of unscheduled water supply
interruptions;
3. Faster and more precise reactions by PBAPP to
water supply issues;
4. Sustenance of 100.0% and 99.8% water
supply coverage throughout Penang in the
future through the optimisation of water supply
infrastructure; and
5. Facilitation of Penang’s “No Water Rationing”
policy.
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AWARDS 2017
Meanwhile, in terms of awards received, 2017 proved to be a bountiful year for PBAPP:
The climax of the year was when these 10 awards led to an 11th award from the Penang State Government
on 20/12/2017: the “Best Department Achievement Incentive (Penang State Government Company) Award
2017”.
Date/Month

Award (Given by)

1

1/5/2017

Best Contingent, National-level Worker’s Day Gathering (Ministry of Human Resources)

2

June 2017

“Green Office” Award:
PBAPP Bukit Mertajam Customer Care Centre (Penang Green Council)

3

June 2017

“Green Office” Award:
PBAPP Taman Selat Customer Care Centre (Penang Green Council)

4

June 2017

“Green Office” Award:
PBAPP Central Laboratory, Sungai Dua Water Treatment Plant (Penang Green Council)

5

24/8/2017

Gold Award: Batu Ferringhi Water Treatment Plant****
(Malaysian Society for Occupational Safety & Health – MSOSH)

6

31/8/2017

Champion, Penang State-level 60th National Day Parade
- Private Sector and NGO Category (Penang State Government)

7

13/10/2017 1st Runner-Up, Innovation Award*****
(International Greentech & Eco Products Exhibition & Conference Malaysia 2017-iGEM)

8

28/11/2017 Penang State Innovation Award – Non-ICT Category*****
(Penang State Government)

9

1/12/2017

10 8/12/2017

Best Contingent, Penang State-level Maulidur Rasul Celebrations
(Penang State Government)
IKM Laboratory Excellence Award 2017
(Malaysian Institute of Chemistry – IKM)

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
On behalf of the management and staff of PBAHB
and PBAPP, I thank our Boards of Directors for
guiding us towards our goals in 2017, in serving
Penang conscientiously as a holistic water supplier.
We also appreciate the good support from all our
shareholders, customers and business partners in
2017.
Finally, I thank the PBAHB & PBAPP family for their
hard work and teamwork during the year in review.
We must stay on course. We must strive on, united
by the common goal of sustaining continuous good
water supply in Penang. About 1.76 million people
and thousands of businesses depend on us, every
day.
Thank You.
Dato’ Ir. Jaseni Maidinsa
March 2018
**** For recording “zero” dangerous occurrences, accidents and lost
injury time in 2016.
***** For recycling water treatment plant residue to serve as a
value-added material for making clay bricks.
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Dato’ Ir. Jaseni has been serving in PBAPP, and
previously in Pihak Berkuasa Air (PBA), for a total of
32 years. He was the Distribution and Workshop
Engineer for Penang Island, PBA Penang (1985 1987), Consumer Engineer for Penang Island, PBA
Penang (1987 - 1991), Senior Executive Engineer
for Planning and Development for Penang Island,
PBA Penang (1991 - 2001), Development Manager,
PBAPP (2001 - 2007), General Manager, PBAPP
(2007 - 2015) and Group CEO (2015 - present day).
During his tenure as General Manager, PBAPP was
awarded the following accolades :
• WaterLinks Award 2011
International Award for Best Water Operator
Partnership
Awarded By : WaterLinks

DATO’ Ir. JASENI BIN MAIDINSA
aged 60, male, Malaysian citizen
Group Chief Executive Officer

• Inaugural KIA Awards 2013
- Water Services Operator of the Year
- Efficiency Award
Awarded By : Ministry of Energy, Green
Technology & Water
• CAFEO 33 Award (2015)
- ASEAN Outstanding Engineering
Achievement Award 2015
(PBAPP Sungai Dua Water Treatment Plant)

Dato’ Ir. Jaseni Maidinsa was appointed as Group
Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of PBAHB on 1 April
2007.

- ASEAN Outstanding Engineering
Achievement Award 2015
(Dato’ Ir. Jaseni Maidinsa)

Dato’ Ir. Jaseni holds a Diploma in Civil
Engineering from Universiti Teknologi Malaysia
(1979); a BSc. (Hons.) Civil Engineering Degree
from the University of Glasgow (1984); a Diploma
in Management from the Malaysian Institute of
Management (1991); and a Masters Degree in
Business Administration from Universiti Sains
Malaysia (2001). He is a registered Professional
Engineer with the Board of Engineers, Malaysia
(BEM), and is also a member of the Malaysian
Water Association (MWA).

Awarded By : ASEAN Federation of Engineering
Organisations
He holds 100,000 ordinary shares in the Company
but does not hold any directorship in other public
companies. He has no family relationship with any
Directors and / or substantial shareholders of the
Company and has no conflict of interest with
the Company. He has not been convicted of any
offences within the past five (5) years and has not
been imposed of any public sanction or penalty by
the relevant regulatory bodies during the financial
year 2017.
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PENANG STATE WATER
SUPPLY INFRASTRUCTURE
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• YB Dato’ Seri Farizan Bin Darus

• YB Tuan Sanisvara Nethaji
Rayer A/L Rajaji

(Non-Executive Chairman)

(Non-Executive Deputy Chairman)

(Non-Executive Director)

(Non-Executive Director)

(Non-Executive Director)

(Non-Executive Director)

(Non-Executive Director)

(Non-Executive Director)

• YB Dato’ Sarul Bahiyah Binti Abu
(Non-Executive Director)

• YB Tuan Yeoh Soon Hin
(Non-Executive Director)
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PBA Resources Sdn Bhd (799680-A)
PBA Resources
Bhd (799680-A)
BOARD Sdn
OF DIRECTORS
• YBhg. Dato’ Ir. Jaseni Bin Maidinsa
(Company Director)

• Encik Mohammad Zulkifli
Bin Abdul Hamid
(Company Director)

COMPANY SECRETARY
Thum Sook Fun (MIA 24701)
REGISTERED OFFICE AND BUSINESS ADDRESS
Level 32, KOMTAR, Jalan Penang, 10000 Georgetown, Pulau Pinang.
Tel
: (604) 200 6700
Fax : (604) 200 6704
Website : www.pbahb.com.my
SHARE REGISTRAR
Securities Services (Holdings) Sdn. Bhd.
Suite 18.05, MWE Plaza,
No. 8, Lebuh Farquhar, 10200 Georgetown, Penang
Tel
: (604) 263 1966
Fax
: (604) 262 8544
AUDITORS
Grant Thornton, Chartered Accountants
PRINCIPAL BANKER
Malayan Banking Berhad, Penang
STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING
Main Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (Trading Services)
Stock Name : PBA
Stock Code : 5041
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CORPORATE STRUCTURE

100% water supply in Penang

26% overseas projects

100% management company

water supply training
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PBAPP
ORGANISATION STRUCTURE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Chief Executive Officer

Internal Audit

Corporate Affairs
Division

Finance Division
CFO

HR Division

Water Operations
Division
COO

Customer
Service

Board
Secretariat

Human
Resource

Planning &
Development

Quality Safety &
Health

Section

Administration

Procurement &
Logistics

Finance &
Accounting

Information
Technology

Section

Legal &
Compliance

Section

Operations

Employee
Relations
Production

Talent & C&B
Facilities

Training &
Development

Security

Section

Command
Centre

Quantity
Surveyor

Office of the Chief
Executive Officer
(PBAPP)

Section

Corporate
Communications &
Events Management
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
Financial Year Ended 31 December

REVENUE
PROFIT BEFORE TAX
PROFIT AFTER TAX
PAID UP SHARE CAPITAL
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC (sen)
NET TANGIBLE ASSETS PER SHARE (RM)

2013
RM'000

2014
RM'000

2015
RM'000

2016
RM'000

2017
RM'000

251,731
27,487
27,930
165,635
716,748
8.44
2.16

261,017
25,634
24,759
165,635
727,551
7.48
2.20

300,325
44,770
38,000
165,635
753,763
11.48
2.28

326,698
54,648
61,764
165,635
800,173
18.66
2.42

312,353
40,936
37,280
327,579
824,377
11.26
2.49

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

REVENUE

PROFIT AFTER TAX

PAID UP SHARE CAPITAL
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165,635

165,635

165,635

165,635

(RM’000)
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(RM’000)
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(RM’000)
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(RM’000)
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FINANCIAL CALENDAR 2017
FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED

31 DECEMBER 2017

17th Annual General Meeting

23 May 2017

Announcement of interim results
• First Quarter
• Second Quarter
• Third Quarter
• Fourth Quarter

24 May 2017
29 August 2017
24 November 2017
27 February 2018

Dividends paid and payable in 2017
Final - 31 December 2016
• Declaration
• Entitlement date
• Payment date

Final Single Tier Dividend of 2.25 sen per share
6 July 2017
21 July 2017

Interim - 31 December 2017
• Declaration
• Entitlement date
• Payment date

First Interim Single Tier Dividend of 1.75 sen per share
22 December 2017
12 January 2018

Final - 31 December 2017
• Declaration
• Entitlement date
• Payment date
(if approved by shareholders
at the forthcoming
18th Annual General Meeting)

Proposed Final Single Tier Dividend of 2.25 sen per share
6 July 2018
20 July 2018
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TREATMENT PLANT RESIDUE:

PBAPP's INNOVATIVE RE-CYCLING PROJECT WINS
IGEM 2017 AWARD AND PENANG STATE AWARD.

Perbadanan Bekalan Air Pulau Pinang Sdn Bhd’s
(PBAPP) water treatment plant waste recycling
project has won two awards in 2017:
•

•

the “Innovation Award Runner-Up” at the
“International Greentech & Eco Products
Exhibition & Conference Malaysia (IGEM)
2017” event in the Kuala Lumpur Convention
Centre (KLCC) on 13/10/2017; and
the Penang State Innovation Award 2016
(Non-ICT Category) on 28/11/2017. The
Penang State Innovation Awards recognizes
innovative public sector initiatives. It also
promotes creativity and innovation amongst
state administration personnel, so as to
improve the quality of public services for the
benefit of the people.

This “green” project involves the conversion of
water treatment plant residue at the Sungai Dua
Water Treatment Plant (WTP) into a value-added
material that may be used in clay brick production.
The Sungai Dua WTP, the largest water treatment
plant in Penang, produces more than 80% of the
state’s treated water daily.

In 2016, the average water consumption in
Penang was 827 million litres per day (MLD). The
by-product of the conventional water treatment
process at the Sungai Dua WTP is a waste material
known as water treatment plant (WTP) residue.
The WTP residue is classified as a “scheduled
waste” that must be disposed safely, in accordance
to the “Environmental Quality (Scheduled Wastes)
Regulations 2005”. The Sungai Dua WTP generates
an average of 300 metric tons of WTP residue per
day.
Through research and development (R&D) since
2009, PBAPP has discovered a way to re-cycle
the WTP residue to safely replace conventional
“plasticizers” used in the manufacture of clay
bricks.
A plasticizer is a material that is added to impart
plasticity (the quality of being easily shaped or
moulded) and strength to the brick as a valueadded material for making clay bricks used in
construction projects.
The key benefits of this WTP residue recycling
project include:
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3. Re-using WTP residue constructively as a
value-added material that will be useful to the
brick-making industry, and consequently, to the
construction industry; and

2. Potential reduction of scheduled waste disposal
costs, not only for PBAPP, but for the entire
water supply industry in Malaysia;

4. Reducing the risk of landfill mishaps that may
cause environmental issues.

PRESS RELEASE

1. Re-cycling a scheduled waste in an
innovative manner, in line with the Penang
State Government’s “A Cleaner, Greener and
Healthier Penang” initiative;
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PBAHB DIRECTORS’ PROFILE
YAB TUAN LIM GUAN ENG
aged 57, male, a Malaysian citizen, is the Non-Independent and Non-Executive Chairman of PBA Holdings
Bhd (“PBAHB”). He was appointed to the Board of Directors of PBAHB on 18 April 2008.
Presently, YAB Tuan Lim is the Chief Minister of
Penang. He is also the Chairman of Perbadanan
Bekalan Air Pulau Pinang Sdn Bhd, Penang
Development
Corporation,
Invest-In-Penang
Berhad and Penang Global Tourism Sdn Bhd.
He received his tertiary education in Australia,
where he earned his Bachelor Degree in Economics
majoring in both Economics and Accounting from
Monash University.
He started his career as a Senior Credit Executive
at a foreign bank after his graduation before he
got involved in politics. He was first elected as a
Member of Parliament after winning the Kota Melaka
Parliamentary seat in 1986 and subsequently was
re-elected in 1990 and 1995. He was appointed as
the Socialist Youth Chairman of Democratic Action
Party (“DAP”) in 1989 and was elected to that
post in 1992. In 1995, he was elected as the DAP
Deputy Secretary-General before being elected
as the party Secretary-General in 2004, and has
held the position since. He was also selected by
Asiaweek as one of the key Young Asian Leaders to
shape Asia’s destiny in the new millenium in 1999.
He does not hold any ordinary shares in the
Company or its subsidiaries, has no family
relationship with any Director and / or major
shareholder of the Company and has no conflict
of interest with the Company. He has not been
convicted of any offences within the past five (5)
years and has not been imposed of any public
sanction or penalty by the relevant regulatory
bodies during the financial year 2017.
YAB Tuan Lim attended all five (5) Board Meetings
held in the financial year ended 31 December 2017.
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YB DATO’ HAJI MOHD RASHID BIN HASNON
aged 58, male, a Malaysian citizen, is the Non-Independent and Non-Executive Deputy Chairman of PBA
Holdings Bhd (“PBAHB”). He was appointed to the Board of Directors of PBAHB on 1 July 2013.
Presently, YB Dato’ Haji Mohd Rashid is the Deputy
Chief Minister I of Penang and also sits on the
Boards of Invest-In-Penang Berhad and Penang
Development Corporation.
He had his secondary education at Muar High
School and the Royal Military College of Sungai Besi.
He continued his studies at A-Level at Soumpthon
Technical College, United Kingdom and obtained a
Bachelor of Control Engineering from the University
of Sheffield, United Kingdom. He also obtained
a Master of Business Administration (MBA) from
University Kebangsaan Malaysia in 1990.
He started his career as an engineer in PERNAS
NEC in 1984. In 1987, he joined Motorola as Head
of Planning Department and subsequently as the
Manager of ASE Electronics in 1991.
He was elected as Chairman of Personal Managers
Group in the Bayan Lepas Free Industrial Zone
before he established his own company in providing
skills training and ISO audit services and holding
the position as Managing Director of the Company.
YB Dato’ Haji Mohd Rashid was elected as YDP
JIM, State of Penang since 1990 before his
involvement in politics as Deputy Chairman of
GERAK Penang.
He was a founder of the Parti Keadilan Nasional
(PKN) Pulau Pinang which was established in 2001.
He acts as orator on behalf of PKN at Congress
Parti Keadilan Nasional. He was the first appointed
treasurer in Parti Keadilan Rakyat (“PKR”) Pulau
Pinang. In 2004, he was elected as Vice Chairman
of PKR Bayan Baru Branch and subsequently
promoted as Deputy Chief of the party in 2010. He
was elected as the member of the Penang State
Legislative Assembly in the general election on 5
May 2013.

He does not hold any ordinary shares in the
Company or its subsidiaries, has no family
relationship with any Director and / or major
shareholder of the Company and has no conflict
of interest with the Company. He has not been
convicted of any offences within the past five (5)
years and has not been imposed of any public
sanction or penalty by the relevant regulatory
bodies during the financial year 2017.
YB Dato’ Haji Mohd Rashid attended four (4) out
of five (5) Board Meetings held in the financial year
ended 31 December 2017.
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PBAHB Directors’ Profile (Cont’d)

YB PROF. DR. P. RAMASAMY A/L PALANISAMY
aged 69, male, a Malaysian citizen, is a Non-Independent and Non-Executive Director of PBA Holdings Bhd
(“PBAHB”). He was appointed to the Board of Directors of PBAHB on 18 April 2008. He is the Chairman of
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company.
Presently, YB Prof. Dr. P. Ramasamy is the Deputy
Chief Minister II of Penang and a Member of State
Assembly, Perai Constituency, Penang. He also
sits on the Boards of Invest-In-Penang Berhad and
other Penang State Government agencies.
He obtained a Bachelor of Arts in Political Science
from Indiana University, U.S.A., in 1977. He
graduated from McGill University, Canada, with a
Master in Political Science and subsequently from
University of Malaya in Doctor of Philosophy (Ph.D.)
in Political Science in 1991.
He joined Universiti Kebangsaan Malaysia (“UKM”)
in 1981. He was promoted to Associate Professor
in 1993 and Professor in 1998. Following his
retirement in 2005, he joined the Institute of
Southeast Asian Studies, Singapore. He served
as a Consultant for a number of Peace Building
Organisations. In 2008, he was elected to the
Democratic Action Party’s (“DAP”) Central Executive
Committee (“CEC”) and subsequently appointed
as Deputy Secretary General of the party.
He does not hold any ordinary shares in the
Company or its subsidiaries, has no family
relationship with any Director and / or major
shareholder of the Company and has no conflict
of interest with the Company. He has not been
convicted of any offences within the past five (5)
years and has not been imposed of any public
sanction or penalty by the relevant regulatory
bodies during the financial year 2017.
YB Prof. Dr. P. Ramasamy attended all five (5)
Board Meetings held in the financial year ended 31
December 2017.
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YB DATO’ SERI FARIZAN BIN DARUS
aged 58, male, a Malaysian citizen, is a Non-Independent and Non-Executive Director of PBA Holdings Bhd
(“PBAHB”). He was appointed to the Board of Directors of PBAHB on 9 June 2009.
Presently, he is the State Secretary of Penang and
was appointed to this position on 16 March 2011.
He holds a B.A. (Hons.) from Universiti Malaya in
1982 and Diploma in Public Administration from
Institut Tadbiran Awam Negara (INTAN), Malaysia
in 1983. He also obtained his M.Sc. (Human
Resource Development) from Universiti Putra
Malaysia in 2004.
He started his career at Jabatan Telekom
Malaysia in 1982 before joining the Administrative
and Diplomatic Service of Malaysia in 1984 as
the Assistant Secretary of the Public Service
Commission. After that he was appointed as the
Assistant District Officer (Land Administrator) in the
Central Seberang Perai District and Land Office
in 1989 before being transferred to the North
Seberang Perai District and Land Office in 1994. In
1998, he was promoted as the Principal Assistant
Director, Procurement Division of the Ministry of
Finance and subsequently held the position of
Principal Assistant District Officer, North Seberang
Perai District and Land Office in 2000.
From 2002 till 2004, he underwent a Master’s degree
in Human Resource Development at Universiti
Putra Malaysia. Upon completion of his studies, he
helmed the South Seberang Perai District and Land
Office as the District Officer and also assumed the
position of Councillor of Seberang Perai Municipal
Council. In 2006, he was the Director of Penang
Domestic Trade and Consumer Affairs Department
before being promoted as the President of the
Seberang Perai Municipal Council in 2007 and as
Penang State Financial Officer in June 2009. He
assumed the position of Penang State Secretary
in March 2011. He is a Director of both Penang
Development Corporation and Invest-In-Penang
Berhad. He also serves as a Board Member of the
Penang Hill Corporation, Jambatan Kedua Sdn.
Bhd. and Penang Port Commission.

He is deemed to be a major shareholder of PBAHB
by virtue of his position as the Penang State
Secretary. He does not have any conflicts of interest
with the Company. He has not been convicted
of any offences within the past five (5) years and
has not been imposed of any public sanction or
penalty by the relevant regulatory bodies during the
financial year 2017.
YB Dato’ Seri Farizan attended four (4) out of five
(5) Board Meetings held in the financial year ended
31 December 2017.
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PBAHB Directors’ Profile (Cont’d)

YB DATO’ SARUL BAHIYAH BINTI ABU
aged 55, female, Malaysian citizen, is a Non-Independent and Non-Executive Director of PBA Holdings
Bhd (“PBAHB”). She was appointed to the Board of Directors of PBAHB on 28 November 2016. She is a
member of the Audit and Risk Management Committee and Nomination and Remuneration Committee of
the Company.
She holds a B.A. (Hons) in Sociology, Advanced
Degree in Health Education from Public Health
Education, and Diploma in Public Administration
from National Institute of Public Administration
(INTAN) in 1998.
She started her career as Assistant Secretary at the
Ministry of National Unity And Society Development
in 1996. She was then the Assistant Secretary at the
Selangor State Secretariat before being transferred
to the Petaling District and Land Office, Selangor as
the Assistant District Officer in 1998. She was then
promoted as Assistant Secretary, State Legislative
Assembly Division, Selangor State Secretariat
in 2004. In 2006, she assumed the post of the
Principal Assistant District Officer (Development)
and in 2008 as the Chief Assistant District Officer
(Land), Klang District and Land Office, Selangor.
In 2011, she was promoted as Deputy Director of
Lands and Mines Office, Selangor before appointed
as the Director of Penang Lands and Mines Office
in April 2016. She assumed the post of Penang
State Financial Officer on 14 October 2016.
She does not hold any ordinary shares in the
Company or its subsidiaries, has no family
relationship with any Director and / or major
shareholder of the Company and has no conflict
of interest with the Company. She has not been
convicted of any offences within the past five (5)
years and has not been imposed of any public
sanction or penalty by the relevant regulatory
bodies during the financial year 2017.
YB Dato’ Sarul Bahiyah attended all five (5) Board
Meetings held in the financial year ended 31
December 2017.
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YB TUAN LIM HOCK SENG
aged 69, male, a Malaysian citizen, is a Non-Independent and Non-Executive Director of PBA Holdings Bhd
(“PBAHB”). He was appointed to the Board of Directors of PBAHB on 16 April 2009.
Presently, he is a member of the Penang State
Legislative Assembly and also is the State Executive
Councillor in charge of Public Works, Public Utilities
and Transportation after the 2013 general election.
He obtained his Malaysia Certificate of Education
in 1967. He has more than 30 years of vast
experience in the political field after the completion
of his high school.
He does not hold any ordinary shares in the
Company or its subsidiaries, has no family
relationship with any Director and / or major
shareholder of the Company and has no conflict
of interest with the Company. He has not been
convicted of any offences within the past five (5)
years and has not been imposed of any public
sanction or penalty by the relevant regulatory
bodies during the financial year 2017.
YB Tuan Lim attended all five (5) Board Meetings
held in the financial year ended 31 December 2017.
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PBAHB Directors’ Profile (Cont’d)

YB DATO’ HAJI ABDUL MALIK BIN ABUL KASSIM
aged 64, male, a Malaysian citizen, is a Non-Independent and Non-Executive Director of PBA Holdings Bhd
(“PBAHB”). He was appointed to the Board of Directors of PBAHB on 16 December 2008.
He started his career with a Multi-National
Japanese Chemical company and thereafter
managed a number of companies including
Housing Development, Construction, Construction
Material Trading, Electrical Engineering, Food
Packing, Multi-National Electronics Co and Travel
& Tours.
He also held a Senior Technical Management
position in two International Engineering &
Construction Companies i.e. Christiani & Nielson,
UK and Boskalis International, a Dutch company for
construction of Ports and Submarine Engineering
works.
His international exposure in the Middle East started
with his engagement in Saudi Arabia in 1998 for a
year as a Business Development Manager with a
Saudi-Malaysian Company in Jeddah and Makkah.
He was also involved in a number of International
Business Development Projects in the Middle East
mainly in Saudi Arabia before being elected as a
member of the Penang State Legislative Assembly.
Presently, he is a State Executive Councillor in
charge of Religious Affairs, Domestic Trade and
Consumer Affairs. He currently also sits on the
Boards of Invest-In-Penang Berhad and Penang
Development Corporation.
He does not hold any ordinary shares in the
Company or its subsidiaries, has no family
relationship with any Director and / or major
shareholder of the Company and has no conflict
of interest with the Company. He has not been
convicted of any offences within the past five (5)
years and has not been imposed of any public
sanction or penalty by the relevant regulatory
bodies during the financial year 2017.
YB Dato’ Haji Abdul Malik attended four (4) out of
five (5) Board Meetings held in the financial year
ended 31 December 2017.
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YB TUAN PHEE BOON POH
aged 66, male, a Malaysian citizen, is a Non-Independent and Non-Executive Director of PBA Holdings Bhd
(“PBAHB”). He was appointed to the Board of Directors of PBAHB on 23 July 2014.
He studied in Sekolah Menengah St. Mark’s
Butterworth, Penang before starting his career as
a Production Supervisor from year 1970 to 1980.
He then joined his family's business - Phee Family
Group of Companies (Packaging Industry and
Properties) until 2008. From 1998 to March 2008,
he was the Chief Executive Officer.
The peak of his career started when he was
inaugurated as the Penang State Assemblyman
for Bagan Jermal in 1990 - 1995. In 2004, he was
elected as State Assemblyman for Sungai Puyu
and elected as the Leader of the Opposition State
Assemblymen. He was subsequently re-elected as
State Assemblyman in 2008 and 2013.
Presently he is the Penang Executive Councillor
for Welfare & Caring Society and Environment. He
also sits on the Board of International Environment
Technologies Centre under UNEP (United Nations
Environment Programme).
He does not hold any ordinary shares in the
Company or its subsidiaries, has no family
relationship with any Director and / or major
shareholder of the Company and has no conflict
of interest with the Company. He has not been
convicted of any offences within the past five (5)
years and has not been imposed of any public
sanction or penalty by the relevant regulatory
bodies during the financial year 2017.
YB Tuan Phee attended all five (5) Board Meetings
held in the financial year ended 31 December 2017.
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PBAHB Directors’ Profile (Cont’d)

YB TUAN CHOW KON YEOW
aged 59, male, a Malaysian citizen, is a Non-Independent and Non-Executive Director of PBA Holdings
Bhd (“PBAHB”). He was appointed to the Board of Directors of PBAHB on 22 February 2016.
He graduated from Universiti Sains Malaysia
("USM") in 1984 with Bachelor of Social Science
(Hons.) degree.
He started his political career in 1986 and was
first elected State Assemblyman for Pengkalan
Kota, Penang in 1990. He became a Member
of Parliament for Tanjong, Penang from 1999 till
2013. Since 2008, he has been appointed as State
Executive Councillor for Local Government and
Traffic Management. In 2013, he was re-appointed
as Penang Executive Councillor and with a new
portfolio of Flood Mitigation.
Currently, he is the Penang State Executive
Councillor for Local Government, Traffic
Management and Flood Mitigation. He is also the
State Assemblyman for Padang Kota, Penang.
He is a director of Penang Development Corporation
as well as the Chairman of PDC Telecommunication
Services Sdn. Bhd.
He does not hold any ordinary shares in the
Company or its subsidiaries, has no family
relationship with any Director and / or major
shareholder of the Company and has no conflict
of interest with the Company. He has not been
convicted of any offences within the past five (5)
years and has not been imposed of any public
sanction or penalty by the relevant regulatory
bodies during the financial year 2017.
YB Tuan Chow attended three (3) out of five (5)
Board Meetings in the financial year ended 31
December 2017.
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YBHG. DATO’ AGATHA FOO TET SIN
aged 58, female, a Malaysian citizen, is a Senior Independent and Non-Executive Director of PBA Holdings
Bhd (“PBAHB”). She was appointed to the Board of Directors of PBAHB on 9 June 2009. She is also a
member of the Audit and Risk Management Committee and Nomination and Remuneration Committee of
the Company.
She is presently a member of the Board of Directors
in Mount Miriam Cancer Hospital, Penang and also
an Independent and Non-Executive Director of
Elsoft Research Berhad.
She obtained her degree in law from the Australian
National University and commenced her legal
career as an Advocate and Solicitor in Canberra in
1988. She was called to the Malaysian Bar in 1990
and has more than 20 years of legal experience.
She has served in the Investigating Tribunal
Disciplinary Committee Panel of the Advocates and
Solicitors’ Disciplinary Board, the Human Rights
Committee of the Malaysian Bar Council, the Legal
Aid Committee and several other committees of
social interest groups and religious organisations.
She does not hold any ordinary shares in the
Company or its subsidiaries, has no family
relationship with any Director and / or major
shareholder of the Company and has no conflict
of interest with the Company. She has not been
convicted of any offences within the past five (5)
years and has not been imposed of any public
sanction or penalty by the relevant regulatory
bodies during the financial year 2017.
YBhg. Dato’ Agatha Foo attended all five (5) Board
Meetings held in the financial year ended 31
December 2017.
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PBAHB Directors’ Profile (Cont’d)

YBHG. DATO’ SERI NAZIR ARIFF BIN MUSHIR ARIFF
aged 72, male, a Malaysian citizen, is an Independent and Non-Executive Director of PBA Holdings Bhd
(“PBAHB”). He was appointed to the Board of Directors of PBAHB on 26 September 2013. He is a member
of the Audit and Risk Management Committee and Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the
Company.
He was the Chairman of the Malaysian International
Chamber of Commerce and Industry (Penang and
the Northern Branch) from 1988 to 2013 and is
involved with many voluntary organisations in the
State of Penang. He is the past President of Majlis
Dato – Dato’ Pulau Pinang, past President and the
founder member of Penang Heritage Trust and is
currently a member of the advisory consultant of
WWF-Malaysia. He was President of the Football
Association of Penang, from August 2013 to
February 2017.
He does not hold any ordinary shares in the
Company or of its subsidiaries, has no family
relationship with any Director and / or major
shareholder of the Company and has no conflict
of interest with the Company. He has not been
convicted of any offences within the past five (5)
years and has not been imposed of any public
sanction or penalty by the relevant regulatory
bodies during the financial year 2017.
YBhg. Dato’ Seri Nazir Ariff attended four (4) out
of five (5) Board Meetings held in the financial year
ended 31 December 2017.
He is an Accountant and is a Fellow of the
British Institute of Management. He attended
management development programmes in United
Kingdom, United States of America and Manila.
He also received intensive training at the London
Metals Exchange in London.
Currently, Dato’ Seri Nazir is the Chairman and
Executive Director of Aspen Vision Development
Sdn. Bhd. and the Executive Director of Escoy
Holdings Berhad. He is an Independent NonExecutive Director of Texchem Resources Bhd.
(“TRB”) and also the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee
and the Remuneration Committee of TRB. He is
also a director of Penang Institute and Thailand
Smelting & Refining Co. Ltd.. He was also a
select committee member of the Penang Future
Foundation and a board member of the Penang
State Museum Board.
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PUAN MARY GERALDINE PHIPPS
aged 69, female, a Malaysian citizen, is an Independent and Non-Executive Director of PBA Holdings Bhd
(“PBAHB”). She was appointed to the Board of Directors of PBAHB on 21 August 2014. She serves as
the Chairperson of the Audit and Risk Management Committee and is a member of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee of the Company.
She is a Chartered Accountant registered with the
Malaysian Institute of Accountants (MIA) of which
she is a member, having qualified as a Certified
Public Accountant under the Malaysian Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (MICPA). She is also
a Fellow of the Chartered Tax Institute of Malaysia
(CTIM).
In 1982, she was made a partner of KPMG,
specializing in taxation. In 1990, she was appointed
as Managing Partner of the Penang practice of
KPMG, a position held until her retirement on
31 December 2004. During this time, she was
also a Director of KPMG Tax Services Sdn Bhd.
Her expertise is in taxation and experience in
tax advisory and consultancy services covered
a diversified range of industries. She was a Tax/
Client Partner for multinational clients of KPMG’s
international offices with manufacturing facilities
in Penang. She currently sits on the Boards of
Oriental Holdings Berhad, SLP Resources Berhad
and Nationgate Group Berhad.
She does not hold any ordinary shares in the
Company or its subsidiaries, has no family
relationship with any Director and / or major
shareholder of the Company and has no conflict
of interest with the Company. She has not been
convicted of any offences within the past five (5)
years and has not been imposed of any public
sanction or penalty by the relevant regulatory
bodies during the financial year 2017.
Puan Mary attended all five (5) Board Meetings held
in the financial year ended 31 December 2017.
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YBHG. DATO’ BRIAN TAN GUAN HOOI
aged 48, male, a Malaysian citizen, is an Independent and Non-Executive Director of PBA Holdings Bhd
(“PBAHB”). He was appointed to the Board of Directors of PBAHB on 13 October 2015. He is a member of
the Audit and Risk Management Committee and Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company.
In April 2012, he was appointed as the President
& Group Chief Executive Officer of the ultimate
holding company of Texchem Group, Texchem
Resources Bhd.
Texchem Group has operations spanning across
the ASEAN region including China and Japan and
he is very familiar with managing businesses across
these region.
Outside his work, he is active in the field of
education and he has served in the Advisory
Panel of Curriculum for the Management School
of University of Science Malaysia from years 2003
to 2006. In 2011, he was awarded the prestigious
Lifetime Membership Award by the Asian Academy
of Management - University of Science Malaysia
in recognition for his contribution to the field of
academic development at the University. In the
same year, he was appointed as the External
Examiner from the Industry for the Graduate School
of Business (MBA School), University of Science
Malaysia. In 2013, he was appointed to the Panel
of Advisors.
He is a Chartered Accountant registered with the
Malaysian Institute of Accountants, as well as a
Certified Practicing Accountant registered with the
CPA Australia.
He is currently attached to Texchem Resources
Bhd as the President and Group Chief Executive
Officer. Prior to joining Texchem Group, he was
chosen to represent Malaysia in the Fellowship
Program of Nikko Securities Co., Ltd where he
underwent a training program in Japan. Upon his
return, in 1993 he was attached to KPMG for a
short stint before joining Texchem Corporation as a
Group Accountant. In 1995, he was transferred to
Fumakilla Malaysia Berhad (a member of Texchem
Group) where he assumed the position of Business
Manager and he moved up the ranks rapidly to the
position of President and Chief Executive Officer of
Fumakilla Malaysia Berhad in April 2004.
In 2007, he was transferred to lead the Food Division
of Texchem Group where he was appointed as the
President and Chief Executive Officer of Texchem
Food Sdn Bhd.

He does not hold any ordinary shares in the
Company or its subsidiaries, has no family
relationship with any Director and / or major
shareholder of the Company and has no conflict
of interest with the Company. He has not been
convicted of any offences within the past five (5)
years and has not been imposed of any public
sanction or penalty by the relevant regulatory
bodies during the financial year 2017.
YBhg. Dato’ Brian Tan attended four (4) out of five
(5) Board Meetings held in the financial year ended
31 December 2017.
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YBHG. DATO' SYED MOHAMAD BIN SYED MURTAZA
aged 70, male, a Malaysian citizen, is an Independent and Non-Executive Director of PBA Holdings Bhd
(“PBAHB”). He was appointed to the Board of Directors of PBAHB on 28 November 2016. He is a member
of the Audit and Risk Management Committee and Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the
Company.
He has over 47 years of vast experience in the
business, corporate and entrepreneurial exposures.
After completing his high school certificate at
Penang Free School, he then joined Kah Motors
and has since been appointed to several key
positions in various business and non-business
organisations both locally and internationally. He
has served in reputable multinational companies
such as Shell Malaysia and was the Chairman of
Penang Port Commission. He is experienced in
a diverse range of business from automotive and
manufacturing to exports, trading, property and oil
and gas.
Currently, he is the Chairman of Penang Port Sdn
Bhd, a former Director of Proton Holdings Bhd.
and Armstrong Auto Parts Sdn. Bhd. He also
heads Penang Tourist Centre Bhd, MITTAS Bhd
and the adviser of Motorcycle, Scooter Assembly
& Distributor Association of Malaysia. He is
the former Chairman of DRB-HICOM Berhad,
former President of The Federation of Asian
Motorcycle Industries and International Motorcycle
Manufacturers Association.
He is the Executive Chairman of Master-Pack
Group Berhad. He also sits on the boards of
Yayasan Bumiputra Pulau Pinang Bhd, Tourism
Entrepreneur Centre Bhd, Globetronics Technology
Bhd and several private limited companies.
He is deemed to have interest in shares of the
Company by virtue of shares held through Yayasan
Bumiputra Pulau Pinang Bhd pursuant to Section 8
of the Companies Act 2016.
He has no family relationship with any Director
and / or major shareholder of the Company and
has no conflict of interest with the Company. He
has not been convicted of any offences within the
past five (5) years and has not been imposed of any
public sanction or penalty by the relevant regulatory
bodies during the financial year 2017.
YBhg. Dato' Syed Mohamad attended all five (5)
Board Meetings held in the financial year ended 31
December 2017.
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YBHG. DATO’ SR. KUVENARAJU A/L PACHAPPEN
aged 57, male, a Malaysian citizen, is an Independent and Non-Executive Director of PBA Holdings Bhd
(“PBAHB”). He was appointed to the Board of Directors of PBAHB on 28 November 2016. He is a member
of the Audit and Risk Management Committee and Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the
Company.
He also worked as Property Manager of a
Government Training Institute and has had
experience in managing several high-rise buildings
in Kuala Lumpur and Penang. He has experience
in giving lectures on various aspects of valuation
to government officers, local authorities and
government training institutes and undergraduates
at MARA Institute of Technology. He has also
worked with the Property Services Agency (“PSA”)
in Cambridge, England as Estate Surveyor and
involved in property auctioning activities, leasing,
selling and buying of properties and other
property management work. Prior to his leaving
the government service, he was the Plant and
Machinery Valuer responsible for all plant and
machinery work in the Valuation and Properties
Services Department, Ministry of Finance, Malaysia.
He is also actively involved in multiple cultural
activities and community services in the State of
Penang.

He obtained a Master in Business Administration
(USA) and Bsc. in Estate Management (United
Kingdom) and has a Diploma in Valuation.
He is a Professional Associate Members of
Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (United
Kingdom), MRICS and a member of Royal
Institution of Surveyors (Malaysia), MRISM. He is a
Licensed Auctioneer in the State of Penang. He also
is a Chartered Valuation Surveyor and Registered
Valuer under the Board of Valuers, Appraisers and
Estate Agents, Malaysia.
Currently, he is an Executive Director of Jordan Lee
& Jaafar (Pg) Sdn. Bhd.. Prior to joining Jordan Lee
& Jaafar (Pg) Sdn. Bhd. in 1993, he had served as
a Government Valuer for 10 years in carrying out
various aspects of valuation of landed properties
and plant and machineries. During his tenure with
the government, he has served in several places
covering Penang, Seberang Perai, Kedah, Perak,
Pahang, Johor, Sarawak, Selangor and Kuala
Lumpur and gained wide knowledge on property
and machinery valuation for stamp duty, land
alienation, rating, compensation for land acquisition
and other purposes for the Federal, State and Local
Governments.

He does not hold any ordinary shares in the
Company or its subsidiaries, has no family
relationship with any Director and / or major
shareholder of the Company and has no conflict
of interest with the Company. He has not been
convicted of any offences within the past five (5)
years other than traffic offences and has not been
imposed of any public sanction or penalty by the
relevant regulatory bodies during the financial year
2017.
YBhg. Dato’ Sr. Kuvenaraju attended four (4) out
of five (5) Board Meetings held in the financial year
ended 31 December 2017.
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PBAPP’S NEW 24-HOUR CALL CENTRE

Dato’ Ir. Jaseni Maidinsa, CEO of PBAHB and
PBAPP also emphasised the 5 key reasons for
the establishment of the new PBAPP 24-hour Call
Centre :
1. Continuous improvement in customer services,
in accordance to PBAPP’s ISO 9001:2015
commitment;
2. Benchmarking the PBAPP 24-hour Call
Centre’s services to the international “Customer
Operations Performance Centre” (COPC)
standards, via the collaboration with TM ONE;
3. Continuing compliance to the key performance
indicators (KPIs) set by the National Water

Services Commission (SPAN) for attending to
customer complaints. PBAPP’s customer base
grew by 23.8%, from 476,179 registered water
consumers in 2008 to 589,797 consumers in
2016;
4. Cost savings over a 10-year period through
out-sourcing, instead of upgrading PBAPP’s
previous call centre that had been operational
in the period 2002 - 2016; and
5. Customer satisfaction through the provision of
precise and timely information to consumers,
who are likely to call PBAPP only when they
need advice, assistance or information.
Also present at the launching ceremony were
Penang Deputy Chief Minister I, YB Dato’ Haji
Mohd. Rashid bin Hasnon; Deputy Chief Minister
II, YB Prof. Dr. P. Ramasamy; State Executive
Councillors YB Tuan Lim Hock Seng, YB Dato’ Haji
Abdul Malik bin Abul Kassim and YB Tuan Phee
Boon Poh; as well as the Directors of PBA Holdings
Bhd (PBAHB) and PBAPP.

PRESS RELEASE

Penang Chief Minister YAB Tuan Lim Guan Eng
launched PBAPP’s new 24-hour Call Centre in
Komtar on 4 December, 2017. YAB Tuan Lim
congratulated PBAPP for setting up the improved
call centre that is more technologically advanced,
strategically located and cost-efficient. The new
centre is a fully out-sourced facility that is managed
by TM ONE.
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WCS:

PBAPP STILL AWAITING FEDERAL GOVERNMENT APPROVAL
FOR THE PROPOSED REVIEW OF WCS TO RM1.00 PER 1,000
LITRES (ONLY FOR DOMESTIC CONSUMPTION ABOVE 35,000 LITRES PER MONTH).
PBAPP’s initial submission to SPAN was
dated 28/4/2017.
9 re-submissions upon request from
SPAN, the latest was dated 19/3/2018.
WCS review is subject to Federal
Government approval.

By law, PBAPP’s application is subject to Federal
Government approval. The Federal Government is
responsible for approving water tariffs and water
service charges, in accordance to the SPAN Act
2006 (Act 654) and the WSIA (Water Services
Industry Act) 2006 (Act 655).

Perbadanan Bekalan Air Pulau Pinang Sdn Bhd
(PBAPP) is still awaiting Federal Government
approval for the proposed water conservation
surcharge (WCS) review in Penang... after 9 resubmissions.

The WCS is an important component of PBAPP’s
water demand management strategy; and it is
consistent with a directive from Ministry of Energy,
Green Technology and Water (KeTTHA) for Penang
to reduce its per capita domestic consumption.

On 28/4/2017, PBAPP applied to National Water
Services Commission (SPAN) to review the WCS,
from RM0.48 per 1,000 litres to RM1.00 per 1,000
litres. Please note that the WCS is only applicable
to domestic consumption above 35,000 litres per
month.

The primary objective of the WCS is to encourage
more domestic consumers in Penang to use less
than 35,000 litres of water per month.

•
•
•

Since then, SPAN has requested PBAPP to resubmit its application 9 times. The re-submissions
were dated, 23/6/2017, 8/9/2017, 25/10/2017,
20/11/2017, 8/1/2018, 15/1/2018, 5/2/2018,
14/2/2018 and 19/3/2018.

•

•

In the period 2000 – 2010, per capita domestic
consumption in Penang increased from 255
litres/capita/day (l/c/d) to 291 l/c/d. Projections
indicated that it would have reached 319 l/c/d
in 2017 without the WCS.
In 2017, the Penang’s per capita domestic
consumption was “capped” at 276 l/c/d, with
the existing RM0.48 WCS. However, 276 l/c/d

PER CAPITA DOMESTIC CONSUMPTION IN PENANG (I/c/d) and THE IMPACT OF WCS.
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DOMESTIC WATER TARIFFS (1st 35,000 litres per month) and PER CAPITA DOMESTIC
CONSUMPTION FOR 6 MALAYSIAN STATES (99% or higher water supply coverage) and
SINGAPORE.

•

is still 32% (67 l/c/d) higher than the national
average of 209 l/c/d.
In 2017, PBAPP planned to reduce Penang’s
per capita domestic consumption by 10%, to
about 257 l/c/d, with the proposed RM1.00
WCS.

PENANG STATE GOVERNMENT SUPPORT
In the initial submission and re-submissions to
SPAN, PBAPP has clarified the following facts and
figures:
•

•

•

PBAPP operates in compliance with the “No
Water Rationing” policy set by the Penang State
Government. As such, Penang’s high per capita
domestic consumption must be reduced, to
minimise the risks of water rationing during dry
seasons.
By proposing a higher WCS, PBAPP is seeking
to reduce domestic water consumption,
which accounted for 59.4% of the total water
consumption in Penang in 2016.
PBAPP has revised its capital expenditure
(capex) budget to avoid a tariff review that
would have affected 604,547 registered water
consumers.

•

The proposed WCS review will only affect
23.3% of domestic consumers who use more
than 35,000 litres of water per month. Moreover,
these domestic consumers have the option of
avoiding the WCS by simply using less than
35,000 litres of water per month.
The Penang State Government has provided
soft loans to PBAPP to finance its revised
capex budget. The State Government has
also reduced the water intake fees, payable by
PBAPP by 50%.

It should be clear that PBAPP is prioritising
domestic water conservation as a sustainable
and environment-friendly initiative in Penang, with
support from the Penang State Government.
PBAPP hopes that SPAN and KeTTHA will support
Penang’s water conservation and water demand
management efforts, by prioritising the approval of
the RM1.00 WCS proposal.

PRESS RELEASE

However, without Federal Government approval,
PBAPP cannot legally implement the RM1.00
WCS.

•
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23 April 2017
World Water Day 2017
World Water Day 2017 was held at Quarry Park,
Botanical Gardens and was officiated by Penang
Chief Minister, Tuan Lim Guan Eng. This annual
event was organised by Penang Water Watch,
with the theme “Save Water, Use It Wisely”.
The main objective of this annual event is to
continue educating school children and the
general public on the importance of water saving.
The visitors had a fun day, taking part in various
competitions and visiting the exhibition booths.

8 May 2017
Top Corporate Customers
Appreciation Event
A "Thank You" event for PBAPP’s
Top Corporate Customers was held at
Equatorial Hotel Penang, hosted by
CEO Dato' lr. Jaseni Maidinsa
together with the Division Heads,
Managers and Assistant Managers.
In his speech, Dato' lr. Jaseni
highlighted on the sustainable water
management initiatives in Penang,
specifically on "Water Saving Devices",
Aqua Save programme and
PBAPP's mobile app "myPBA".
The corporate customers were also
presented with a special plaque to
acknowledge them as PBAPP's
Top Customers.

Corporate Calendar 2017 (Cont’d)
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23 May 2017
PBAHB 17th Annual General
Meeting 2017
PBA Holdings Berhad hosted its 17th
Annual General Meeting on 23 May 2017
at the Matahari Ballroom, Equatorial Hotel.
A total of 751 shareholders, proxy holders
and guests attended the AGM.
The AGM was chaired by Penang
Chief Minister YAB Tuan Lim Guan Eng
as Chairman of PBA Group of Companies.
For the first time, electronic polling was
conducted and all shareholders and proxy
holders were given polling devices to cast
their votes.
To reward its 8,961 shareholders,
the 17th AGM approved a final dividend
of 2.25 sen per share for the financial
year ending 31 December 2016. The total
dividend payout for the year was 8.0%, an
increase of 1.0% from 2015.
Eleven resolutions were passed at the 17th
Annual General Meeting.

29 May 2017
Signing Ceremony Between
PBA Resources Sdn Bhd
and HueWACO
The Thua Thien Hue Water Supply
Joint Stock Company (HueWACO)
signed a two year consultancy
and training agreement with PBA
Resources Sdn Bhd (PBAR) on 29th
May 2017 at PBAPP Komtar, Penang.
Under this collaboration agreement,
PBAR will provide HueWACO
with the training and consultancy
services in relation to customer
service and call centre operations to
improve customer satisfaction levels,
Human Resource Development
via professional training services,
Information Technology (IT) functions
for improvements in business
processes, Financial controls,
governance and improved asset
management and the development
of a pool of in-house trainers
for HueWACO.
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31 May 2017
Champion Contingent
National Level Worker’s Day Gathering 2017
Perbadanan Bekalan Air Pulau Pinang Sdn Bhd (PBAPP)
won the title of “Champion Contingent” at the National-level
Worker's Day Gathering 2017 at the Putrajaya International
Convention Centre on 31 May, 2017
A "Thank You" event was held for the PBAPP winning
contingent and their families at Penang Tech
Dome, Komtar on 20 May 2017.

11 August 2017
PBAPP Long Service Award
A total of 42 staff were recognised for their
long service and loyalty to PBAPP, comprising
of 29 staff for “35 Years Service” and 13 staff
for “30 Years Service”. The event was held at
Hotel Jen and the awards were presented by
YB Prof. Dr. P. Ramasamy Palanisamy.
Also present at the event were Dato’ Ir. Jaseni
Maidinsa, CEO of PBAHB and PBAPP as well as
Division and Department Heads.

24 August 2017
PBAPP Wins “MSOSH Gold Award”
The Malaysian Society for Occupational Safety
and Health (MSOSH) has given Perbadanan
Bekalan Air Pulau Pinang Sdn Bhd (PBAPP)
a gold award for its achievements at the Batu
Ferringhi Water Treatment Plant (WTP)
in 2016.
PBAPP earned the “MSOSH Gold (Class II)”
award (utilities sector) for recording Zero (0)
“dangerous occurrences”, accidents and “lost
time injury” at this water treatment plant
during the year of evaluation.

Corporate Calendar 2017 (Cont’d)
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6 September 2017
PBA Group Signs MoU with
PERPAMSI, Indonesia Potable
Water Industry Association.
PBA Resources Sdn Bhd (PBAR),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of PBA
Holdings Bhd, signed a two-year MoU
with PERPAMSI which represents 436
Indonesia water utility organisations.
The MoU was signed by Bapak
Rudie Kusmayadi, the Chairman
of PERPAMSI, and Dato’ Ir. Jaseni
Maidinsa, the Chief Executive Officer
of PBAHB and Perbadanan Bekalan
Air Pulau Pinang Sdn Bhd (PBAPP).
Covering the period 2017-2019,
this MoU will facilitate collaborations
between PERPAMSI and PBAR
to develop the human resources
capacity of water utility companies
in Indonesia.

9 - 10 September 2017
Penang International Green Carnival
The Penang International Green Carnival 2017
(PIGC) was held at the Setia Spice Arena from
9 -10 September 2017. Once again with the
theme "Against Climate Change Together (ACCT)
Now", the carnival proved to be the biggest
platform for environmental education, presenting
green technologies, strategies and sustainable
practices through fun activities and exhibitions.
This year, PBAPP’s booth emphasised on
"Water Saving Awareness” and was the People's
Choice as the "Top Exhibitor''.
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16 September 2017
60th National Day Parade,
Penang State Level
On August 31, 2017, 65 staff members
from various departments participated
with great enthusiasm to once again carry
the name PBAPP in the parade held at
the Esplanade, Penang. The PBAPP
contingent was announced as Champion
in the “Private Sector and NGO Category”
march at the closing ceremony on
16 September, 2017, graced by TYT Tun
Data' Seri Utama (Dr.) Haji Abdul Rahman
Bin Haji Abbas, Governor of Penang.

18 - 21 September 2017
JTJAD EXCO Meeting
PBAPP, via the Executive Association
was honoured to host the Jawatan
Kuasa Tindakan Jurutera Air Daerah
(JTJAD) Exco Meeting Bil 14 Sessi
2014/2017. The meeting is a quarterly
event where the Committee Members
of the Malaysian water engineers
body meet and discuss the pressing
water supply issues in Malaysia,
upcoming events and all other
related matters.

13 October 2017
International Greentech &
Eco Products Exhibition &
Conference Malaysia
(IGEM) 2017
PBAPP won the “Innovation Award
Runner-Up” trophy for its “Conversion
of Sungai Dua Water Treatment Plant
Residue into Clay Bricks” project at
the “International Greentech & Eco
Products Exhibition & Conference
Malaysia (IGEM) 2017” event at the
Kuala Lumpur Convention Centre
(KLCC) on 13 October 2017.
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5 November 2017
PBAPP & Water Regiment
Personnel Pitch In To Help
Flood Victims
An emergency water aid operation
to help victims of the flash floods
that hit Penang on 5 September
was undertaken by a team of PBAPP
personnel from 60 Water Specialist
Regiment and Royal Army Engineers
Regiment (Reserved) Penang Squadron.
The team supplied water from water tankers
and helped to clean up affected schools
and public areas at the flood-hit places.
On 11 November 2017, a team of PBAPP
personnel from Operations Department
also lent a helping hand during
"Hari Sukarelawan Penang Bangkit" at
Kawasan Padang Lalang and Patani Road.

11 November 2017
Teluk Bahang Dam
Tree Planting
PBAPP took part in the
"Program Penanaman Pokok Ameniti
Terbanyak Dalam Tempoh 24 Jam”,
by planting new trees at the scenic
Teluk Bahang Dam. The project was
spearheaded by MBPP and many
government agencies, corporate
companies and NGOs also took part.
PBAPP CEO Dato lr. Jaseni Maidinsa
led the PBAPP team in planting
30 Tacoma trees. This is also in line
with PBAPP's efforts to help build a
Cleaner, Greener Penang.
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23 November 2017
Aqua Save Re-Certification
The Aqua Save Programme
is an initiative of PBAPP, in
collaboration with the Penang State
Government, to award industries
and organisations which are
committed in water conservation
activities. The programme is open
to business and non-business
organisations industries in Penang
to create awareness on the
important role that the commercial
and industrial sectors have in
securing water supplies.
In 2017, eleven (11) organisations
were successful in their
applications for the renewal of
their Aqua Save certifications
and were rewarded with cash
incentives at the Green Pinang
2017 Awards Dinner.

23 November 2017
Penang Green Office Award

2016 - 2018
• KOMTAR Customer Care Centre
• Bayan Baru Customer Care Centre
2017 - 2019
• Bukit Mertajam Customer Care Centre
• Taman Selat Customer Care Centre
• PBA Central Laboratory, Sungai Dua Water
Treatment Plant
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28 November 2017
Champion,
Penang State Innovation Award
(Non-ICT Category)
PBAPP’s “green” project won the
Penang State Innovation Award 2016
(Non-ICT Category) on 28 November 2017.
The waste recycling project involves
the conversion of water treatment plant
residue at the Sungai Dua Water
Treatment Plant (Sungai Dua WTP)
into a value-added material that
may be used in clay brick production.

1 December 2017
Best Contingent at Maulidur Rasul 1439
Celebration Parade
PBAPP won Best Contingent at the Penang Statelevel Maulidur Rasul 1439 Celebration Parade held
on 1 December 2017.
The contingent was led by Human Resource
Division Head, En. Mohamad Zulkifli Abdul Hamid.
The significant event in the Islamic calendar
was held at Seberang Perai Selatan.
This year, PBAPP was chosen the
Best Contingent, bagging home a trophy,
a certificate and cash worth RM1,000.
This year's celebration was officiated
by YB Dato' Haji Mohd. Rashid Hasnon. Also
present, State EXCO YB Dato' Haji Abdul Malik
Abul Kassim and Penang State Secretary,
Dato' Seri Farizan Darus.
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8 December 2017
PBAPP Central Water Laboratory
Wins IKM Excellence Award 2017
PBAPP’s Central Water Laboratory
received the “IKM Laboratory Excellence
Award 2017” from Institut Kimia Malaysia
(IKM-Malaysian Institute of Chemistry)
on 8 December 2017 at the Sime Darby
Convention Centre, Kuala Lumpur.
IKM hands out the award exclusively
to laboratories that “comply with the
MS ISO/IEC 17025:2005 accreditation
and that have achieved competency
in the practice of analytical work”.
PBAPP’s Central Water Laboratory is
accredited to MS ISO/IEC 17025:2005,
the Laboratory Accreditation Scheme of
Malaysia (SAMM), for the testing of raw
water, settled water and treated water.

20 December 2017
Best Department
Achievement Incentive
(Insentif Pencapaian
Terbaik Jabatan)
PBAPP received the “Best
Department Achievement Incentive”
(Insentif Pencapaian Terbaik Jabatan)
from YAB Tuan Lim Guan Eng at the
Majlis Perhimpunan Penjawat Awam
Negeri Bersama YAB Ketua Menteri
Pulau Pinang.
The award was in recognition of
PBAPP’s achievements in 2017 :
• MSHOH Gold Awards 2017
• IGEM Innovation Award 2017 1st Runner Up
• Penang Innovation Award 2016
(Non-ICT Category)
• IKM Excellence Award 2017

PBA Holdings Bhd
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13 March 2018
PBAPP Lights Up The
Bukit Dumbar Recreation Park
PBAPP invested a total of RM319,000 in this corporate
social responsibility, or CSR, project at the Bukit Dumbar
Recreational Park.
Upgrading works included :
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Installation of 6 units of 140W LED
lights on 14-metre light poles;
Installation of 25 units of 65W LED
lights on 6-metre light poles;
Rectification and re-surfacing of road unevenness;
Refurbishment of a reservoir top jogging track; and
Repairs on playground equipment.

15 March 2018
Penang CM Opens Penang
Water Supply Command Centre
Penang Chief Minister YAB Tuan Lim Guan Eng
officiated the soft opening of Phase 1 of Penang
Water Supply Command Centre (PWSCC) at the
Sungai Dua Water Treatment Plant on 15 March
2018. The PWSCC is equipped with state-ofthe-art data server; a command centre software
system; a 10-screen video wall; hardware and
software to monitor electronic data from key
treated water installations.

19 March 2018
Completed Package 1 of
Penang’s New Twin Submarine
Pipeline Project
PBAPP has completed Package 1 of the new
Butterworth-Penang Island Twin Submarine Pipeline
Project, costing RM9.2 million, ensuring no water
rationing in Penang for the next 10 years. Penang
Chief Minister YAB Tuan Lim Guan Eng was at the
site recently to commemorate the completion of
Package 1.
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SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT 2017

PBAHB's commitment has been clearly
demonstrated in various initiatives we have rolled
out over the decades.

PROVIDING CONTINUOUS AND GOOD
WATER SUPPLY COVERAGE TO
PENANG CONSUMERS

Water is essential for life everywhere, every day.
We have the primary corporate social responsibility
(CSR) to provide 100% urban water supply
coverage and 99.8% rural water supply coverage
in Penang.
It is indeed a very significant achievement to be
able to achieve this level, taking into consideration
that the population in Penang in 2017 was 1.76
million. In 2017, the water consumption was 826.3
million litres per day as compared to 826.8 million
liters per day in 2016.

The PBA Holdings Bhd (PBAHB) Group is mindful
that it has the responsibility to address the rights
of the stakeholders and safeguard their interests.
As the PBAHB Group moves from merely
philanthropic activities towards sustainability, the
Group will improve on how it can add further value
in managing the risks and opportunities related to
the aspects of economic, environment and social
(EES) issues.
These three aspects of sustainability, namely
EES, are not key financial drivers but over the last
decades, they have become increasingly important
to investors and customers alike.
The PBAHB Group recognizes that investors
expect corporations, in undertaking business
operations for profitability, would at the same time
generate economic value for its stakeholders while
ensuring that their business practices preserve the
environmental for future generations and also add
value to society.

We strive to maintain the lowest domestic water
tariff in Malaysia so water supply is accessible to as
many household as possible. Our domestic water
tariffs for consumption of up to 35,000 liters per
month are still the lowest in Malaysia, because the
tariffs are subsidized.
The Penang Chief Minister, YAB Tuan Lim Guan Eng
has repeatedly stressed that Penang has to “avoid
water rationing at all costs”. Thus, the Penang State
Government expects more Penang consumers to
develop the “habit” of saving water to avoid water
rationing in this age of climate change.
PBAPP’s mission is to continue supplying water to
as many Penang residents as possible every day,
especially those in the lower income group.

SUPPORT FOR THE NEEDY AND
RELIGIOUS INSTITUTIONS

For the benefit of very low-income households
in Penang, PBAPP has been providing “interestfree loans” and tariff rebates for water supply
connections.

Sustainability Statement 2017 (CONT’D)

Under the “Kampung Loans” programme, 90
households received interest-free loans totalling
RM133,870 from PBAPP for water connections in
2017. The maximum income of these households
was RM1,000 per month; and they were eligible for
interest-free loans of up to RM1,500 each, payable
by installments via water bills. PBAPP also waived
trunk mains contributions for these “kampong
loan” connections.
Under its Projek Perumahan Rakyat Termiskin
programme, PBAPP provided two categories of
support to 199 households totalling RM16,482 in
2017. The monthly income of these households was
not more than RM770 per month. The beneficiaries
were recommended by the Penang State Welfare
Office or District Offices and endorsed by the State
Economic Planning Unit.
The first category is for qualified premises without
existing water connections, where one free
connection is provided, from the main pipeline to
the premise, to one tap.
The second category, for qualified premises with
existing water connections, PBAPP provided a
water bill rebate for consumption of up to 60,000
liters every two months (1 cycle). At the current
tariff rate, the rebate is up to maximum of RM18
per billing cycle of two months.
Besides the two categories, PBAPP has also
provided water rebates for Places of Worship since
March 2009. In 2017, 1,788 places of worship
which consists of mosques, surau, churches,
Chinese and Hindu temples were given rebates
amounting to RM71,080.

HOUSEHOLDS OF EIGHT PERSON
AND MORE GET 60% WATER
CONSERVATION SURCHARGE
(WCS) REBATE

Large households of 8 persons or more can apply
for the 60% WCS discount. Customers who want
to apply may obtain the application forms from
PBAPP’s nine Customer Care Centres in all five
districts in the state.
As of 31 December 2017, 875 applications were
approved with rebates totalling RM114,751.

WATER AWARENESS AND
CONSERVATION

As Penang is a water-stressed state with limited raw
water resources and unlimited potential for growth,
the subsidiary company, Perbadanan Bekalan Air
Pulau Pinang Sdn Bhd (PBAPP) promotes wise
usage of water in households.

PBA Holdings Bhd
(515119-U)

Annual Report
2017

Penang is the first state to introduce Water
Conservation Surcharge (WCS) as one of the efforts
to curb excessive use of tap water by domestic
consumers. It aims to encourage households to
reduce their per capita domestic consumption
which was 302 liters per capita per day (lcd) in
2013. With population growth, this high level of
domestic water consumption is not sustainable.
Starting 1 November 2013, the WCS was increased
from RM0.24 per 1,000 litres for usage of more
than 35,000 litres a month to RM0.48, as domestic
per capita daily usage had increased to a record
high of 302 lcd in June 2013.
In 2017, domestic per capita daily usage was
reduced to 276 lcd, from 286 lcd in 2016.
PBAPP’s sustainable water supply programme
in 2017 included the sponsorship of projects
undertaken by Water Watch Penang (WWP) to
promote water awareness and conservation. WWP
is a non-government organization and carries out
projects that help to focus public attention on the
urgent need to save water at home.
PBAPP provided a grant of RM75,000 to WWP in
2017.
Top on WWP’s annual calendar is the
commemoration of World Water Day in Penang.
Since 1999, PBAPP has been actively supporting
and participating in this event that highlights the
latest information and trends related to water
saving in Penang and all over the world.
PBAPP also took part in water conservation
campaigns at schools, International GreenTech &
Eco Products Exhibition & Conference Malaysia
(IGEM) 2017 at the Kuala Lumpur Convention
Centre (KLCC) and the Penang Green Carnival
2017 held at the SPICE Arena.

AQUA SAVE PROGRAMME

This programme was established to inspire and
encourage Penangites to conserve Penang’s
scarce water resources and contribute towards
Penang’s water sustainability. It is a comprehensive
initiative to reduce water usage.
The scheme is implemented through certification
that recognises the water efficiency of an
organisation. The certificate will be issued annually.
Organisations which manage to maintain their
efforts and have been awarded with the certificate
for two (2) consecutive years will be recognised
with a special incentive/reward upon their
re-certification.
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The programme is open to all organisations and
industries in Penang who are large water users, i.e.
companies, industrial institutions, hotels, education
institutions, government departments, and any
other business and non-business organisations.
To date, PBAPP has certified 39 successful Aqua
Save organisations.

WATER BILL DISCOUNT IN SUPPORT
OF “PULAU PINANG BANGKIT”

PBAPP discounted all Penang water bills for
one billing cycle, in support of the Penang State
Government’s “Pulau Pinang Bangkit” flood relief
efforts in November 2017. This caring gesture cost
PBAPP approximately RM16.6 million in revenue
but it was well appreciated.

MANDATORY INSTALLATION OF WATER
SAVING DEVICES (WSDs) IN ALL NEW
DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS IN PENANG

On 28 November 2017, the Penang State
Executive Council meeting approved the proposal
of mandatory installation of WSDs in all new
development projects in Penang to be incorporated
under the Uniform Building By-Law (State of
Penang) 1986.
Following the incorporation into the by-laws, the
Penang City Council (MBPP) and the Seberang
Prai Municipal Council (MPSP) may then enforce
this regulation that promotes water saving on a
large-scale and long-term basis in Penang.
Penang must continue to avoid a water crisis and
sustain water supply sufficiency.
The installation of WSDs will promote a water saving
culture in Penang “automatically“. The people
and businesses can actively contribute towards
water conservation, without major adjustments to
routines and lifestyles.

SQUASH DEVELOPMENT IN PENANG

The PBAHB Group of Companies has always been
very supportive in the development of Squash
in Penang. It started with the building of the
International Squash Centre which is now known
as the Nicol David International Squash Centre
(NDISC) in 1985. Since then, PBA continues to
assist in the maintenance and upgrading works to
ensure the centre is in good condition as a training
ground and also to host international events.
In 2017 the company sponsored the PBA Penang
International Junior Squash Open Championship.

SUPPORTING PENANG STATE EVENTS

PBAPP also supported the Georgetown Festival
2017, a month-long celebration of the inscription
of George Town on the UNESCO World Heritage
Listing on 7th July, 2008. An annual event, the
Festival is a feast of theatre, music, dance, film, art,
opera, food, fashion, photography, and inspirational
talks.

INTERNATIONAL DRAGON BOAT
FESTIVAL

PBAHB also supported the 38th Penang
International Dragon Boat Festival held on 2nd 3rd December 2017 which attracted more than
2,000 dragon boat rowers from Australia, China,
Guam, Hong Kong, Indonesia, Macau, Malaysia,
Philippines, Singapore and the UAE. This event was
held at the Teluk Bahang Dam and is a mainstay in
Penang’s annual sporting and cultural calendar. It is
a big tourist attraction and is recognised as a major
state tourism event.
GOING FORWARD
The PBA Group shall develop an approach
to Sustainability to ensure a more holistic and
integrated manner moving forward. This may
involve developing new policies and procedures,
implementing
various
initiatives,
measures
and action plans, setting indicators, goals and
targets as well as reviewing existing systems that
capture, analyze and report sustainability data and
information.
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WATER SUPPLY COMMAND CENTRE

Penang Chief Minister YAB Tuan Lim Guan Eng
officiated the soft opening of Phase 1 of Penang
Water Supply Command Centre (PWSCC) at the
Sungai Dua Water Treatment Plant on 15/3/2018.

Remote data from all Penang water treatment
plants, pump houses, treated water reservoirs
and pressure sensors at major pipelines is being
transmitted to the command centre on a 24/7
basis daily.
Phase 1 of the PWSCC enables:
•

Collection and integration of key data from all
PBAPP electronic monitoring systems installed
in various locations in the State of Penang;

•

Comprehensive, convenient and real-time
review, monitoring and analysis of water
supply operations in one location;

Predictive detection and automatic system
alerts of possible water supply issues; and

•

Improved non-revenue water (NRW) or water
loss management.

PBAPP decided to set up the PWSCC after studying
similar command centres that have been set up in
Kuala Lumpur, Bangkok and Tokyo. Phase 1 of the
PWSCC was developed at a cost of RM6.1 million.
Phase 2 will widen the scope of the PWSCC’s
operations to include monitoring of more points
in Penang’s water supply network; a pilot study
on water network optimisation and advanced
underground pipe leakage detection technology.
Phase 2 is scheduled for commissioning by 2019.
The PWSCC is another key initiative by PBAPP to
facilitate Penang's "No Water Rationing" policy.

PRESS RELEASE

Set up by Perbadanan Bekalan Air Pulau Pinang
Sdn Bhd (PBAPP), the PWSCC is equipped with
state-of-the-art data server; a command centre
software system; a 10-screen video wall; hardware
and software to monitor electronic data from key
treated water installations.

•

71

72

AWARDS & CERTIFICATIONS

Anugerah Kualiti
Year : 1991
Awarded By : Ketua Pengarah MAMPU

Anugerah Pejabat Terbaik
Negeri Pulau Pinang
Year : 1991
Awarded By : Kerajaan Negeri
Pulau Pinang

Anugerah Khas
Perkhidmatan Awam
Anugerah Pengurusan
Kewangan

Anugerah Khas
Perkhidmatan Awam
Anugerah Pengurusan
Teknologi Maklumat

Year : 1992
Awarded By : JPA

Year : 1993
Awarded By : JPA

Anugerah Kualiti
Ketua Menteri Pulau Pinang

MWA Outstanding
Water Award for
Management 2001

Year : 1993
Awarded By : Kerajaan Negeri
Pulau Pinang

Year : 2001
Awarded By : The Malaysian
Water Association

Silver Award - OSH Awards

Gold (Class II) OSH Awards

Year : 2001
Awarded By : Malaysian Society for
Occupational Safety & Health

Year : 2006
Awarded By : Malaysian Society for
Occupational Safety & Health

ISO 14001 : 2015
Environmental Management
System Certification
ISO 9001 : 2015
Quality Management
System Certification

Treatment and Supply of Potable Water
with Provision of Customer Services
Obtained Since : 2003
Accredited By : SIRIM QAS International

Management and Treatment
of Raw Water and Supply of
Potable Water

• PBAPP (Headquater) KOMTAR
• Batu Ferringhi Water Treatment Plant
• Teluk Bahang Dam
• Waterfall Water Treatment Plant
• Air Itam Water Treatment Plant
Obtained Since : 2005
Accredited By : SIRIM QAS International
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OHSAS 18001 : 2007
OHS Management
System Certification

MS ISO/IEC 17025 : 2005

Treatment and Supply of Potable Water
with Provision of Customer Services

Competent Testing
PBA Laboratory Sungai Dua
Water Treatment Plant

Obtained Since : 2006
Accredited By : SIRIM QAS International

Obtained Since : 2008
Accredited by : Standard Malaysia

MS/ISO/IEC 27001 : 2013
2011 International Award for Best
Water Operator Partnership

Information Security Management System
for the Management and Treatment of
Potable Water at Sungai Dua Water
Treatment Plant

Year : 2011
Awarded By : WaterLinks

Obtained Since : 2013
Accredited By : SIRIM QAS International

2011 WaterLinks Award

CAFEO 33 Award
Inaugural KIA Awards
• Water Services Operator
of the Year
• Efficiency Award

ASEAN Outstanding Engineering
Achievement Award 2015
- PBAPP Sungai Dua Water
Treatment Plant

ASEAN Outstanding Engineering
Achievement Award 2015
- Dato’ Ir. Jaseni Maidinsa
Year : 2015
Awarded By :
ASEAN Federation of
Engineering Organisations

Year : 2013
Awarded By :
Ministry of Energy,
Green Technology & Water

Penang Green Office Award
Year : 2016
• KOMTAR Customer Care Centre
• Bayan Baru Customer Care Centre
Year : 2017
• Bukit Mertajam Customer Care Centre
• Taman Selat Customer Care Centre
• PBA Central Laboratory,
Sungai Dua Water Treatment Plant
Awarded by : Penang Green Council

MSOSH Gold (Class II) Award
for Batu Feringghi Water Treatment Plant.
Year : 2016
Awarded by : Malaysian Society for
Occupational Safety & Health

Champion Contingent
National Level Worker’s Day
Gathering 2017
Year : 2017
Awarded by : Ministry of Human Resources

Champion Contingent
Private Sector & NGOs Category
Penang State Level 60th National Day March
Year : 2017
Awarded by : Penang State Government
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“Innovation Award”
1st Runner-Up
“Conversion of
Sungai Dua Water Treatment
Plant Residue into Clay Bricks”.
Year : 2017
Awarded by : International Greentech
& Eco Products Exhibition & Conference
Malaysia (IGEM) 2017.

Champion Contingent
Maulidur Rasul
Celebration Event
Penang State Level
Year : 2017
Awarded by :
Penang State Government

Best Department Achievement
Incentive (Insentif Pencapaian
Terbaik Jabatan)
Year : 2017
Awarded by : Penang State Government

Innovation Award 2016
(Non-ICT Category)
Champion
“Conversion of Sungai Dua
Water Treatment Plant Residue
into Clay Bricks”.
Year : 2017
Awarded by : Penang State Government

IKM Excellence Award 2017
for Central Water Laboratory,
Sungai Dua Water Treatment
Plant.
Year : 2017
Awarded by : Institute Kimia Malaysia
(Malaysian Institute of
Chemistry)
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3RD SUBMARINE PIPELINE PROJECT

PBAPP has completed Package 1 of the new
Butterworth-Penang Island Twin Submarine
Pipeline Project.

Macallum area in George Town has been
completed at a cost of about RM9.2 million.
Package 2A and 2B involves the laying
of 0.8km of 1,800mm land pipelines in
Butterworth. Work has commenced and
PBAPP is awaiting approval from the MPSP,
LLM and KTMB to carry out works at several
locations. The combined projected cost for
Package 2A and 2B is RM15.2 million.

•

Efficient delivery of more treated water from
the Sungai Dua Water Treatment Plant to
Penang Island, in order to address future
water demand;

•

Package 3 will see the laying of 3.2km of
1,200mm twin submarine pipelines from
Butterworth to the Macallum area on Penang
Island. The open tender is scheduled to be
called by May 2018.

•

Replacement of the first twin submarine
pipeline that was commissioned in 1973 (45
years old); and

•

Ensuring that Penang lives up to its “No Water
Rationing” policy in the future, for the benefit
of the people and thousands of businesses on
the island.

Penang's 3rd Submarine Pipeline Project is being
developed in 3 packages:
•

Package 1, which encompasses the laying
of 0.9km of 1,800mm land pipelines in the

When completed, the new Butterworth-Penang
Twin Submarine Pipeline will deliver up to 315
MLD (million litres per day) of treated water from
the Sungai Dua WTP to PBAPP’s pump houses
and treated water reservoirs at Bukit Dumbar on
Penang Island. The treated water will then be
re-pumped to water consumers throughout the
southern parts of Penang Island, as well as Balik
Pulau.

PRESS RELEASE

•
Penang Chief Minister YAB Tuan Lim Guan Eng
said the key rationale for this RM125 million new
submarine pipeline project were:
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PBAPP BOARD OF DIRECTORS

YAB TUAN LIM GUAN ENG
Non-Executive Chairman
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YB DATO’ HAJI MOHD RASHID BIN HASNON
Non-Executive Deputy Chairman
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YB PROF. DR. P. RAMASAMY A/L PALANISAMY
Non-Executive Director

YB DATO’ SERI FARIZAN BIN DARUS
Non-Executive Director
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PBAPP Board of Directors (Cont’d)

YB DATO’ SARUL BAHIYAH BINTI ABU
Non-Executive Director

YB TUAN NG WEI AIK
Non-Executive Director

YB TUAN LIM HOCK SENG
Non-Executive Director
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YB TUAN SIM TZE TZIN
Non-Executive Director

YB TUAN YEOH SOON HIN
Non-Executive Director

YB TUAN SANISVARA NETHAJI RAYER A/L RAJAJI
Non-Executive Director
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REDUCE 10% OF YOUR
DOMESTIC WATER CONSUMPTION

1. Support the Penang State Government and PBAPP’s aim to always avoid water rationing, especially
during extended dry seasons.
2. Ensure that Penang stays green and healthy, with a vibrant economy.
3. Be more environment-friendly by discharging less wastewater.
4. Reduce the domestic water subsidy so that PBAPP may have enough funds to implement projects for
our future, and for the benefit of our children and grandchildren.
5. ‘Buy time’ for Penang until the Federal Government hands over the Mengkuang Dam Expansion
Project and implements the Sungai Perak Raw Water Transfer Scheme.
6. Pay less for your bi-monthly water bill.

PBA Holdings Bhd
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READY TO TAKE BACK MENGKUANG DAM

Penang is ready to take back the expanded 73.5
billion litre Mengkuang Dam from the Ministry of
Energy, Green Technology and Water (KeTTHA),
with certain conditions:

2.

3.

4.

KeTTHA will allocate RM100 million for the
construction of a new barrage across Sungai
Muda at Rantau Panjang, Seberang Prai Utara.
KeTTHA will construct the originally specified
RM80 million Lahar Yooi Pump House under
its “Rolling Plan 4”. Without this pump house,
it will take a long time to fill and refill the
expanded Mengkuang Dam.
KeTTHA will complete the originally specified
RM100 million raw water pipeline project from
the newly upgraded Mak Sulong Pump House
in Seberang Prai Tengah to the Sungai Dua
Canal by March 2020. This pipeline, which
will be 6.85km long and with a diameter of 1.6
metres, is necessary for the efficient transfer
of raw water from the dam to the Sungai Dua
Water Treatment Plant.
KeTTHA will bear the raw water pumping costs
at the Mak Sulong Pump House to completely
fill up the Mengkuang Dam.

KeTTHA will be responsible for the structural
integrity of the expanded Mengkuang Dam
until it is filled and tested at its highest level of
55 metres. As such, KeTTHA must bear the
costs of appointing a contractor to take on
rectification works if any defects are detected.

6.

KeTTHA will hand over the entire Mengkuang
Dam Expansion Project (MDEP) project site,
together with the newly upgraded Mak Sulong
Pump House, to Penang.

7.

KeTTHA will coordinate, facilitate and mediate
talks between Penang and Perak on the
proposed Sungai Perak Raw Water Transfer
Scheme (SPRWTS). The SPRWTS is urgently
needed to ensure water security for both
states until Year 2050.

8.

KeTTHA will undertake to repair all slopes
at the dam site, following landslides that
occurred on-site in the period September –
November 2017.

9.

KeTTHA will undertake to rectify the grass
cover on the berms of the dam.

PRESS RELEASE

1.

5.
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PBAHB TOP MANAGEMENT

DATO' Ir. JASENI BIN MAIDINSA
Group Chief Executive Officer

Ir. CHONG MENG CHOON

DR. MARY ANN HARRIS

Group Chief Operating Officer
Head of Water Operations Division

Group Chief Financial Officer
Head of Finance Division

ENCIK MOHAMMAD
ZULKIFLI BIN ABDUL HAMID
Head of Human Resource Division

PUAN JOYCE LEE SUAN IMM
Head of Corporate Affairs Division

PBAHB Top Management (Cont’d)
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Ir. CHONG MENG CHOON

DR. MARY ANN HARRIS

Ir. Chong Meng Choon, aged 58, male, a Malaysian
Citizen, was appointed as Group Chief Operating
Officer on 1 March 2015.

Dr. Mary Ann Harris, aged 50, female, a Malaysian
Citizen, was appointed as Group Chief Financial
Officer on 1 July 2014. As Group Chief Financial
Officer, she is tasked with the effective financial and
risk management, as well corporate governance of
the company.

Ir. Chong Meng Choon holds a B.E (Hons) Civil
Engineering Degree from Monash University (1984)
and a Diploma in Management (Merit) from the
Malaysian Institute of Management (1988). He is
a registered Professional Engineer with the Board
of Engineers, Malaysia (BEM). He was actively
involved with The Institution of Engineers Malaysia
(Northern Branch) from 1996 till 2002 where he
was the Vice Chairman. He was also the Chairman
of Koperasi Pekerja PBA Berhad.

Dr. Mary Ann holds a Bachelor of Accounting (Hons)
degree from University of Malaya and earned her
MBA at Universiti Utara Malaysia. She received her
Doctorate of Business Administration (DBA) from
Universiti Sains Malaysia in 2008.

He has been serving in PBAPP/PBA since 1984.
He has previously held the positions of Production
Engineer,
Distribution
Engineer,
Consumer
Engineer, Assistant Manager for Operations for
Seberang Perai, Assistant Manager for Strategic
Planning and Manager for Planning & Development.

As a Chartered Accountant, Dr. Mary Ann has
nearly 26 years of experience in public practice,
industry and commerce. She was previously the
General Manager of a hotel, which she led to win
the best 4 star award (Top 5) in the Hospitality Asia
Platinum Awards (2013 — 2015). She was elected
the Chairman of the Malaysian Association of
Hotels — Penang Chapter for two terms.

He does not hold any ordinary shares in the
Company or its subsidiaries, has no family
relationship with any Director and/or major
shareholder of the Company and has no conflict
of interest with the Company. He has not been
convicted of any offences within the past five (5)
years and has not been imposed of any public
sanction or penalty by the relevant regulatory
bodies during the financial year 2017.

She does not hold any ordinary shares in the
Company or its subsidiaries, has no family
relationship with any Director and/or major
shareholder of the Company and has no conflict
of interest with the Company. She has not been
convicted of any offences within the past five (5)
years and has not been imposed of any public
sanction or penalty by the relevant regulatory
bodies during the financial year 2017.
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PBAPP SENIOR MANAGEMENT TEAM

Front row (left to right) :

Back row (left to right) :

PUAN JOYCE LEE SUAN IMM
Head of Corporate Affairs Division

PUAN MARIAM BINTI
ABDUL KADIR
Head of Department,
Production

Ir. MOHD JASNI
BIN ABDULLAH
Head of Department,
Facilities

ENCIK MOHD. NIZAM
BIN OMAR
Head of Department,
Customer Service

ENCIK SHANMUGA
SUNDARAM A/L
MURUGASON
Head of Department,
Internal Audit

Ir. CHONG MENG CHOON
Chief Operating Officer
Head of Water Operations Division

DATO' Ir. JASENI
BIN MAIDINSA
Chief Executive Officer
DR. MARY ANN HARRIS
Chief Financial Officer
Head of Finance Division
ENCIK MOHD ZULKIFLI BIN
ABDUL HAMID
Head of Human Resource
Division

ENCIK KHOR SOON SENG
Head of Department,
Operations
ENCIK MOHAMED ABDULLAH
BIN TAJUDIN
Head of Department, Finance
ENCIK TEO KAH CHEONG
Head of Department,
Human Resource
Ir. JAMIL BIN MOHD NOOR
Head of Department,
Planning & Development

ENCIK MAK KOK YUN
Head of Department,
Quality, Safety & Health
PUAN SITI SUBAYDA
BINTI S.M. MYDIN
Head of Department,
Information Technology
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Sustainable water supply management solutions for developing countries should
be based on the needs, environment and mindset of developing countries.
The Penang Water Services Academy (PWSA) was set up in 2007 by the PBAHB
Group of Companies, which has been meeting all the water supply needs of
Penang. As a Malaysian academy, we understand the challenge of walking the
thin line between the long-term availability of water and its affordability.
The training that we provide is based on our hands-on experiences in Malaysia,
China and Indonesia. We can help train your employees to implement
sustainable water supply management technologies, methodologies and
programmes that are suited to your local environment.

Level 32, KOMTAR, Jalan Penang, 10000 Georgetown, Pulau Pinang.
Call Centre (24 hours): 04-255 8 255 | Email: customer@pba.com.my | Website: pwsa.com.my
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PENANG STATE WATER SUPPLY
STATISTICS 2017
Area of Penang State

1,048 sq. km

Population

1.76 million people

Number of Registered Consumers

Domestic

: 518,001

Trade

: 86,546

Total

: 604,547

Water Catchment Area

62.9 sq. km

Total Manpower

1,332

Number of Dams

4

Total Raw Water Storage Capacity

45,758 million litres

Number of Treatment Plants

9

Designed Capacity of Treatment Plants

1,617.1 million litres /day

Number of Customer Care Centres

9

Number of Treated Water Reservoirs

58

Number of Treated Water Towers

43

Number of Booster Pump Stations

90

Total Length of Pipes (100 mm and above)

4,482 km

Daily Supply of Treated Water

1,057.7 million litres / day

Daily Water Consumption

826.3 million litres / day

Percentage of Non-Revenue Water

21.9%

Domestic Consumption Per Capita

276 litres / person / day
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WATER TREATMENT PROCESS

Raw Water

Storage

Treatment

Service Reservoir

Treated Water Pumps

• Screening
• Addition of Chemicals
• Mixing
• Flocculation & Coagulation
• Sedimentation
• Filtration
• Clear Water Tank

Supply to
Consumers
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION &
ANALYSIS (MDA) 2017
PBA Holdings Bhd (PBAHB) is a public company that is listed on the Main Board of the Malaysian Bourse
(Bursa Malaysia). PBAHB’s principal wholly owned subsidiary is Perbadanan Bekalan Air Pulau Pinang Sdn
Bhd (PBAPP), the licensed water operator that serves the State of Penang in Malaysia.
KEY WATER SUPPLY METRICS
Water supply being an essential public service, PBAPP focused on supplying water consistently and
continuously to 604,547 registered water consumers in 2017, as compared to 589,797 consumers in 2016.
Year-on-year, the percentage growth in water consumers served was 2.5%. In 2017, PBAPP’s customer
base comprised 518,001 domestic consumers (85.7%) and 86,546 trade consumers (14.3%).
PBAPP sustained 100% urban water supply and 99.8% rural water supply. In comparison, the national
average* was 97.2% urban supply coverage and 93.5% rural supply coverage.
In terms of treated water production, PBAPP treated a total of 386,051,597 cubic metres (cu.m., with 1
cu.m. being equivalent to 1,000 litres) of water in 2017, as compared to 385,641,348 cubic metres in 2016.
These statistics represent a marginal increase of 0.1% in water production year-on-year.
Metered water consumption was recorded as 301,617,186 cu.m. in 2017 as compared to 302,626,681
cu.m. in 2016, reflecting a marginal decrease of 0.3% year-on-year. Subsidised domestic consumption
decreased by 3,752,430 cu.m. (-1.2%) while non-subsidised trade consumption increased by 2,742,935
cu.m. (0.9%) year-on-year, reflecting a measure of success in PBAPP’s domestic water conservation efforts
as well as growth in economic activities.
There were no incidences of water rationing in Penang in 2017. In terms of supply duration, PBAPP
continued to sustain 24-hour supply on a daily basis, in support of household needs as well as business
activities such as the provision of services, high-tech manufacturing and tourism.
PBAPP’s treated water consistently exceeded the Quality Assurance Programme parameters set by the
Ministry of Health. The following table summarises the results of tests on 567 treated water samples taken
by the Health Department, Penang and PBAPP in 2017:
Parameters

PBAPP
Performance

QAP standard
set by the Ministry of Health

1

E-coli + residual chlorine

0.00

0.05

2

E-coliform bacteria

0.00

0.15

3

NTU (turbidity)

0.00

2.00

4

Residual chlorine

0.03

1.85

5

Aluminium

2.27

10.20

PBAPP’s treated water was delivered to consumers throughout the State of Penang via 4,482km of pipelines
measuring 100mm and above in diameter. The length of these pipelines increased by 81km as compared to
4,401km in 2016, reflecting PBAPP’s commitment to continuously lay new pipelines to deliver water more
efficiently to more consumers.
In terms of domestic water tariffs, Penang’s average domestic water tariff of RM0.32 per 1,000 litres for the
first 35,000 litres per month was the lowest in Malaysia. The national average* in 2016 was RM0.69 per
1,000 litres.
At the same time, Penang’s average trade tariff of RM1.36 per 1,000 litres for the first 35,000 litres per month
in 2017 compared favourably with the national average* of RM1.74 per 1,000 litres in 2016.
* Statistics published in the Malaysia Water Industry Guide 2017.
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PBAHB recorded a profit after tax (PAT) of RM37.3 million in 2017, as compared to an average national
deficit* of RM403.7 million from water supply operations throughout Malaysia.
PROJECTS IN SUPPORT OF “NO WATER RATIONING” POLICY
As a Penang State Government linked company, PBAPP implemented the following key projects in 2017 to
support the state’s “no water rationing” policy:
•

3rd Penang Twin Submarine Pipeline (from Butterworth to Penang)
The primary objective of this project is to secure and increase the delivery of treated water from the
Sungai Dua Treatment Plant in Seberang Prai to Penang Island. Package 1, involving the laying of 0.9km
of 1,800mm land pipelines in the Macallum Seafront Area in Penang has been completed. Package
2 is underway to lay 0.9km of 1,800mm land pipelines in Butterworth. Meanwhile, the open tender
for Package 3 (to lay 3.2km of twin submarine pipelines, each measuring 1,600mm in diameter from
Butterworth to Penang) is scheduled for May 2018. When completed, the 3rd Penang Submarine
Pipeline Project will allow PBAPP to increase the volume of treated water deliverable to Penang Island
by 315 million litres per day (MLD).

•

Penang Water Supply Command Centre (PWSCC)
The PWSCC has been set up to serve as an electronic nerve centre for water supply operations in
Penang. Equipped with state-of-the-art hardware and software, it receives data sent from all key water
installations throughout Penang and sensors installed in key pipelines throughout Penang. At the
PWSCC, the data is compiled, analysed and monitored to optimise operations, predict possible water
issues, trigger alerts on detected anomalies and prevent unscheduled water supply interruptions (as
far as possible). When an unscheduled supply interruption occurs, the PWSCC also facilitates rapid
responses to minimise downtimes.

•

Taking Back the Expanded Mengkuang Dam
The Ministry of Energy, Green Technology and Water (KeTTHA) has completed the dam expansion
works of the Mengkuang Dam Expansion Project. The Penang State Government has expressed its
intent to take back the dam as soon as possible, for PBAPP to manage as the state’s biggest strategic
drought reserve. The take-back is subject to the following conditions:

1. KeTTHA will allocate RM100 million for the construction of a new barrage across Sungai Muda at Rantau
Panjang, Seberang Prai Utara. The new barrage will replace an existing barrage that was built 46 years
ago.
2. KeTTHA will construct the originally specified RM80 million Lahar Yooi Pump House under its “Rolling
Plan 4”. Without this pump house, it will take a long time to fill and refill the expanded Mengkuang Dam.
3. KeTTHA will complete the originally specified RM100 million raw water pipeline project from the newly
upgraded Mak Sulong Pump House in Seberang Prai Tengah to the Sungai Dua Canal by March 2020.
This pipeline, which would be 6.85km long and with a diameter of 1,600mm, is necessary for the
efficient transfer of raw water from the dam to the Sungai Dua Water Treatment Plant.
4. KeTTHA will bear the raw water pumping costs at the Mak Sulong Pump House to completely fill up the
Mengkuang Dam.
5. KeTTHA will be responsible for the structural integrity of the expanded Mengkuang Dam until it is filled
and tested at its highest level of 55 metres. As such, KeTTHA must bear the costs of appointing a
contractor to take on rectification works if any defects are detected.
6. KeTTHA will hand over the entire Mengkuang Dam Expansion Project (MDEP) project site, together with
the newly upgraded Mak Sulong Pump House, to Penang.
7. KeTTHA will coordinate, facilitate and mediate talks between Penang and Perak on the proposed
Sungai Perak Raw Water Transfer Scheme (SPRWTS). The SPRWTS is urgently needed to ensure water
security for both states until the year 2050.
8. KeTTHA will undertake to repair all slopes at the dam site, following landslides that occurred on-site in
the period September – November 2017.
9. KeTTHA will undertake to rectify the grass cover on the berms of the dam.
With an expanded maximum capacity of 73.5 billion litres, the Mengkuang Dam is designed to serve Penang
as a 122-day strategic drought reserve. However, its full potential will only be realised in March 2020, with the
commissioning of the 1,600mm diameter raw water pipeline from the Mak Sulong Pump House to the Sungai
Dua Canal.
* Statistics published in the Malaysia Water Industry Guide 2017.
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•

Laying 4.0km of 900mm pipelines from Jalan Chain Ferry to Jalan Permatang Pauh, to improve treated
water supply in Seberang Prai; and

•

Laying 3.1km of 900mm pipelines from Kampung Genting to Bukit Penara on Penang Island to upgrade
the treated water supply network in the south-west district.

5 CERTIFIED MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS
During the year in review, PBAPP operated in accordance to 5 certified management systems :
System

Field/Type

Scope/Coverage

1

ISO 9001:2015

Quality Management
System (QMS)

Treatment and Supply of
Potable Water with Provision of
Customer Services
• Company-wide

2

ISO 14001:2015

Environmental Management
System (EMS)

Management and Treatment of
Raw Water and Supply of
Potable Water
• Komtar headquarters
• Batu Ferringhi Water Treatment
Plant (WTP)
• Teluk Bahang Dam
• Waterfall WTP
• Air Itam WTP

3

OHSAS 18001:2007

Occupational Health & Safety
Management System

Treatment and Supply of Potable
Water with Provision
of Customer Services
• Company-wide

4

MS ISO/IEC 17025 : 2005
(SAMM)

Chemical Testing

PBAPP Laboratory,
Sungai Dua WTP

5

MS/ISO/IEC
27001:2013 (ISMS)

Information Security
Management System

Management and Treatment of
Water at the Sungai Dua WTP

PBAPP also underwent 5 types of audits by the National Water Services Commission (SPAN) in 2017.
These audits were conducted to ensure PBAPP’s compliance to the key performance indicators (KPIs)
set for licensed water supply operators in Malaysia. PBAPP scored positive results on the basis of these
SPAN KPIs.
1 : 454 EMPLOYEE TO CONSUMER RATIO
PBAPP is a holistic water operator that sources, treats, distributes and bills for water supply. In 2017,
PBAPP continued to internalise all key water supply engineering operations to safeguard consumer interests
in Penang. In 2017, PBAPP recorded one of the highest employee to consumer ratios for a holistic water
supply operator in Malaysia, at 1 employee : 454 registered water consumers.
While water operators in other states may have reported higher ratios, these organisations have out-sourced
certain aspects of operations, such as pipeline and leakage repair works and/or water treatment.

Year
2017
2016
2015

Registered
Consumers
604,547
589,797
575,747

PBAPP Employee :
Employees
1,332
1,345
1,232

PBAPP Employee :
Consumers Ratio
1 : 454
1 : 438
1 : 467
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As at 31/12/2017, the PBAHB Group of Companies workforce comprised 1,340 personnel, of whom 1,332
were employed by PBAPP while eight (8) were employed by other subsidiaries or the holding company.
During the year under review, 61.7% of the workforce were aged below 40 years, representing the majority.
In 2017, 27 employees resigned from service while 33 retired at the age of 60 years. Two employees passed
away while in service during the year.

1
2
3
4

Category

PBAPP

Managers & Asst. Managers
Executives
Clerical & Technical Personnel
Industrial Manual Group
Total

24
64
546
698
1,332

PBAHB / PBARSB

PBA Group

1
3
4
0
8

25
67
550
698
1,340

8.8 MAN DAYS OF TRAINING PER EMPLOYEE
In 2017, PBAPP continued to invest in the development of its most precious resource: its workforce. The
company achieved an average of 8.6 man days of training per employee. The summary of employee attendance
in human resource development (HRD) programmes in 2017 is as follows:
In-House
75
1,814

Programmes
Employees Trained

Public
67
187

Types of Programmes
(I : In-house | P: Public)
Category
Executives
Non-Executives
TOTAL

Management
I
277
522
799

P
83
16
99

Technical
I
14
268
282

P
31
23
54

I.T.
I
31
101
132

Safety & Health
P
2
0
2

I
47
554
601

P
15
17
32

TOTAL
I
369
1445
1814

P
131
56
187

OPTIMISING HRD INVESTMENTS
To optimise value for HRD investments, PBAPP conducted most of its training programmes in-house, at the
Penang Water Services Academy (PWSA).
Managed by PBA Resources Sdn Bhd (PBAR), a wholly-owned subsidiary of PBAHB, PWSA promotes
and provides industry-specific skills development and industry-related competency training programmes to
build a knowledgeable and capable water supply workforce for today and tomorrow. Many of the academy’s
technical training programmes are conducted by certified PBAPP trainers, many of whom are senior
personnel with years of experience in their fields of expertise.
As an institution that is accredited to the JPK (Department of Skills Development, Ministry of Human
Resource), PWSA also offers SKM-level (Malaysian Skills Certification-level) courses for school-leavers
seeking competency qualifications for a career in the water supply industry. In 2017, 194 students enrolled
for SKM-level courses, fastrack and specialised programmes and SPAN competency programmes at the
academy.
Meanwhile on the professional skills development front, PWSA’s top 3 clients were PBAPP, Syarikat Air Darul
Aman (SADA - the water operator that serves Kedah) and Air Kelantan (Kelantan’s water operator).
Since 2008, PWSA has hosted and provided professional training programmes for almost all water supply
operators and many state water supply regulatory bodies in Malaysia. Vocation institutions that PWSA has
served include the Institut Kemahiran Belia Negara, Insitut Kemahiran MARA, Kolej Kemahiran Tinggi MARA
and Majlis Amanah Rakyat (MARA).
Its international client list includes the Asian Development Bank (ADB), HueWACO (Thua Tien Water Supply
Joint Stock Company of Vietnam), PERPAMSI (Indonesian Water Association), ASEAN ESC (Institute
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for Global Environment Studies – Initiative for Environmentally Sustainable Cities for Yangon, Myanmar),
Kathmandu Upatyaka Khanepani Ltd. of Nepal, PDAM Kota Perkalongan (Indonesia), PDAM Tirta Musi
Palembang (Indonesia) and WaterLinks Asia.
New Malaysian clients who signed on in 2017 include Aliran Utara Sdn Bhd (a company that is undertaking
certain aspects of water privatisation in Perak), Lembaga Air Perak (the water operator that serves Perak)
and Prisma Karun Sdn Bhd (a company that undertakes general construction, repair and maintenance
works at selected waterworks locations in Perlis).
PWSA’s significant milestones in 2017 include:
January

Receipt of National Dual Training System (SLDN) incentive for water treatment
operations and water distribution operations training programmes.

May

Signing of Collaboration Agreement with HUEWACO of Vietnam.

July

Participation in the IWWEF 2017 (Indonesia Water and Waste Water Forum 2017)
hosted by PERPAMSI.

August

Initiation of pilot SKM-PPT programme for 8 PBAPP personnel.

September

Renewal of MoU with PERPAMSI in relation to the HRD programmes for water
distribution, water treatment, NRW management and development of human capital.

October

MoU signing with Kolej Antarabangsa Yayasan Melaka for SKM-level programmes.

December

Commencement of first collaborative programme with the Malaysia Water Academy
(myWA) set up by the Malaysian Water Association.

ENHANCING CUSTOMER CARE
In line with its ‘Friendly, Caring, Responsive’ motto, PBAPP implemented three key initiatives to enhance and
upgrade customer care services in 2017:
•

On 6/2/2017, YAB Tuan Lim Guan Eng launched PBAPP’s “myPBA” mobile app for smart phones and
tablets. “myPBA” is the first app in Malaysia that allows Penang water consumers to settle their water
bills via mobile smart devices. Available for download from the “Apple App Store” and the “Google Play
Store”, “myPBA” also keeps users updated on the latest water supply information and notices when they
are on-the-move.

•

Establishment of a dedicated Customer Engagement Team (CET) to engage, communicate and interact
positively with PBAPP’s Top 100 customers in Penang;

•

Launching of the new PBAPP Call Centre (tel. no. 04 255 8 255) in KOMTAR, by Penang Chief Minister
YAB Tuan Lim Guan Eng on 4/12/2017. This state-of-the-art call centre is an out-sourced facility that is
managed by TM ONE, a subsidiary of Telekom Malaysia.
The key rationale for out-sourcing this facility include:
1. Continuous improvement in customer services (in line with PBAPP’s ISO 9001:2015 certification);
2. Benchmarking call centre services to international “Customer Operations Performance Centre”
(COPC) standards, via the collaboration with TM ONE;
3. Continuing compliance to the key performance indicators (KPIs) set by the National Water Services
Commission (SPAN) for attending to customer complaints. PBAPP’s customer base grew by about
27% in the past decade, from 476,179 registered water consumers in 2008 to 604,547 consumers
in 2017;
4. Cost savings over a 10-year period through out-sourcing, instead of upgrading PBAPP’s previous
call centre that had been operational in the period 2002 - 2016; and
5. Customer satisfaction through the provision of precise and timely information to consumers, who are
likely to call PBAPP only in times of need.
The launching of the new 24-hour Call Centre marks the completion of the third initiative by PBAPP to
enhance communications with its customer base.

Since 2016, PBAPP has also focused on posting frequent updates and notices on the “PBAPP Penang”
Facebook page to share information with the public, 24/7, via this popular social media platform.
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The following table summarises PBAPP’s performance in customer care in 2017, in relation to KPIs set by SPAN:
Key Performance Indicators

Achievement

1

Billing queries - Responded within 1 working day

99.06%

2

Response to queries - Complaints meaningfully addressed
within 3 working days

90.30%

3

Telephone queries - Responded within 10 seconds
(effective from June 2017)

97.60%

4

Customer Care Centres
Average Service Wait Time
Average Service Time
Average Payment WaitTime
Average Payment Service Time
Total Number of Customers Served
Total Number of Stubs Collected
Total Collections Handled

5

24-Hour Call Centre
Total number of calls received within 10 seconds
Total number of calls answered within 10 seconds

3.21 minutes
3.90 minutes
1.56 minutes
1.08 minutes
932,803
1,156,415
RM302.7 million
36,364
34,515
(97.6%)

MANAGING KEY BUSINESS RISKS
Over and above providing efficient services, sustaining profitability and implementing continuous improvement
initiatives in 2017, PBAPP also focused on managing and mitigating the following business risks in serving
Penang as its licensed water operator:
•

Climate Change
Climate change has altered the consistency of dry and wet seasons in Penang and the northern region
of Peninsular Malaysia. The climate change scenario culminated in the occurrence of the 2016 Super El
Niño phenomenon that placed the entire Northern Corridor Economic Region (NCER) on the brink of a
catastrophic water crisis.
To date, measures undertaken by the Penang State Government and PBAPP to address the challenges
of climate change include:
a. Taking back the expanded 73.5 billion litre Mengkuang Dam from KeTTHA, with certain conditions,
soon. KeTTHA has completed the dam expansion aspects of the Mengkuang Dam Expansion
Project (MDEP) in 2017.
However, the dam capacity was only at 24.2% (as at 22/3/2018). Moreover, the construction of the
originally specified RM100 million pipeline (1600mm in diameter and 6.85km in length) linking the
Mak Sulong Pump House to the Sungai Dua Canal will only be comissioned by March 2020.
Only when all works are completed, and the dam is fully filled up to the 55 metre level, will the
Mengkuang Dam be able to fulfil its full potential as Penang’s 122-day strategic drought reserve.
Nevertheless, the re-acquisition of the Mengkuang Dam will allow PBAPP to commence storing
water in it, in preparation for future dry seasons.
b. Urging the National Water Resources Council (MSAN) to step in and manage NCER water resources
on a regional basis, in line with the NCER concept. Such a move will optimise raw water resources
for the common benefit of Perlis, Kedah, Penang and Perak. Without regional raw water resource
development and planning, the future socio-economic goals of the NCER cannot be realised,
because all these goals may only be achieved if there is sufficient water supply for all the people
and all enterprises.
c. Encouraging the Federal Government to develop an NCER Water Supply Crisis Plan to avoid a water
crisis and to quickly react to water supply challenges during future dry seasons.
In Penang, PBAPP implements dry weather control protocols to optimise strategic drought reserves
from the beginning of the year.
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During the Super El Niño phenomenon in 2016, PBAPP proposed 4 initiatives: extensive cloud seeding,
postponement of the padi planting season, more controlled releases of water from dams and promoting
wiser water consumption amongst the public. The Federal Government’s acceptance and implementation of
these 4 initiatives helped the NCER states to avoid a regional water supply disaster that would have had dire
consequences.
•

High Dependency on Sungai Muda
More than 44 years have passed since the opening of the Sungai Muda Water Scheme (SMWS) by the late Tun
Abdul Razak bin Hussein, the second Prime Minister of Malaysia. The commissioning of the SMWS allowed Penang
to tap Sungai Muda as its primary source of raw water.
Today, PBAPP abstracts more than 80% of the raw water that it treats at the Sungai Dua WTP from Sungai Muda.
On its part, PBAPP has been optimising Sungai Muda as its primary raw water resource by increasing the treatment
capacity of the Sungai Dua WTP to 1,228 million litres per day (MLD) and achieving a water treatment reserve of
34.8% for Penang in 2017. At the same time, to address future water demand in Seberang Prai and Penang Island,
PBAPP has been laying pipelines to enhance treated water delivery from the Sungai Dua WTP, including the 3rd
Penang Submarine Pipeline Project.
However, due to Penang’s relatively small geographical footprint, there are no other major rivers within its borders
that can be effectively tapped as a second or back-up raw water resource.
The Penang State Government and PBAPP have been asking the Federal Government to develop a second raw
water resource for Penang in line with an agreement signed to facilitate Penang’s migration to the National Water
Services Restructuring Initiative (NWSRI) in 2011.
PBAPP has identified a new raw water resource (Sungai Perak) in 2009 and proposed the implementation of the
Sungai Perak Raw Water Transfer Scheme (SPRWTS). The SPRWTS would fully realise the potential of this river
as a raw water resource for the benefit of both Perak and Penang towards Year 2050. Until today, the Federal
Government’s official stand is for Penang to negotiate directly with Perak on the proposed SPRWTS.

•

Threat Posed by Logging in Ulu Muda
The 163,103 sq. km Ulu Muda Forest Reserve (UMFR) in Kedah is the water catchment area for Sungai Muda, the
Muda Dam, the Ahning Dam and the Pedu Dam. The UMFR is a regional water catchment area because it catches
rain water that is used for water supply in Perlis, Kedah and Penang daily.
Kedah has been licensing logging activities in the UMFR to earn “forest premiums” from logging companies. In
January 2018, a series of news exposés published by Kosmo! (with the cooperation of Pertubuhan Pelindung
Khazanah Alam Malaysia - PEKA) revealed that logging has been carried out in the UMFR since 2008. Logging is
allegedly being carried out 50km in the forest reserve, with 1,200 hectares marked as “new logging areas”.
Logging in the UMFR represents a clear and present threat to continuous good water supply in Penang. As it stands,
the water that PBAPP abstracts from Sungai Muda already looks like “teh tarik” (milk tea), due to sedimentation and
it will cost more to treat this turbid water.
Penang is highly dependent on Sungai Muda as its primary raw water resource. When logging affects the ability
of the UMFR to catch rain water, it will affect the volume of raw water that is available to Penang via Sungai Muda.
When this happens, Penang will face a raw water crisis that subsequently causes a water supply crisis.
With this threat in mind, the Penang State Government and PBAPP have repeatedly and publicly called on the
Federal Government to intervene and convince Kedah to completely ban all logging activities in the UMFR. The
Federal Government must compensate Kedah in lieu of forest premiums, and work with Kedah to conserve the
UMFR as an NCER water catchment area.
As outlined, these three biggest threats to the sustainability of PBAPP’s business operations in Penang are largely
external issues or factors. Effective and timely mitigation requires the Federal Government intervention and/or
action. Accordingly, PBAPP will strive to actively seek the cooperation of the Federal Government on these matters.

END NOTE:
This MDA has been drafted to be read together with the Chairman’s Message and the CEO’s Statement to present a comprehensive
view of PBAHB’s performance in 2017.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
OVERVIEW STATEMENT
The Board of Directors (“the Board”) of PBA Holdings Bhd (“PBAHB” or “the Company”) is pleased to present
the Corporate Governance Overview for 2017. This statement has been structured to reflect the themes of
the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance 2017 (“MCCG” or the “Code”) which sets out how the Group
has applied the principles and recommendations of the MCCG, together with the provisions contained in
the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Listing Requirements”). This
Corporate Governance Overview Statement should be read in conjunction with the Corporate Governance
Report, which is accessible online at www.pbahb.com.my.
Through this statement, the Board reaffirms its commitment in upholding a high standard of corporate
governance throughout the Group, which is fundamental to fulfilling its responsibilities of protecting and
enhancing the value of its stakeholders and to safeguard their interests, through excellence in Corporate
Governance standards at all times.
PRINCIPLE A – BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS
Board Responsibilities
The Group is led by Board members who have a wide range of competencies and experience, ranging from
the accounting, business, legal and public service sectors.
The Board is responsible for the oversight and overall management of the Company. Presently, the
Board comprises only Non-Executive Directors who are independent of the Management. Their role is
to constructively challenge the Management and monitor its success in delivering the approved targets
and business plans within the risk appetite set by the Board. They have free and open contact with the
Management at all levels, and they engage with the external and internal auditors to address matters
concerning the management and oversight of the Company’s business and operations.
The principal responsibilities of the Board include the following: a)
b)
c)
d)
e)
f)
g)
h)
i)
j)

To review and set the Group’s strategic plan and direction and ensure that resources are available to
meet its objectives.
To ensure the Group’s core values, vision and mission and shareholders’ interests are met.
To supervise the operations of the Group and evaluate whether established targets are achieved.
To identify principal risks and ensure the implementation of appropriate systems to manage these
risks.
To promote better investor relations and shareholder communications.
To review the adequacy and the integrity of the Group’s internal control systems, including systems for
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, rules, directives and guidelines.
To establish such committees, policies and procedures to effectively discharge the Board’s roles and
responsibilities.
To initiate a Board self-evaluation program and follow-up action to deal with issues arising and arrange
for Directors to attend courses, seminars and participate in development programs as the Board
judges appropriate.
To ensure that the Company has appropriate corporate governance structures in place including
standards of ethical behaviour and promoting a culture of corporate responsibility.
To monitor the compliance with all relevant statutory and legal obligations.

The Board delegates the ordinary management of the Company’s business to the Chief Executive Officer
(“CEO”) and management committee of Division Heads and Heads of Department. Management’s
performance is assessed by the Board through quarterly reports which are tabled to the Board. The reports
include a comprehensive summary of the Company’s risks and financial performance during each reporting
period. The Board is also kept informed of the key strategic initiatives, significant operational issues and the
Company’s performance based on the approved Key Performance Indicators ("KPIs").
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PRINCIPLE A – BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS (CONT'D)
Board Responsibilities (cont'd)
In order to ensure the effective discharge of its functions and responsibilities, specific powers of the Board
are delegated to the relevant Board Committees and the CEO. The Board Committees consists of the Audit
and Risk Management Committee and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.
However, significant matters such as approval of financial results, declaration of dividends, risk appetite
setting, short term and medium term business plans/policies, annual budget and appointment of key
responsible persons are reserved for the Board’s considerations and approval.
The Board Committees are entrusted with specific responsibilities to oversee the Company’s affairs with
authority to act on behalf of the Board in accordance with their respective terms of reference. Although
specific powers are delegated to the Board Committees, the Board kept itself abreast of the key issues and
decisions made by each Board Committee through the reports by the Chairmen of the Board Committees.
The Board is committed to maintain a good risk management framework and sound system of internal
control within the Group.
Roles and Responsibilities of Chairman of the Board
YAB Tuan Lim Guan Eng, being the Chairman of the Board, holds a non-executive position and is primarily
responsible for matters pertaining to the Board and overall conduct of the Group. The Chairman is
responsible for leading the Board to ensure its effectiveness and integrity and the entrenchment of good
corporate governance practices within the Group.
The Chairman is responsible for: i)
Providing leadership to the Board so that the Board can perform its responsibilities effectively;
ii)
Setting the Board agenda and ensuring that Board members receive complete and accurate
information in a timely manner;
iii)
Conducting the Board’s function and meetings by leading board meetings and discussions;
iv)
Overseeing the effective discharge of the Board’s supervisory role;
v)
Facilitating the effective contribution of all Directors and encouraging active participation and allowing
dissenting views to be freely expressed.;
vi)
Briefing all the Directors in relation to issues arising at meetings;
vii) Promoting constructive and respectful relations between Board members and between the Board and
the Management;
viii) Ensuring appropriate steps are taken to provide effective communication with stakeholders and that
their views are communicated to the Board as a whole; and
ix)
Leading the Board in establishing and monitoring good corporate governance practices in the
company.
Roles and Responsibilities between the Chairman and the CEO
In line with the Code, there is a clear division of responsibilities between the Chairman and CEO. The
positions of the Chairman and CEO are held by two (2) different individuals to promote accountability
and facilitate division of responsibilities between them. In this regard, no one individual can influence the
Board’s discussions and decision-making. The Chairman is responsible for leading the Board to ensure its
effectiveness and integrity and the entrenchment of good corporate governance practices within the Group,
while the CEO’s responsibility is to run the business, to ensure implementation of policies and strategies
approved by the Board and to communicate to the Board on matters pertaining to the business results and
performance of the Group.
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PRINCIPLE A – BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS (CONT'D)
Roles and Responsibilities between the Chairman and the CEO (cont'd)
The Chairman acts as an informal link between the Board and Management where he is expected to be
kept informed by the Management of all important matters and make himself available to the Management.
The CEO is responsible for the day-to-day management of the business and operations of the Company with
respect to both its regulatory and commercial functions. The Company is also subject to the Suruhanjaya
Perkhidmatan Air Negara (“SPAN”) rules and regulations on water matters.
The CEO holds an executive post and not being a member at the Board, has significant responsibilities to
run the business based on the strategic plans and ensure the conduct of the business and procedures are
properly executed. The CEO presents to the Board, the recommended strategies, proposed business plans
and budgets at a dedicated session which includes Key Performance Indicators (“KPIs”). The Board would
give its feedback on focus areas, key initiatives and service/product roadmaps in the planning of Key Action
Plans.
Company Secretary
The Company is supported by a suitably qualified and competent company secretary. The Company Secretary
is qualified Chartered Secretary under Section 139A(a) of the Companies Act 1965 or Section 235(2)(a) of
the Companies Act 2016 and is a Fellow member of the Malaysian Association of the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators ("MAICSA") and a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“MIA”).
The Company Secretary is external company secretary from Securities Services (Holdings) Sdn. Bhd. with
vast knowledge and experience from being in public practice and is supported by a dedicated team of
company secretarial personnel.
The Company Secretary supports the Board and the relevant Board Committees to ensure their effective
functioning in accordance with their terms of reference and best practices, and in managing the corporate
governance framework of the Company. The Company Secretary also advises the Directors on their fiduciary
and statutory duties, as well as compliances with company law, the Listing Requirements, the Company's
Constitution, the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance, and other pertinent regulations governing the
Company, including guiding the Board towards the necessary compliances.
The Company Secretary attended the Seventeenth Annual General Meeting, the Board and Board committee
meetings during the financial year ended 31 December 2017. All deliberations at the Seventeenth Annual
General Meeting, the Board and Board committee meetings were well minuted for the Board's reference
and for action plans to be communicated to the Management to work on and to report back to the Board.
The Company Secretary who attended the Seventeenth Annual General Meeting managed the processes of
the meeting and ensure orderly proceeding, including the conduct of the poll taken on all resolutions tabled
at the meeting.
The Company Secretary also updates the Board on changes in the regulatory requirements and advises
the Board on its roles and responsibilities and on corporate disclosures and compliance with company and
securities regulations and the Listing Requirements.
The Company Secretary has and will continue to constantly keep herself abreast on matters concerning
company law, the capital market, corporate governance, and other pertinent matters, and with changes in
the same regulatory environment, through continuous training and industry updates.
The Board is satisfied with the performance and support rendered by the Company Secretary to the Board
in the discharge of its function and duties.
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Company Secretary (cont'd)
The briefed profile of the existing Company Secretary is as follows:
Ms. Thum Sook Fun, FCIS, C.A. (M), FCCA
Ms. Thum is a Chartered Secretary by profession. Ms. Thum has been elected as a Fellow member of the
Malaysian Association of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators (“MAICSA”) and also a
Fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (“ACCA”). She is also a member of
the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“MIA”).
She has more than twenty years of professional experience in the field of corporate secretarial practice
with working knowledge of many industries. Ms. Thum is also the named Company Secretary for a number
of public listed companies and private limited companies. Ms. Thum has been appointed as Company
Secretary of the Company with effect from 28 September 2000.
In performing her duties, the Company Secretary carries out, amongst others, the following tasks:•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Statutory duties as required under the Companies Act 2016, Listing Requirements, Capital Market
and Services Act, 2007;
Facilitating and attending Board Meetings and Board Committee Meetings, respectively;
Facilitating and attending the General Meeting(s);
Ensuring that Board Meetings and Board Committee Meetings, respectively are properly convened
and the proceedings are properly recorded;
Ensuring timely communication of the Board level decisions to the Management for further action;
Ensuring that all appointments to the Board and/or Board Committees are properly made in accordance
with the relevant regulations and/or legislations;
Maintaining records for the purpose of meeting statutory obligations of applicable jurisdictions;
Facilitating the provision of information as may be requested by the Directors from time to time in a
timely manner and ensuring adherence to Board policies and procedures;
Facilitating the conduct of the assessments to be undertaken by the Board and/or Board Committees
as well as to compile the results of the assessments for the Board and/or Board Committee’s notation;
Assisting the Company on the lodgements of documents with relevant statutory and regulatory bodies;
Assisting the Board with the preparation of announcements for release to Bursa Securities and
Securities Commission Malaysia; and
Rendering advice and support to the Board and Management.

All members of the Board, whether as a whole or in their individual capacity, have access to the advice and
services of the Company Secretary on all matters relating to the Group to assist them in the furtherance of
their duties.
Board Meetings and Access to Information
The Board is satisfied with the level of time commitment given by the Directors towards fulfilling their roles
and responsibilities as Directors of the Company. This is evidenced by the Directors’ attendance record at
Board meetings as set out in the summary.
The Board would have at least five (5) regular scheduled meetings annually, with additional meetings
convened as and when necessary.
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PRINCIPLE A – BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS (CONT'D)
Board Meetings and Access to Information (cont'd)
A total of five (5) Board meetings were held in year 2017. The following is the record of attendance by the
Board members during their tenure in office and all Directors have complied with the minimum of 50%
attendance as stipulated by Paragraph 15.05 (3) (c) of the Listing Requirements:
Names of Present Directors

Attendance Record

YAB Tuan Lim Guan Eng

5 out of 5

YB Dato’ Haji Mohd Rashid Bin Hasnon

4 out of 5

YB Prof. Dr. P. Ramasamy a/l Palanisamy

5 out of 5

YB Dato’ Seri Farizan Bin Darus

4 out of 5

YB Dato’ Sarul Bahiyah Binti Abu

5 out of 5

YB Tuan Lim Hock Seng

5 out of 5

YB Tuan Phee Boon Poh

5 out of 5

YB Dato’ Haji Abdul Malik Bin Abul Kassim

4 out of 5

YB Tuan Chow Kon Yeow

3 out of 5

Dato’ Agatha Foo Tet Sin

5 out of 5

Dato’ Seri Nazir Ariff Bin Mushir Ariff

4 out of 5

Dato’ Syed Mohamad Bin Syed Murtaza

5 out of 5

Dato’ Sr. Kuvenaraju a/l Pachappen

4 out of 5

Dato’ Brian Tan Guan Hooi

4 out of 5

Puan Mary Geraldine Phipps

5 out of 5

To facilitate productive and meaningful deliberations, the proceedings of the Board meetings are conducted
in accordance with a structured agenda. The agenda together with comprehensive management reports
and proposal papers are furnished to the Directors at least 7 days before convening the Board meeting.
This is to allow time for the Directors to review the Board papers and to facilitate full discussion at the
Board meeting. There is a process in place for Non-Executive Directors to seek clarifications or obtain
details concerning the Board agenda papers from the Management or the Company Secretary or seek for
independent professional advice. Confidential papers or urgent proposals are presented and tabled at the
Board meetings under a supplementary agenda.
The Board meeting papers are prepared and presented in a concise and comprehensive manner so that the
Directors have a proper and relevant depiction of the issues at hand, in order that the Board deliberations
and decision-making are performed systematically and in a well-informed manner.
The minutes of the Board meetings together with its notice and papers are circulated to all Directors for their
perusal prior to the commencement of each Board meeting. The Directors may request for clarification or
raise comments before the minutes are tabled for confirmation from all the members at the Board meetings
as a correct record of the proceedings of the meeting.
At the Board meetings, respective Chairmen of the Boards Committees will report, advise and recommend
to the Board meetings, salient views and conclusions of their respective agendas.
The CEO, Chief Operating Officer (“COO”), Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”) and Senior Management are
invited to the Board meetings to table and report on matters relating to their respective areas of responsibility,
and also to brief and provide detailed information and recommendations to the Directors.
The Board has access to reports, papers on specific issues, information on major financial and operational
matters. Management supplies sufficient information to the Board in a timely manner to enable the Board
to discharge its duties effectively. The Directors may seek advice from the Management on issues under
their respective purview. The Directors may also interact directly with the Management, or request further
explanation, information or updates on any aspect of the Company’s operations or business concerns from
them.
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PRINCIPLE A – BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS (CONT'D)
Board Meetings and Access to Information (cont'd)
In this way, the Board has full access to all information on the Company’s affairs to enable the proper
discharge of duties.
In addition, the Board may seek independent professional advice at the Company’s expense on specific
issues to enable it to discharge its duties in relation to matters being deliberated. Individual Directors may
also obtain independent professional or other advice in furtherance of their duties, subject to the approval of
the Chairman or the Board with the duly approved fees.
Continuing education programme
The Board oversees the training needs of the Directors. Directors are regularly updated by the CEO and
Senior Management on the Group’s business and the regulatory environment in which they operate. On 28
August 2017, the Company had organised an in-house briefing on the new Malaysian Code on Corporate
Governance which took effect on 26 April 2017 to its Board, presented by Messrs. KPMG.
The Directors are encouraged to attend various professional programmes which were necessary to enable
them to keep abreast with the changes in guidelines issued by the relevant authorities as well as on the latest
developments in the market place, to complement their services to the Group.
In addition, the Directors are also kept informed with the relevant updates on statutory and regulatory
requirements from time to time by the Company Secretary during the Board meetings.
Board Charter
The Board had formally adopted the Board Charter (“Board Charter”). The Board Charter outlines processes
and procedures for the Board and their committees to be effective and efficient. The objectives of the Board
Charter are to ensure that all Board members acting on behalf of the Company are aware of their duties and
responsibilities as Board members and the various legislations and regulations affecting their conduct and
that the principles and practices of good Corporate Governance are applied in all their dealings in respect,
and on behalf of, the Company.
The Board updates the Board Charter from time to time to reflect changes to the Company’s policies,
procedures and processes as well as the latest relevant legislations and regulations, and is subject to review
periodically.
On 16 April 2018, the Board has reviewed and approved the amendments to its Board Charter, to be in line
with the practices set out in the MCCG. The Board Charter is available on the Company’s website at www.
pbahb.com.my
Code of Conduct and Ethics
The Board has in place a Code of Conduct for the Directors, management and employees of the Company
and its subsidiaries. The Code of Conduct provides the guidance to all employees of the Company in
the aspect of conflict of interests, gift and hospitality, integrity and professionalism, public statements and
confidentiality, protection and use of the Group’s assets or property, reporting illegal or non-compliant
conduct, compliance with laws and regulations, violation of the Code of Conduct and consequences of
non-compliance with the Code of Conduct.
On 16 April 2018, the Board had reviewed and approved the amendments to the Code of Conduct and
Ethics to be in line with the practices in the MCCG and published on the Company’s website.
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PRINCIPLE A – BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS (CONT'D)
Whistleblowing Policy
The Board had formalised and adopted the Whistle-blowing Policy. The Whistle-blowing Policy serves as
an essential part of the Group’s internal control system setting out a framework for all employees and
stakeholders of the Group to report any concern about any malpractice within the Group. It also helps to
nurture a good organisational culture with the Group and develop a culture of openness, transparency,
accountability and integrity, which ultimately formulates standards of corporate behavior creating an ethical
corporate climate.
In addition to the above and in order to improve the overall organisational effectiveness and to uphold
the integrity of the Company in the eyes of the public, whilst at the same time being an entity that serves
the interest of the nation, the Company has instituted the whistleblowing program which acts as a formal
communication channel and the staff can communicate concerns in cases where the Company’s business
conduct is deemed to be contrary to the Company’s common values. Details of the said Whistle-blowing
Policy are set out in this Annual Report.
Board Composition
The Board currently consists of fifteen (15) Board members, all holding non-executive positions, of which
six (6) are Independent and Non-Executive Directors and nine (9) Non-Executive Directors. Two of the
Independent and Non-Executive Directors are members of the MIA and sit on the ARMC. The Board is of
the view that the number of Independent Non-Executive Board members with wide Boardroom experience
and expertise is sufficient to lend independent objectivity and added perspectives to the Board’s decisionmaking process.
According to the Company's Constitution, the number of Directors shall not be less than two (2) nor (unless
otherwise determined by the Company at the General Meeting) more than seventeen (17).
The current Board composition complies with paragraph 15.02 of the Listing Requirements which requires
that at least two (2) Directors or one-third (1/3) of the Board of the Company, whichever is the higher, are
Independent Directors.
The Board took note of the MCCG’s Practice 4.1 whereby at least half of the Board comprises Independent
Directors. However, the Board has no plan to increase the numbers of the Independent Directors in the
Company in view of all the Board members are holding Non- Executive positions.
Commitment
The Directors do not hold more than five directorships of any listed issuer at any one time. This is not only in
line with the Listing Requirements but also to ensure the Directors are able to discharge their responsibilities.
Evaluating the Board
On February 2018, the Board has reviewed and adopted new evaluation forms for the Board as a whole
and the various Board Committees for financial year 2017. Based on the assessment of Board effectiveness
as a whole, it was concluded that the Board and Board Committees have discharged their duties and
responsibilities adequately.
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PRINCIPLE A – BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS (CONT'D)
Evaluating the Board (cont'd)
Currently, the women on the Board and senior management are as follows:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Dato’ Sarul Bahiyah Binti Abu (Non-Independent and Non-Executive Director)
Dato’ Agatha Foo Tet Sin (Senior Independent and Non-Executive Director)
Puan Mary Geraldine Phipps (Independent and Non-Executive Director)
Dr. Mary Ann Harris (CFO)
Puan Joyce Lee (Head of Corporate Affairs Division)

Currently the Company achieved a 13.33% in women participation on the Board.
Pursuant to Practice 4.2 of the MCCG, the Company is required to seek shareholders’ approval if it intends
to retain an Independent Director who has served the Company for a cumulative term of more than nine (9)
years.
Dato’ Agatha Foo Tet Sin will attain 9 years tenure in year 2018. Both the Nomination & Remuneration
Committee and the Board have at the annual assessment assessed the independence of Dato’ Agatha Foo
Tet Sin, who has served the Company for 9 years.
They were of the view that she remains objective and independent in expressing her views and in participating
in deliberation and decision making of the Board and Board Committees. Her length of service on the Board
does not in any way interfere with her exercise of independent judgement and ability to act in the best
interests of the Company. The Company hence seeks its shareholders’ approval at its AGM to retain Dato’
Agatha Foo Tet Sin to continue to act as an Independent Non-Executive Director in compliance with the
Code.
Appointments to the Board
Generally, the Board through the Nomination & Remuneration Committee ("NRC") is to assess the candidate
for proposed directorship in considering their skills, knowledge, education, qualities, expertise and
experience, professionalism, integrity, time commitment, contribution, Boardroom diversity including gender,
skills, experience, age, cultural background and other factors that will best qualify a nominee to serve on
the Board, while for the position of Independent Non-Executive Directors, the ability to discharge such
responsibilities/functions as expected. A proposed Director also must satisfy the test of independence of an
independent director as defined under Paragraph 1.01 and Practice Note 13 of the Listing Requirements
and must have the ability to act in the best interests of the Group, taking into account the candidate’s
character, integrity and professionalism.
This helps to ensure an appropriate balance between the experience perspectives of the long term directors
and new perspectives that bring fresh insights to the Board.
There is a process for selection, nomination and appointment of suitable candidates to the Board. Potential
candidates can be identified by the NRC, existing Directors or any major shareholder. The NRC reviews
the suitability of candidate identified and recommends to the Board, for appointment to the Board and it
is responsible to ensure that appointments are made on merit. There was no new appointment of Board
members during the financial year ended 31 December 2017.
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PRINCIPLE A – BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS (CONT'D)
Board Committees
In April 2016, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee were merged and reconstituted
as a single committee known as NRC.
Currently, the NRC comprises eight (8) Non-Executive Directors, the majority of whom are Independent and
Non-Executive Directors, as follows:Chairman
YB Prof. Dr. P. Ramasamy a/l Palanisamy (Non-Independent and Non-Executive Director)
Members
YB Dato’ Sarul Bahiyah Binti Abu (Non-Independent and Non-Executive Director)
Dato’ Seri Nazir Ariff Bin Mushir Ariff (Independent and Non-Executive Director)
Dato’ Agatha Foo Tet Sin (Senior Independent and Non-Executive Director)
Dato’ Syed Mohamad Bin Syed Murtaza (Independent and Non-Executive Director)
Dato’ Sr. Kuvenaraju a/l Pachappen (Independent and Non-Executive Director)
Dato’ Brian Tan Guan Hooi (Independent and Non-Executive Director)
Puan Mary Geraldine Phipps (Independent and Non-Executive Director)
There is a formal and transparent procedure for the appointment of new directors to the Board, the
primary responsibility of which is delegated to the NRC, with the membership comprising exclusively of
Non-Executive Directors, the majority of whom are independent. This composition of only non-executive
directors with the majority as Independent and Non-Executive Directors in the Committee ensures that any
decisions made are impartial and in the best interest of the Group, without any element of fear or favour.
Currently, the Chairman of the NRC is YB Prof. Dr. P. Ramasamy a/l Palanisamy, who is a Non-Independent
and Non-Executive Director. YB Prof. Dr. P. Ramasamy is also the chairman of the Establishment Committee
of its wholly-owned subsidiary, PBAPP. Hence, he is familiar with the staffing issues in the Group.
Therefore, the Board is satisfied with the composition of the NRC and confident that this Committee
discharges its functions efficiently and effectively with respect to the nomination and remuneration matters.
The NRC’s roles and functions are governed by its Terms of Reference. In April 2018, the Board had reviewed
and approved the revised Term of Reference of the NRC, published on the Company’s website.
The NRC convened four (4) meetings in FY2017 and the below is summarised the key activities carried out
by the NRC: i)

The NRC conducted an annual assessment of the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and the
various Board Committees. Based on the assessment of Board effectiveness as a whole, it was
concluded that the Board and Board Committees have discharged their duties and responsibilities
adequately;

ii)

The NRC conducted its annual assessment on the Independent and Non-Executive Directors and
made its recommendations to the Board. The Board was satisfied with the level of independence
demonstrated by each of the Independent and Non-Executive Directors of the Company;

iii)

The NRC had duly considered and recommended the re-election and/or re-appointment of the
Directors who are subject to retirement at the Annual General Meeting of the Company. Apart from
the qualifications and competencies of the retiring Directors, the NRC’s review on the proposed reelection of Directors took into account the mix of skills, experience and contribution brought to the
Board;

iv)

The NRC reviewed the proposed of new total salary and benefits for its executive employees of the
Group as evaluated by the appointed external consultant; and

v)

The NRC reviewed and recommended the new policies on the company car as advised by the
appointed external consultant.
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Directors’ remuneration
None of the Directors receive any basic salary or bonus, as all the Directors are Non- Executive Directors.
The Company only paid fixed monthly and meeting allowances to the Directors.
The Non- Executive Directors are remunerated based on the allowances and benefits approved by the
shareholders of the Company during each AGM as required by Section 230 of the Companies Act 2016 and
Paragraph 7.24 of the Listing Requirements.
The Board is of the view that it is just and equitable for the Non-Executive Directors to be paid the Directors’
Remuneration on a monthly basis and/or as and when incurred, particularly after they have discharged their
responsibilities and rendered their services to the Company.
The present remuneration structure for the Non-Executive Directors as approved by the Board is as follows:Description
Monthly fixed allowances
Meeting allowance (per meeting)
a) Board Member
b) Board Committee Members
Other Claimable Benefits

Chairman
Subsidiaries
Company
RM3000
RM500

Non-Executive Directors
Subsidiaries
Company
RM1000
RM500 –
RM1500

RM300
RM300
RM300
RM300
Business travel and
accommodation,
communication,
medical coverage and other
claimable benefits

RM300
RM300
RM300
RM300
Business travel and
accommodation,
communication, medical
coverage and other claimable
benefits

As required by Section 230 of the Companies Act 2016, the payment of the directors benefits up to an
amount of RM550,000 for the period from 31 January 2017 until the conclusion of the upcoming 18th AGM
have been presented to the shareholders and duly approved by them at the 17th AGM held on 23 May
2017.
The breakdown of the Directors’ allowances paid in 2017 is as follows: Name
RM, in Gross

YAB Tuan Lim Guan Eng
YB Dato’ Haji Mohd Rashid Bin Hasnon
YB Prof. Dr. P. Ramasamy a/l Palanisamy
YB Dato’ Seri Farizan Bin Darus
YB Dato’ Sarul Bahiyah Binti Abu
YB Tuan Lim Hock Seng
YB Dato’ Haji Abdul Malik Bin Abul Kassim
YB Tuan Phee Boon Poh
YB Tuan Chow Kon Yeow
Dato’ Agatha Foo Tet Sin
Dato’ Seri Nazir Ariff Bin Mushir Ariff
Dato’ Brian Tan Guan Hooi
Dato’ Syed Mohamad Bin Syed Murtaza
Dato’ Sr. Kuvenaraju a/l Pachappen
Puan Mary Geraldine Phipps
Sub-total
TOTAL

Emoluments
Allowance
and Benefits-In-Kind
Group
(RM)
(RM)
(RM)
Company Subsidiaries Company Subsidiaries
7,800
38,700
0
9,396 55,896
7,500
21,300
0
3,490 32,290
8,700
15,900
0
3,490 28,090
7,800
15,000
0
3,490 26,290
9,300
14,400
0
3,490 27,190
7,800
13,500
0
3,490 24,790
7,500
0
3,490
0 10,990
7,800
0
3,490
0 11,290
7,200
0
3,490
0 10,690
23,400
0
3,113
0 26,513
22,800
0
3,490
0 26,290
23,400
0
3,490
0 26,890
21,900
0
3,490
0 25,390
21,900
0
3,490
0 25,390
22,500
0
3,490
0 25,990
207,300
118,800
31,033
26,846
326,100
57,879
383,979
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Senior Management’s Remuneration
The Board has identified the Top Five (5) Senior Management of the Company as Pivotal Positions, of which
their appointment falls under the purview of the NRC and the Board. They are the CEO, CFO, COO, Head
of Human Resource Division and Head of Corporate Affairs Division.
The Company considered the information of the remuneration of the Senior Management personnel to be
sensitive and proprietary in view of the competitive nature of the human resource market and to support
the Company’s efforts in retaining executive talents. Nevertheless, an aggregate amount of remuneration
/ compensation of the key management personnel was disclosed under Note 25 of the Audited Financial
Statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2017.
In achieving the intended outcome, the Senior Management remuneration package is subject to review
and approval by the Board on the recommendation of NRC. The Senior Management’s performances are
evaluated based on the Key Performance Indicators as set by the Board of Directors on a yearly basis.
PRINCIPLE B – EFFECTIVE AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT
The Audit and Risk Management Committee (“ARMC”) comprises seven (7) members, all of whom are
Non-Executive Directors; six (6) including the Chairperson are Independent Directors. Below is the existing
composition of the ARMC: Chairman:
Puan Mary Geraldine Phipps (Independent and Non-Executive Director)
Members:
Dato’ Agatha Foo Tet Sin (Senior Independent and Non-Executive Director)
Dato’ Seri Nazir Ariff Bin Mushir Ariff (Independent and Non-Executive Director)
Dato’ Brian Tan Guan Hooi (Independent and Non-Executive Director)
YB Dato’ Sarul Bahiyah Binti Abu (Non-Independent and Non-Executive Director)
Dato’ Syed Mohamad Bin Syed Murtaza (Independent and Non-Executive Director)
Dato’ Sr. Kuvenaraju A/L Pachappen (Independent and Non-Executive Director)
The ARMC is chaired by an Independent and Non-Executive Director, Puan Mary Geraldine Phipps who is
not the Chairman of the Board. The Chairman of the ARMC is a Chartered Accountant registered with the
Malaysian Institute of Accountants, having qualified as a Certified Public Accountant under the Malaysian
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (MICPA). Members of the ARMC have the relevant experience and
expertise to effectively discharge their duties. The profile of the members are disclosed in the Directors’
profile in the Annual Report 2017.
The Board, through the NRC assesses the composition and performance of the ARMC and its members
through an annual Board Committee effectiveness assessment. Based on the assessment conducted for
the financial year ended 31 December 2017, the Board was satisfied that the ARMC and its members
discharged their functions, duties and responsibilities in accordance with the ARMC’s Terms of Reference.
Collectively, ARMC members are financially literate and qualified individuals having the essential skills and
expertise to discharge the Committee’s functions and duties. In 2017, ARMC members have attended
various conferences, seminars and trainings and all members of ARMC are mindful of the need to continue
to enhance their skills and knowledge to assist them in the discharge of their duties and they have attended
relevant development and training programmes according to their individual needs to keep abreast of relevant
developments in accounting and auditing standards and other relevant changes in laws and regulations and
to enhance their ability in discharging their duties and responsibilities more effectively.
Currently, none of the members of the ARMC were former key audit partners of any external audit firms. The
Company will ensure that the cooling-off period of 2 years is observed if and when the Company is seriously
considering such a person for appointment to the ARMC. The ARMC had also reviewed and revised its
Terms of Reference (“TOR”) to include the requirement for a former key audit partner to observe a coolingoff period of at least two (2) years before being appointed as a member of the ARMC. The revised TOR was
approved by the Board in April 2018 and the same has been published at the Company’s website.
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PRINCIPLE B – EFFECTIVE AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D)
Currently, the ARMC adopts policies and procedures to assess the suitability, objectivity and independence of
the external auditors annually. The performance of the external auditors will be assessed and its assessment
results be tabled during the ARMC meeting for discussion and recommended to the Board for approval.
In addition, the ARMC also reviews the non-audit services provided by the external auditors, if any. The
Company has paid RM5,000 of non-audit fees to the Group’s auditors in 2017.
The ARMC normally meets with the Group’s external auditors to review the scope and adequacy of the
audit process, the annual financial statements and their audit findings. The ARMC had also obtained an
assurance from the external auditors confirming that they were, and had been, independent throughout the
conduct of the audit engagement in accordance with the terms of all relevant professional and regulatory
requirements. The ARMC had met with the external auditors without management presence twice during
the financial year 2017.
The ARMC also took into account the openness in communication and interaction with the audit engagement
team through discussions at private meetings, which demonstrated their independence, objectivity and
professionalism.
A formal and transparent relationship is established with the Group’s external and internal auditors through
the ARMC. The key features outlining the relationship of the ARMC with both the external and internal
auditors are included in the ARMC Report furnished in the Annual Report.
Risk Management and Internal Controls
The Risk Management Committee (“RMC”) was formed in April 2002 by the Board and comprises the CEO,
Division Heads and Heads of Department. Since 2012, an enhanced Enterprise-wise Risk Management
(“ERM”) framework has been incorporated within the Group to ensure a continuous and iterative process
towards the enhancement of risk management across the Group.
The Board is committed to maintain a good risk management framework and sound system of internal
control within the Group. The Group has an embedded risk management framework process for the
identification, evaluation, reporting, treatment, monitoring and review of the major strategic, business and
operation risks within the Group. The Board through the ARMC would obtain updates periodically on the
internal control system.
The ARMC oversees the risk management framework of the Group, reviews the risk management policies
formulated by the Management and advises the Board on areas of high risk encountered by the Group and
the adequacy of compliance and controls.
The Company continues to maintain and review its internal control procedures to ensure, as far as possible,
the protection of its assets and its shareholders’ investments.
The details of the risk management are set out in the Statement of Risk Management and Internal Control
(“SORMIC”) in this Annual Report. The SORMIC has been reviewed by the external auditors who have
reported that nothing has come to their attention that had caused them to believe that the said SORMIC is
inconsistent with their understanding of the process the Group has adopted in the review of the adequacy
and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems.
Management of risk requires the identification and evaluation of existing controls. The risk itself is further
reviewed considering the controls. Further monitoring and evaluation of risks are carried out from time-totime to ensure that the controls remain relevant and the risks are monitored. The monitoring and updating
of risks, controls and management actions are carried out using the ERM system.
Currently, the ARMC oversees and reviews the risk management and internal controls of the Company.
The ARMC reviews and endorses the risk management frameworks, guidelines and other key components
of risk management for implementation within the Company and throughout the Group. The ARMC also
reviews and endorses the risk profiles for the Group. In addition, the ARMC reviews the progress of ongoing
risk management activities to identify, evaluate, monitor and manage critical risks.
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PRINCIPLE B – EFFECTIVE AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D)
Risk Management and Internal Controls (cont'd)
In addition, the Company has an in-house internal audit function within the Group, where the Head of the
Internal Audit who reports directly to the ARMC undertook an independent assessment on the internal
control system on a quarterly basis and assured the ARMC that no material issue or major deficiency had
been noted which would pose a high risk to the overall system of internal control under review. The role of
Internal Audit is to provide independent and objective reports on the organisation’s management, records,
accounting policies and internal control.
The Head of Internal Audit will report his findings on the IA issues and update the ARMC on a quarterly basis
for the ARMC’s decision and action taken before the ARMC Chairman reports to the Board for approval.
Internal Audit Department
The Internal Audit Department is headed by Mr. Shanmuga Sundaram A/L Murugason, who holds a BAcct
(Hons.) Accounting Degree from University Utara Malaysia (1998) and a Masters Degree in Business
Administration from University Sains Malaysia (2016). He is a Chartered Accountant registered with the
Malaysian Institute of Accountants. The Internal Audit Department comprises 9 (nine) staff and carry out
internal audit responsibilities in an unbiased manner without impairing their objectivity and independence.
None of the internal audit personnel has any relationship or conflict of interest that could impair their
objectivity and independence in conducting their audit.
The audit framework of organisation is aimed to enhance and protect the organisational value of the
Company by providing risk-based and objective assurance, advice and insight. The audits are performed
to ascertain compliance with the established organisation policies, directives, procedures and professional
practice of Internal Auditing.
Relations with Shareholders
In maintaining the commitment to effectively communicate with shareholders, the Group adopts the practice
of comprehensive, timely and continuing disclosures of information to its shareholders as well as to the
general investing public. Where possible and applicable, the Group also provides additional disclosure of
information on a voluntary basis. The Group believes that consistently maintaining a high level of disclosure
and extensive communication with its shareholders is vital to shareholders and investors to make informed
investment decisions.
The Annual Report is the main channel of communication between the Company and its stakeholders. The
Annual Report communicates comprehensive information of the financial results and activities undertaken
by the Group. As a listed issuer, the contents and disclosure requirements of the annual report are also
governed by the Listing Requirements
The Board is ever conscious of the importance and need to communicate with its shareholders, stakeholders
and potential investors to keep them well informed concerning the Group’s operations and latest
development. Information disseminated to the investment community conforms to the Bursa Securities’
disclosure rules and regulations.
Reporting via the Internet
The Company maintains a website at www.pbahb.com.my to facilitate access on pertinent information
concerning the Group and its operations by the shareholders, consumers and public. This information
includes: •
•
•
•
•

Quarterly Announcements
Annual Report
Circular to Shareholders
Press statements
Other Important Announcements
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PRINCIPLE B – EFFECTIVE AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D)
Annual General Meeting
The notice of the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Company is given to the shareholders at least 28
clear days prior to its AGM. The notice of 18th AGM of the Company is dispatched to shareholders on 30
April 2018, more than 28 days before the AGM scheduled for 28 June 2018. The AGM notice is accompanied
by explanatory notes to shareholders regarding their entitlement to attend the AGM and their right to appoint
a proxy and detailed explanations for each motion to be tabled at the AGM to enable shareholders to make
informed decisions in exercising their voting rights. This would enable the shareholders to plan their time and
also to appoint proxies and corporate representatives for the AGM.
The Company’s AGM represents the primary platform for communication with its shareholders, which
provides a useful forum for shareholders to engage directly with the Board and the management of the
Company. At the 17th AGM, all the Directors were present in person to engage directly with, and be
accountable to the shareholders for their stewardship of the Company.
The Chairman of the meeting provides time for the shareholders to ask questions for each agenda in the
notice of the AGM, before putting a resolution to vote. The Directors, CEO/Management and external
auditors were in attendance to respond to the shareholders’ queries. The Chairman also shared with the
shareholders the Company’s responses to questions submitted in advance of the AGM by the Minority
Shareholder Watchdog Group (“MSWG”). A press conference is held immediately after the Company’s AGM
to disseminate information pertaining to the Group’s financial performance and operations and to clarify on
any issues raised by the media.
The Company holds its meetings in places easily accessible by its shareholders. There is no necessity for
remote shareholder participation. The Company allows a member to appoint a proxy who may but need not
be a member of the Company. In addition, this would provide the shareholders ample time to peruse this
Annual Report and ask questions during the AGM.
Pursuant to the Listing Requirements, all listed companies are required to conduct poll voting for the
resolutions put up at its general meeting effective from 1 July 2016. Hence, all the resolutions tabled at the
17th AGM held in year 2017 were voted through electronic polling.
Poll voting more accurately and fairly reflects shareholders’ views by ensuring that every vote is recognised,
in accordance with the principle of “one share one vote”. The practice thus enforces greater shareholder
rights, and allows shareholders who appoint the Chairman of the Meeting as their proxy to have their votes
properly counted in the fulfilment of their voting rights.
The Company has appointed the Company’s Share Registrar, Securities Services (Holdings) Sdn Bhd as
Poll Administrator to conduct the polling process and another independent scrutineer to oversee the polling
process at the upcoming 18th AGM.
Compliance Statement by the Board of Directors on Corporate Governance Statement
The Board has deliberated, reviewed and approved this Corporate Governance Statement. Pursuant to
Paragraph 15.25 of the Listing Requirements, the Board is pleased to report that the Board is satisfied that
to the best of its knowledge, the Company has fulfilled its obligations in accordance with all the applicable
laws, regulations, internal and external guidelines on corporate governance throughout the financial year
ended 31 December 2017.
This Corporate Governance Statement was presented and approved at the meeting of the Board on 16
April 2018.
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STATEMENT OF RISK MANAGEMENT
AND INTERNAL CONTROL
The Board of Directors (“the Board”) is pleased to issue the following Statement of Risk Management and
Internal Control (“the Statement”) pursuant to Paragraph 15.26(b) of the Main Market Listing Requirements
of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad and as guided by the Statement on Risk Management & Internal
Control: Guidance for Directors of Listed Issuers (“Internal Control Guidance”) issued by the Task Force on
Internal Control in December 2012 with the support and endorsement of Bursa Malaysia.

Responsibility
The Board is responsible for the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s system of risk management and
internal control. The Management is responsible for the implementation of the Group’s policies on internal
control. Notwithstanding that, in view of the limitations that are inherent in any system of risk management
and internal control, this system is designed to manage rather than eliminate risks that may hinder the
achievement of the Group’s corporate objectives. Whilst pursuing these objectives, risk management and
internal controls can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement of
management and financial information and records or against financial losses, fraud or any breach of laws
and regulations.

Nature and Scope of Risk Management and Internal Control
The risk management and internal control approach has always been holistic and process-embedded,
covering all aspects of the business and functional risk controls. These integrated controls are designed
to mitigate both the internal and external risks which can be inherent or controllable in nature in order to
optimise the Group’s ability to achieve its corporate objectives. The organisation’s risk management process
has been formalised via its enterprise-wide Risk Management Framework, which in the Board’s opinion,
provides an adequate and satisfactory mechanism for an on-going process of identification, evaluation,
managing and monitoring of high and significant risks. In that regard, the Board acknowledges that the nature
and scope of risk management and internal control of the Group is satisfactory and adequate in addressing
its current principal risks. The Board reviews the risk management process on a regular basis to ensure
proper management of risks and appropriate measures are taken to address any identified weaknesses.

Risk Management Framework
The governance of risk management is the responsibility of the Board and is carried out through the Audit
and Risk Management Committee. This ensures that a sound risk management framework is maintained
by Management towards upholding the shareholders’ interest and company’s assets. The Board also
determines the extent of risk the Board is willing to take towards the achievement of strategic objectives and
through the promulgation of its Risk Management Policy, a risk management framework was established.
The Risk Management Committee (“RMC”) was formed in April 2002 by the Board and comprises the Chief
Executive Officer, Division Heads and Heads of Department. The RMC reviews the management of the
risk and effectiveness of controls towards effective risk mitigation and is also responsible for ensuring that
the risk management framework is effectively implemented within the Group through the identification and
management of risks.
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Risk Management Framework (cont'd)
Since 2012 an enhanced Enterprise-wide Risk Management (“ERM”) framework has been incorporated
within the organisation to ensure a continuous and iterative process towards the enhancement of risk
management across the organisation. This framework is focused on establishing a mechanism where risks
are managed through internal controls and reduction of exposure whilst achieving the organisation’s vision
and mission. A clear quantitative and qualitative measure for the assignment of risk rating is established
and approved by the Board for the purpose of aligning the organisation’s risk tolerance for an effective risk
management approach. This also provides a consistent and systematic approach for risk identification,
risk measurement, evaluation of existing controls, development of risk treatment and action plans, and also
continuous monitoring to ensure compliance.
The approach for risk identification requires the establishment of the relationship of a risk and the source of
risk against the vision, mission and strategic objectives of the organization. The inherent nature or controllable
nature of risk is clearly established to identify the limitation of controls for the risk.
The measurement of risk takes into account the likelihood of occurrence and severity of impact based on
the Board approved parameters. These parameters cover both the quantitative and qualitative aspects of
the business. This measurement allows for the assignment of risk ratings for the identified risks and the risk
owners to take further action based on the level of risk.
Management of risk requires the identification and evaluation of existing controls. The risk itself is further
reviewed considering the controls and a net risk rating is assigned based on the residual risk. Where
necessary, management action plans are to be established to mitigate the identified risk. Ownership of the
management action plans are assigned to relevant department or divisional heads. Deadlines are given
and the management action plans are reviewed periodically. The RMC will determine the final treatment of
residual risk.
Further monitoring and evaluation of risks are carried out from time-to-time to ensure that the controls
remain relevant and the risks are monitored. The monitoring and updating of risks, controls and management
actions are carried out using the ERM system.
The RMC Chairperson, who is the Chief Financial Officer, updates the Audit and Risk Management
Committee on a quarterly basis with a summary report on the high and significant risks at corporate level
and on the status of control measures and management action plans specified to address and mitigate the
risks. The Board on its part meets to review and deliberate on the risk and control issues reported to them
by the Audit and Risk Management Committee.
The Group’s key risks for 2017 include:
Out-of-state logging in water catchment areas
Logging activities have been carried out in the Greater Ulu Muda Catchments, Kedah since 1969. This
affects the water quality and quantity of Sungai Muda. The river is a crucial raw water source for Perbadanan
Bekalan Air Pulau Pinang Sdn Bhd (“PBAPP”). To mitigate the inherent risk, the Management has called on
the Kedah state government to stop logging activities in the water catchment areas. Furthermore, PBAPP
has recommended that the Kedah state and Federal governments gazette the water catchment areas.
PBAPP has also called for the Federal Government to compensate Kedah to stop logging activities.
Insufficient raw water
Penang has one major raw water source, the Sungai Muda. PBAPP abstracts more than 80% of its raw
water from the river. In the long term, Sungai Muda can only meet Penang’s water needs until 2020. If
Penang’s water demand cannot be met, this may lead to water rationing. Plans to implement the Sungai
Perak Raw Water Transfer Scheme began in 2014. However, the Federal Government has delayed its
implementation.
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Risk Management Framework (cont'd)
High water demand
Penang is a water stressed state. Penang’s domestic consumption is above the national average.
Furthermore, population growth in Penang has increased its water demand. This is unsustainable in the long
term as Sungai Muda’s ability to sustain Penang’s water demand will reach capacity by 2020. To manage
this risk, PBAPP has applied to Suruhanjaya Perkhidmatan Air Negara (“SPAN”) to increase the Water
Conservation Surcharge (“WCS”). The proposed WCS will only affect 23% of domestic consumers who
use more than 35,000 litres of water per month. PBAPP has also reduced Penang’s domestic consumption
from 286 l/c/d in 2016 to 276 l/c/d in 2017. Initiatives carried out include distributing water saving kits and
the Aquasave programme.
Damage to pipes, plants and critical equipment
In 2017, many major pipes were broken or damaged, due to negligent actions by external contractors.
This has caused water supply disruptions to consumers, increased PBAPP’s NRW and resulted in financial
losses to repair the pipes. Storms and floods also damaged many installations and caused landslides at our
dams, reservoirs and treatment plants.
Structural failure of submarine pipelines
Penang Island receives treated water from the mainland by submarine pipelines. The island cannot sustain
itself solely on its water sources. These pipelines are crucial to the state’s continuous water supply. PBAPP
is looking into laying additional submarine pipelines to meet the island’s future water supply demand.

Key Elements of Internal Control
The key elements of the Group’s internal control system are described below:
•

The Audit and Risk Management Committee and the Board meet every quarter to discuss matters
raised by Management on business and operational matters. This includes potential risks and control
issues.

•

Clearly defined delegation of responsibilities to the Board Committee and Management. This
includes authority limits to minimise risks of unauthorised transactions. The Board has delegated the
responsibilities to the relevant committees to implement and monitor the Board’s policies on controls,
e.g. capital expenditure has to be properly tendered and approved by the Tender Committee before
any contracts are awarded.

•

The Group has established an organisation structure with clearly defined lines of accountability and
appropriate degrees of empowerment, which enables adequate monitoring of the activities and
ensures effective flow of information across the organisation. Delegation of authority and appropriate
authorisation limits imposed at various levels of Management including those requiring the Board’s
approval are documented to ensure accountability and responsibility.

•

Standard operating procedures and policies are developed to maintain a sound system of internal
control and they are reviewed and revised, whenever the need arises, to meet the evolving business,
operational, regulatory and statutory requirements.

•

PBAPP a wholly-owned subsidiary, has been certified with the ISO 9001:2015, ISO 14001:2015
(for 4 sites), OHSAS 18001:2007, MS ISO/IEC 17025:2005 Accreditation for the Sungai Dua
Central Laboratory and MS ISO/IEC 27001:2013 for the Information Security Management System
at the Sungai Dua Water Treatment Plant which confirms the good standing of the organisation’s
quality, environment, occupational, safety & health, and information security management systems
respectively.

111

112

STATEMENT OF
RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL (CONT’D)

Key Elements of Internal Control (cont'd)
•

A detailed budgeting process is established, requiring all departments in the Group to prepare budgets
annually including capital expenditure proposals, which are discussed and approved by the Board of
Directors. A yearly review of the annual budget is undertaken to deliberate and, where appropriate, to
address significant variances from the said budget.

•

Ongoing training is provided to the organisation’s staff to improve their skills and work competencies.

The Internal Audit Function
The Board recognises that the internal audit function is an important and integral component of the
governance process. The Internal Audit Department performs internal audit in diverse areas comprising the
management, financial and operational activities within the Group.
The principal responsibility of the Internal Audit function is to assist the Audit and Risk Management
Committee in monitoring compliance with policies and procedures and the effectiveness and adequacy of
the risk management and internal control systems in operation. The Internal Audit function undertakes a
regular and systematic review of the internal controls of the various operational and administrative activities
to provide the Audit and Risk Management Committee and the Board with a reasonable and independent
assurance that the system of internal controls being implemented is effective in addressing the risks and
concerns identified.

Review of this Statement
Pursuant to paragraph 15.23 of the Main Market Listing Requirements, the external auditors have reviewed
this Statement for inclusion in the 2017 Annual Report. This Statement is reviewed in accordance with
Recommended Practice Guide 5 (Revised) issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants. The external
auditors have reported to the Board that nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe that
the statement is inconsistent with their understanding of the process adopted by the Board in reviewing the
adequacy and integrity of the system of risk management and internal control.

Conclusion
The Group, in issuing this statement, has taken into consideration the scope of internal controls of PBAPP
whilst excluding that of Pinang Water Limited, a joint venture, which is deemed to be immaterial to the
Group.
The Board has received assurance from the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer on the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control system. There has been
no material loss incurred during the year as a result of weaknesses in internal control.
This statement is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors dated 16 April 2018.
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AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE REPORT
The Board of Directors (“the Board”) presents the Audit and Risk Management Committee (“ARMC”) Report
which provides insights into the manner in which the ARMC discharged its functions for the Group in the
financial year ended 31 December 2017 (“FY2017”).
INTRODUCTION
The ARMC was established by the Board of the Company on 9 April 2002 to assist the Board in discharging
its statutory duties and responsibilities relating to accounting and financial reporting practices of the
Company and its subsidiaries, monitoring the management of risk and system of internal control, external
and internal audit processes, compliance with legal and regulatory matters and such other matters that may
be specifically delegated to the ARMC by the Board.
COMPOSITION AND MEETING
The ARMC comprises seven (7) Non-Executive Directors, of whom six (6) are Independent Directors, as
follows:Chairman:
Puan Mary Geraldine Phipps, Independent & Non-Executive Director
Members:
YBhg. Dato’ Agatha Foo Tet Sin, Senior Independent & Non-Executive Director
YBhg. Dato’ Seri Nazir Ariff Bin Mushir Ariff, Independent & Non-Executive Director
YBhg. Dato’ Brian Tan Guan Hooi, Independent & Non-Executive Director
YB Dato’ Sarul Bahiyah Binti Abu, Non-Independent & Non-Executive Director
YBhg. Dato’ Syed Mohamad Bin Syed Murtaza, Independent & Non-Executive Director
YBhg. Dato’ Sr. Kuvenaraju A/L Pachappen, Independent & Non-Executive Director

Puan Mary Geraldine Phipps, the ARMC Chairman is a Chartered Accountant registered with the Malaysian
Institute of Accountants of which she is a member, having qualified as a Certified Public Accountant
under the Malaysian Institute of Certified Public Accountants (MICPA). YBhg. Dato’ Brian Tan Guan Hooi
is a Chartered Accountant registered with the Malaysian Institute of Accountants, as well as a Certified
Practicing Accountant registered with the CPA Australia. Hence, the above composition of ARMC meets the
requirements of paragraph 15.09(1)(c) of the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities
Berhad (“MMLR”), which stipulates that at least one member of the ARMC must be a qualified accountant.
All members of the ARMC are financially literate and are able to analyse and interpret financial statements to
effectively discharge their duties and responsibilities as members of the ARMC.
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) had on 16 April 2018 reviewed the terms of office
and performance of the ARMC members and based on the results of its review, the NRC was satisfied
that the ARMC and its members have discharged their functions, duties and responsibilities in accordance
with the ARMC’s Terms of Reference and supported the Board in ensuring the Group upholds appropriate
corporate governance standards.
The Board had on 16 April 2018 reviewed and approved the terms of reference of the ARMC (“TOR”) in order
to align with the requirements of the application practices and guidance of the Malaysian Code on Corporate
Governance (“MCCG”). The said TOR is made available on the Company’s website at www.pbahb.com.my
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COMPOSITION AND MEETING (CONT'D)
During FY2017, the ARMC met six (6) times with the following record of attendance:Name of the existing Committee Members

Attendance record

Puan Mary Geraldine Phipps

6 out of 6

YBhg. Dato’ Agatha Foo Tet Sin

6 out of 6

YBhg. Dato’ Seri Nazir Ariff Bin Mushir Ariff

6 out of 6

YBhg. Dato’ Brian Tan Guan Hooi

5 out of 6

YB Dato’ Sarul Bahiyah Binti Abu

(Note 1)

2 out of 5

YBhg. Dato’ Syed Mohamad Bin Syed Murtaza (Note 1)

4 out of 5

YBhg. Dato’ Sr. Kuvenaraju A/L Pachappen

4 out of 5

(Note 1)

Note 1: Appointed with effect from 27 February 2017.
The agenda and relevant meeting papers were prepared and delivered to ARMC members before the
meetings. The meetings were of adequate length to allow the ARMC to accomplish its agenda with sufficient
time to discuss emerging issues.
Representatives of Senior Management and the Head of Internal Audit were in attendance during all the
ARMC meetings to brief the ARMC on outstanding matters or specific issues that required ARMCs’ attention.
The Chief Financial Officer also attended the ARMC meetings to present the unaudited quarterly financial
statements, as well as other financial reporting related matters for ARMC’s deliberation and recommendation
to the Board for approval where appropriate. The external auditors’ representatives were also invited to
attend the meetings as and when required.
During two (2) of the meetings, the ARMC also held private dialogue sessions with the external auditors
without the presence of management on 27 February 2017 and 28 August 2017. During the meeting in
February 2017, the external auditors highlighted to the ARMC their audit findings together with the Group’s
results in regard to the audit for FY2016. Based on the auditors’ feedback, the Management had provided
full cooperation to the external auditors in the course of their audit conducted in FY2016. In August 2017
meeting, the external auditors presented the Audit Planning Memorandum for FY2017 to the ARMC.

SUMMARY OF THE ACTIVITIES AND WORKS OF ARMC
During the financial year under review, the activities and work undertaken by the ARMC are as below in
accordance with its TOR: (i)

Financial Performance and Reporting
•

Reviewed quarterly financial results of FY2017 of the Group presented by the management
before recommending to the Board for their consideration and approval;

•

Reviewed with the external auditors the annual audited financial statements of the Company
and of the Group for the FY2017 to ensure the said audited financial statements were drawn
up in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2016 and the applicable approved
accounting standards before recommending to the Board for their consideration and approval;
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SUMMARY OF THE ACTIVITIES AND WORKS OF ARMC (CONT'D)
(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Financial Performance and Reporting (Cont'd)
•

Reviewed the audit issues raised by the external auditors and the action plans required to
address those issues; and

•

Reviewed the Report of the ARMC and Statement of Risk Management and Internal Control
for inclusion in the Annual Report for the financial year ended 31 December 2017 to ensure the
contents therein are accurate and in compliance with MMLR.

Internal Audit (“IA”)
•

Reviewed and approved the annual IA plan for years 2018 to 2020 presented by the Head
of Internal Audit Department on 14 November 20107 after being satisfied with the contents’
suitability, adequacy and scope of coverage. The ARMC also deliberated on six (6) main areas
of IA activities for the year 2018;

•

Reviewed the IA reports, which highlighted the audit issues, recommendations and management’s
response;

•

Reviewed the follow up reports by the Internal Auditors on the status of actions taken by the
management on recommendations suggested in the IA reports; and

•

Discussed with the management on actions taken to improve the system of internal controls
based on the recommendations and findings identified in the IA reports and made necessary
recommendations to the Board for approval.

•

Reviewed Internal Audit Function on 16 April 2018.

External auditors
•

On 28 August 2017, the ARMC had reviewed and discussed with the external auditors their
Audit Plan and scope of works for the financial year;

•

The ARMC met twice with the external auditors without the presence of the management team
to discuss issues of concern to the external auditors arising from the annual statutory audit;

•

On 12 April 2018, the ARMC reviewed the revised terms of reference of the ARMC, the results
of the audit for the FY2017, management letter together with the management’s responses and
comments to the findings; and

•

On 12 April 2018, the ARMC evaluated the performance of the external auditors for the financial
year under review covering areas such as calibre, quality processes performance, audit team
experience, independence and objectivity, audit scope and planning, audit fees as well as audit
communications of the external auditors. The ARMC were satisfied with the independence,
stability and performance of Messrs. Grant Thornton and made recommendations to the Board
for approval on the re-appointment as external auditors.

Corporate Governance
•

Reviewed the impact of the relevant regulatory changes and ensured compliance by the
Company and the Group; and

•

Reviewed and recommended the Statement of Risk Management and Internal Control and the
ARMC report to the Board for approval.
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SUMMARY OF THE ACTIVITIES AND WORKS OF ARMC (CONT'D)
(v)

Risk Management
•

Reviewed and endorsed the risk management frameworks, guidelines and other key components
of risk management for implementation within the Company and throughout the Group;

•

Reviewed and endorsed the risk profiles for the Group; and

•

Reviewed the progress of ongoing risk management activities to identify, evaluate, monitor and
manage critical risks.

INTERNAL AUDIT (“IA”) FUNCTION
The IA function is carried out by the Group’s own IA Department to assist the ARMC in the governance of
the organisation by performing the following fundamental activities:•

Enhance and protect the organisational value of the Company by providing risk-based and objective
assurance, advice and insight.

•

Accomplish objectives of the organisation by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate
and improve the effectiveness of risk management, controls and governance processes.

•

Ascertain compliance with established organisation policies, directives, procedures and Professional
Practice of Internal Auditing.

•

Ascertain accountability and safeguarding the Group’s assets; and

•

Review the adequacy of the scope and resources of the IA function as well as the competency and
experience of the internal auditors.

Mr. Shanmuga Sundaram A/L Murugason, the Head of Internal Audit Department holds BAcct (Hons.)
Accounting Degree from University Utara Malaysia (1998) and Masters Degree in Business Administration
from University Sains Malaysia (2016). He is a Chartered Accountant registered with the Malaysian Institute
of Accountants.
The Internal Audit Department comprises 9 (nine) staff and during FY2017, the department had carried
out audits according to the IA plan which was approved by the ARMC on 28 November 2016. The ARMC
had full and direct access to the internal auditors, received reports on all IA engagements performed and
ensured IA personnel are free from any relationships or conflict of interest which could impair their objectivity
and independence.
The ARMC reviewed the IA reports and directed the management on the necessary corrective actions
and process improvements. The management is responsible for ensuring that the recommendations are
implemented accordingly. The total costs incurred for the IA function of the Company and the Group for the
financial year was RM1,189,848.10.

PBA Holdings Bhd
(515119-U)

Annual Report
2017

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’
RESPONSIBILITY IN RELATION
TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Companies Act 2016 (“the Act”) requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial
year in accordance with the Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Malaysian Accounting
Standards Board, and the provisions of the Act and the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa
Securities, and to lay these before the Company at its Annual General Meeting.
The Board is responsible for ensuring that the audited financial statements provide a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group and the Company at the end of each financial year and of their results and their
cash flows for the year then ended.
In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017, the Board considers that:
(i)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)

all applicable approved accounting standards in Malaysia have been followed;
the Group and the Company have used appropriate accounting policies and have consistently applied
them;
reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates were made; and
the financial statements were prepared on the going concern basis as the Board has a reasonable
expectation, having made enquiries, that the Group and the Company have adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.

The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Group and the Company maintain accounting records which
disclose with reasonable accuracy the financial position of the Group and the Company, and which enable
them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Act.
The Board has general responsibilities for taking such steps that are reasonably available to them to
safeguard the assets of the Group, and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.
This statement is made in accordance with the resolution of the Board dated 16 April 2018.

ADDITIONAL COMPLIANCE
INFORMATION
Utilisation of Proceeds
There was no corporate exercise with proceeds from the shareholders during the financial year.
Audit and Non-Audit Fees
The audit fees paid or payable by the Group and by the Company to the external auditors amounted to
RM153,000 and RM30,000 respectively.
The non-audit fees paid or payable by the Group and by the Company to the external auditors amounted
to RM5,000.
Material Contracts
There were no material contracts entered into by the Company and its subsidiaries involving Directors' and
major shareholders' interests which were still subsisting as at the end of the financial year 2017.

117

118

Financial
Statements

119 - 122
123
124 - 128
129
130 - 131
132 - 133
134
135 - 137
138 - 184

Directors’ Report
Directors’ Statement / Statutory Declaration
Independent Auditors’ Report To The Members
Statements Of Financial Position
Statements Of Comprehensive Income
Consolidated Statement Of Changes In Equity
Statement Of Changes In Equity
Statements Of Cash Flows
Notes To The Financial Statements

PBA Holdings Bhd
(515119-U)

Annual Report
2017

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

The directors have pleasure in submitting their report and the audited financial statements of the Group and
of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2017.
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Company is principally engaged in investment holding activities, whilst the principal activities of the
subsidiaries are as stated in Note 6 to the financial statements.
There has been no significant change in the nature of these activities during the financial year.
RESULTS

GROUP
RM’000

COMPANY
RM’000

37,280

16,671

Profit after tax for the financial year
RESERVES AND PROVISIONS

There were no material transfers to or from reserves or provisions during the financial year other than those
disclosed in the financial statements.
DIVIDENDS
Since the end of the previous financial year, the Company has declared the following dividends:
(i)

a final single tier dividend of 2.25 sen per share amounting to RM7,448,000 in respect of the financial
year ended 31 December 2016 paid on 21 July 2017; and

(ii)

a first interim single tier dividend of 1.75 sen per share amounting to RM5,792,000 in respect of the
financial year ended 31 December 2017 payable on 12 January 2018.

A final single tier dividend of 2.25 sen per share amounting to RM7,448,000 for the financial year ended
31 December 2017 was recommended by the Directors subject to the approval of shareholders at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting. The financial statements for the current financial year do not reflect
this proposed final dividend. Such dividend, if approved by the shareholders, will be accounted for in
shareholders’ equity as an appropriation of retained earnings in the financial year ending 31 December 2018.
SHARE CAPITAL AND DEBENTURE
During the financial year, the Company did not issue any shares or debentures.
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DIRECTORS
The directors who served since the date of the last report are as follows:
Directors of the Company:
YAB Tuan Lim Guan Eng
YB Dato’ Mohd Rashid Bin Hasnon
YB Prof. Dr. P. Ramasamy A/L Palanisamy
YB Dato’ Seri Farizan Bin Darus
YB Dato’ Sarul Bahiyah Binti Abu
YB Tuan Lim Hock Seng
YB Dato’ Abdul Malik Bin Abul Kassim
YB Tuan Phee Boon Poh
YB Tuan Chow Kon Yeow
YBhg. Dato’ Agatha Foo Tet Sin
YBhg. Dato’ Seri Nazir Ariff Bin Mushir Ariff
Puan Mary Geraldine Phipps
YBhg. Dato’ Brian Tan Guan Hooi
YBhg. Dato’ Syed Mohamad Bin Syed Murtaza
YBhg. Dato’ Sr. Kuvenaraju A/L Pachappen
Directors of the subsidiaries:
YB Tuan Ng Wei Aik
YB Tuan Sim Tze Tzin
YB Tuan Sanisvara Nethaji Rayer A/L Rajaji (appointed on 2.5.17)
YB Tuan Yeoh Soon Hin (appointed on 2.5.17)
YB Tuan Teh Yee Cheu (resigned on 3.4.17)
Dato’ Ir. Jaseni Bin Maidinsa
Mohammad Zulkifli Bin Abdul Hamid (appointed on 6.4.17)
Raffiq Raveendran Bin Abdullah (resigned on 6.4.17)
DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES
According to the Register of Directors’ Shareholdings, the interests of directors in office at the end of the
financial year in shares in the Company during the financial year are as follows:

|-------------- Number of ordinary shares --------------|

Deemed Interest:
YBhg. Dato’ Syed Mohamad Bin
Syed Murtaza

Balance at
1.1.17

Bought

Sold

Balance at
31.12.17

13,567,900

-

-

13,567,900

None of the other directors who held office at 31 December 2017 had any interest in the ordinary shares of
the Company and of its related corporations during the financial year.
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DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS
Since the end of the previous financial year, no director of the Company has received or become entitled to
receive any benefit (other than a benefit included in the aggregate amount of emoluments received or due
and receivable by the directors as shown in the financial statements) by reason of a contract made by the
Company or a related corporation with a director or with a firm of which the director is a member, or with a
company in which the director has a substantial financial interest, other than those related party transactions
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.
During and at the end of the financial year, no arrangements subsisted to which the Company is a party, with
the objects of enabling directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.
DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
Details of directors’ remuneration of the Group and of the Company are set out in Note 19 to the financial
statements.
INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE COSTS
During the financial year, the total amount of premium paid for the Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance
by the Group and by the Company are RM24,718 and RM17,321 respectively.
OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION
Before the financial statements of the Group and of the Company were made out, the directors took
reasonable steps:
(i)

to ascertain that proper action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts and the making
of provision for doubtful debts and satisfied themselves that all known bad debts had been written off
and that adequate provision had been made for doubtful debts, and

(ii)

to ensure that any current assets which were unlikely to realise their value as shown in the accounting
records in the ordinary course of business had been written down to an amount which they might be
expected so to realise.

At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances:
(i)

that would render the amount written off for bad debts or the amount of the provision for doubtful
debts in the Group and in the Company inadequate to any substantial extent, and

(ii)

that would render the value attributed to the current assets in the financial statements of the Group
and of the Company misleading, and

(iii)

that would render any amount stated in the financial statements of the Group and of the Company
misleading, and

(iv)

which have arisen which render adherence to the existing methods of valuation of assets or liabilities
of the Group and of the Company misleading or inappropriate.
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OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION (cont’d)
At the date of this report, there does not exist:
(i)

any charge on the assets of the Group and of the Company that has arisen since the end of the
financial year which secures the liabilities of any other person, and

(ii)

any contingent liability in respect of the Group and of the Company that has arisen since the end of
the financial year.

In the opinion of directors:
(i)

no contingent liability or other liability of the Group and of the Company has become enforceable,
or is likely to become enforceable, within the period of twelve months after the end of the financial
year which, will or may substantially affect the ability of the Group and of the Company to meet their
obligations as and when they fall due,

(ii)

the results of operations of the Group and of the Company during the financial year were not
substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature, and

(iii)

there has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report any
item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature likely to affect substantially the results of
the operations of the Group and of the Company for the current financial year in which this report is
made.

AUDITORS
The auditors, Grant Thornton, have expressed their willingness to continue in office.
The auditors’ remuneration of the Group and of the Company are set out in Note 19 to the financial
statements.
There was no indemnity given to or insurance effected for the auditors of the Company.
Signed in accordance with a resolution of the directors:

.............................................................
Dato’ Seri Farizan Bin Darus
Penang,
Date: 16 April 2018

...................................................…........
Dato’ Sarul Bahiyah Binti Abu
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DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT
In the opinion of the directors, the financial statements set out on pages 129 to 184 are properly drawn up in
accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and
the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2017 and of their financial performance and
cash flows for the financial year then ended.
Signed in accordance with a resolution of the directors:

.............................................................
Dato’ Seri Farizan Bin Darus

...................................................…........
Dato’ Sarul Bahiyah Binti Abu

Date: 16 April 2018

STATUTORY DECLARATION
I, Dr. Mary Ann Harris, the officer primarily responsible for the financial management of PBA Holdings
Bhd. do solemnly and sincerely declare that the financial statements set out on pages 129 to 184 are to the
best of my knowledge and belief, correct and I make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the
same to be true and by virtue of the provisions of the Statutory Declarations Act, 1960.
Subscribed and solemnly declared by
the above named at Penang, this 16th
day of April 2018.

)
)
)
.........................................…..................
Dr. Mary Ann Harris (MIA No. 9375)

Before me,

....................................................................
Goh Suan Bee (P125)
Commissioner for Oaths

123

124

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF PBA HOLDINGS BHD.

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of PBA Holdings Bhd., which comprise the statements of financial
position as at 31 December 2017 of the Group and of the Company, and the statements of comprehensive
income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows of the Group and of the Company
for the financial year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies, as set out on pages 129 to 184.
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position
of the Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2017 and of their financial performance and their
cash flows for the financial year then ended in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards,
International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International
Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Independence and Other Ethical Responsibilities
We are independent of the Group and of the Company in accordance with the By-Laws (on Professional
Ethics, Conduct and Practice) of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“By-Laws”) and the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the By-Laws and the IESBA Code.
Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the current financial year. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company as
a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Key Audit Matters (cont’d)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter

Property, plant and equipment (“PPE”)
(i) Recognition and impairment of PPE
(Note 4 to the financial statements)
The Group carries significant PPE which
comprise mainly of plant and machinery. There
are also significant additions to PPE during the
financial year.
There are a number of areas that could impact
the carrying amount of PPE, these include:
• the decision to capitalise the assets;
• the selection of appropriate useful lives of
the assets;
• the timeliness of the transfer of assets from
capital work-in-progress to their respective
categories in PPE; and
• the indication of impairment where assets
are not recoverable at their carrying
amount.
As PPE represents a material amount to the
Group, there is a risk that expenditure on PPE
is inappropriately recognised against MFRS
116 Property, Plant and Equipment and that
assets are not recoverable at their carrying
amount.
(ii) Valuation of PPE at fair value
(Note 4 to the financial statements)
IC Interpretation 18 Transfers of Assets from
Customers requires that transferred assets
(land and mains) are recognised as PPE in
accordance with MFRS 116 and are measured
at their fair values. The corresponding amount
is recognised as deferred income and
amortised over their useful lives.
There is a risk as the process to allocate the
fair values to the transferred assets requires
management’s judgement.

Our audit procedures included, among others:
• Obtaining an understanding of:
- the Group’s capitalisation process;
- the Group’s assessment on the useful lives
of the assets;
- how the Group identifies impairment
indicators; and
- how the Group makes the accounting
estimates for impairment.
• Review the management’s efficiency in
respect of the capitalisation of assets and
the identification of potential indicators of
impairment;
• Examining on a sample basis, management’s
assessment as to whether the expenditure
has met the recognition criteria in MFRS 116;
• Testing the expenditure capitalised during
the year on sampling basis to appropriate
evidence amongst others, contracts, progress
claims and payment authorisation.

Our audit procedures included, among others:
• Obtaining an understanding of the Group’s
valuation process;
• Evaluating the management’s competency,
objectivity and capabilities in carrying out the
valuation;
• Checking, on a sampling basis, the accuracy
and relevance of the input data used for the
mains; and
• Checking, on a sampling basis, the value
of the land against the relevant authority’s
documents and original title deeds.
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Key Audit Matters (cont’d)
Key Audit Matter
Impairment of trade receivables
(Note 9.1 to the financial statements)
The Group has significant trade receivables as at
31 December 2017 and is subject to credit risk
exposures.
We focus on this area as the assessment of
recoverability of trade receivables involved
management judgement and estimation
uncertainty in determining the probability of
insolvency or significant financial difficulties of
the debtors and default or significant delay in
payments.

How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter

Our audit procedures included, among others:
• Obtaining an understanding of:
- the Group’s control over the customers’
collection process;
- how the Group identifies and assesses the
impairment of trade receivables; and
- how the Group makes the accounting
estimates for impairment.
• Reviewing the consistency of the application
of management’s methodology for calculating
the impairment from year to year.
• Reviewing the aging of the trade receivables
and testing the reliability thereof.
• Reviewing subsequent collections of overdue
amounts.
• Evaluating the adequacy of the impairment
estimated and provided in the financial
statements.

There is no key audit matter to be communicated in respect of the audit of the financial statements of the
Company.
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon
The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report but does not include the financial statements of the Group and of
the Company and our auditors’ report thereon.
Our opinion on the financial statements of the Group and of the Company does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, our responsibility
is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements of the Group and of the Company or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the Group and
of the Company that give a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards,
International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.
The directors are also responsible for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements of the Group and of the Company that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, the directors are responsible for
assessing the Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF PBA HOLDINGS BHD. (CONT’D)

PBA Holdings Bhd
(515119-U)

Annual Report
2017

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the Group and
of the Company as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and
International Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards
on Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:
•

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements of the Group and of
the Company, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

•

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s and of the Company’s internal control.

•

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

•

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group or the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

•

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of the Group and
of the Company, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements of the Group and
of the Company represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

•

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the financial statements of the Group.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.
We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (cont’d)
From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the current financial
year and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
Other Matters
This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 266 of
the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any
other person for the content of this report.

Grant Thornton
No. AF: 0042
Chartered Accountants
Date: 16 April 2018
Penang

John Lau Tiang Hua, DJN
No. 01107/03/2020 J
Chartered Accountant
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017

2017
RM’000

GROUP
2016
RM’000

COMPANY
2017
2016
RM’000
RM’000

4
5
6
7

1,014,995
55
2,736
1,017,786

971,193
1,386
2,409
974,988

129
266,793
266,922

180
266,793
266,973

8

7,423

8,770

-

-

9

46,805
5,235
141,391
200,854

46,562
3,857
95,028
154,217

116,195
23,358
139,553

113,985
22
22,163
136,170

1,218,640

1,129,205

406,475

403,143

11
12

327,579
496,798
824,377

165,635
634,538
800,173

327,579
73,026
400,605

165,635
231,542
397,177

Non-current liabilities
Loans and borrowings
Deferred income

13
14

60,121
100,206

40,632
75,681

-

-

Deferred liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities

15
16

59,958
3,000
223,285

61,553
177,866

-

-

15
17

1,595
167,780
3
1,600
170,978
394,263

1,595
148,571
1,000
151,166
329,032

5,867
3
5,870
5,870

5,966
5,966
5,966

1,218,640

1,129,205

406,475

403,143

NOTE
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investment in a joint venture
Investment in subsidiaries
Other investments
Current assets
Inventories
Receivables, deposits and
prepayments
Current tax assets
Cash and cash equivalents

10

TOTAL ASSETS
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital
Reserves
Total equity

Current liabilities
Deferred liabilities
Payables and accruals
Current tax liabilities
Loans and borrowings
Total liabilities
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

13

The notes set out on pages 138 to 184 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
GROUP

COMPANY
2017
2016
RM’000
RM’000

NOTE

2017
RM’000

2016
RM’000

18

312,353

326,698

18,672

23,629

Cost of sales

(225,754)

(226,291)

-

-

Gross profit

86,599

100,407

18,672

23,629

Other operating income

25,136

21,616

100

6

Administrative expenses

(70,763)

(72,166)

(2,045)

(2,000)

40,972

49,857

16,727

21,635

(36)

4,791

-

-

40,936

54,648

16,727

21,635

(3,656)

7,116

(56)

(63)

37,280

61,764

16,671

21,572

Revenue

Operating profit

19

Share of (loss)/profit of equityaccounted joint venture, net of tax
Profit before tax
Tax (expense)/income
Profit for the financial year

20

The notes set out on pages 138 to 184 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Profit for the financial year
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COMPANY
2017
2016
RM’000
RM’000

2017
RM’000

2016
RM’000

37,280

61,764

16,671

21,572

73

(2,757)

-

-

Other comprehensive income/
(loss), net of tax:
Items that will be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
Foreign currency translation
differences for foreign operation
Fair value of available-for-sale
financial assets
Total other comprehensive
income/(loss) for the financial
year

94

(182)

-

-

167

(2,939)

-

-

Total comprehensive income for
the financial year

37,447

58,825

16,671

21,572

Profit for the financial year
attributable to owners of the
Company

37,280

61,764

16,671

21,572

Total comprehensive income for
the financial year attributable
to owners of the Company

37,447

58,825

16,671

21,572

11.26
-

18.66
-

-

-

Earnings per share (sen)
- Basic
- Diluted

21

The notes set out on pages 138 to 184 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

|--------------- Non-distributable ---------------|

Distributable

Foreign
Currency
Treasury Fair Value Translation
Shares Reserve
Reserve
RM'000
RM’000
RM’000

Share
Capital
RM’000

Share
Premium
RM'000

Retained
Earnings
RM’000

Total
Equity
RM’000

165,635

161,944

(230)

20

142

472,662

800,173

Foreign currency translation
differences for foreign
operation

-

-

-

-

73

-

73

Fair value of available-forsale financial assets

-

-

-

94

-

-

94

Total other comprehensive
income for the financial
year

-

-

-

94

73

-

167

Profit for the financial year

-

-

-

-

-

37,280

37,280

Total comprehensive
income for the financial
year

-

-

-

94

73

37,280

37,447

22

-

-

-

-

-

(13,240)

(13,240)

12.2

-

-

(3)

-

-

-

(3)

-

-

(3)

-

-

(13,240)

(13,243)

161,944

(161,944)

-

-

-

-

-

327,579

-

(233)

114

215

496,702

824,377

NOTE
2017
Balance at beginning

Transactions with owners of the Company:
Dividends
Purchase of treasury shares
Total transactions with
owners of the Company
Transfer of share premium
pursuant to the no-par
value regime of the
Companies Act 2016
Balance at end

11.2

The notes set out on pages 138 to 184 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Distributable

Share
Capital
RM’000

Share
Premium
RM’000

Treasury
Shares
RM’000

Fair Value
Reserve
RM’000

Foreign
Currency
Translation
Reserve
RM’000

165,635

161,944

(228)

202

2,899

423,311

753,763

Foreign currency translation
differences for foreign
operation

-

-

-

-

(2,757)

-

(2,757)

Fair value of available-forsale financial assets

-

-

-

(182)

-

-

(182)

Total other comprehensive
loss for the financial year

-

-

-

(182)

(2,757)

-

(2,939)

Profit for the financial year

-

-

-

-

-

61,764

61,764

Total comprehensive
income for the financial
year

-

-

-

(182)

(2,757)

61,764

58,825

22

-

-

-

-

-

(12,413)

(12,413)

12.2

-

-

(2)

-

-

-

(2)

-

-

(2)

-

-

(12,413)

(12,415)

165,635

161,944

(230)

20

142

472,662

800,173

NOTE

Retained
Earnings
RM’000

Total
Equity
RM’000

2016
Balance at beginning

Transactions with owners of the Company:
Dividends
Purchase of treasury shares
Total transactions with
owners of the Company
Balance at end

The share capital includes 1 Special Rights Redeemable Preference Share (“SRRPS”) of RM0.50. Refer to Note 11.1 to the
financial statements for details of the terms and rights attached to the SRRPS.

The notes set out on pages 138 to 184 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

|----- Non-distributable -----|

Distributable

Share
Capital
RM’000

Share
Premium
RM’000

Treasury
Shares
RM’000

Retained
Earnings
RM’000

Total
Equity
RM’000

165,635

161,944

(230)

69,828

397,177

-

-

-

16,671

16,671

22

-

-

-

(13,240)

(13,240)

12.2

-

-

(3)

-

(3)

-

-

(3)

(13,240)

(13,243)

161,944

(161,944)

-

-

-

327,579

-

(233)

73,259

400,605

165,635

161,944

(228)

60,669

388,020

Net profit, representing total
comprehensive income for the
financial year

-

-

-

21,572

21,572

Transactions with owners of the Company:
Dividends
22

-

-

-

(12,413)

(12,413)

Purchase of treasury shares

-

-

(2)

-

(2)

-

-

(2)

(12,413)

(12,415)

165,635

161,944

(230)

69,828

397,177

NOTE
2017
Balance at beginning
Net profit, representing total
comprehensive income for the
financial year
Transactions with owners of the Company:
Dividends
Purchase of treasury shares
Total transactions with owners of
the Company
Transfer of share premium
pursuant to the no-par value
regime of the Companies Act
2016

11.2

Balance at end

2016
Balance at beginning

Total transactions with owners of
the Company
Balance at end

12.2

The share capital includes 1 Special Rights Redeemable Preference Share (“SRRPS”) of RM0.50. Refer to Note 11.1 to
the financial statements for details of the terms and rights attached to the SRRPS.

The notes set out on pages 138 to 184 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

GROUP

COMPANY
2017
2016
RM’000
RM’000

2017
RM’000

2016
RM’000

40,936

54,648

16,727

21,635

(2,753)
(1,595)

(4,677)
(1,595)

-

-

-

113

-

-

56,267
(55)

53,586
(45)

59
(17,879)

34
(23,261)

(159)

(78)

-

-

(95)

-

-

-

1,482
(1,710)

646
1,850
(1,368)

(793)

(368)

278
36

834
(4,791)

-

-

92,632
1,347
(1,725)
19,209

99,123
(1,080)
11,986
1,384

(1,886)
(2,210)
(99)

(1,960)
6,205
(85)

Cash generated from/(used in)
operations
Income tax paid
Income tax refunded

111,463
(2,072)
41

111,413
(2,104)
2,009

(4,195)
(70)
39

4,160
(92)
-

Net cash from/(used in) operating
activities

109,432

111,318

(4,226)

4,068

NOTE
CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Amortisation of deferred income
Amortisation of deferred liabilities
Deemed loss on deconsolidation
of a subsidiary
Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment
Dividend income
Gain on disposal of other
investments
Gain on disposal of property, plant
and equipment
Impairment loss on property, plant
and equipment
Impairment loss on receivables
Interest income
Property, plant and equipment
written off
Share of results of joint venture
Operating profit/(loss) before
working capital changes
Inventories
Receivables
Payables

The notes set out on pages 138 to 184 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 (CONT'D)

GROUP

COMPANY
2017
2016
RM’000
RM’000

2017
RM’000

2016
RM’000

109,432

111,318

(4,226)

4,068

1,423
1,710

(115)
6,795
1,368

17,879
793

23,261
368

1,601

2,575

-

-

95
(1,675)

(2,649)

-

-

(81,980)

(92,589)

(8)

(141)

(78,826)

(84,615)

18,664

23,488

(13,240)
30,000
(1,000)
(3)

(12,413)
30,000
(1,000)
(2)

(13,240)
(3)

(12,413)
(2)

15,757

16,585

(13,243)

(12,415)

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

46,363

43,288

1,195

15,141

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING

95,028

51,740

22,163

7,022

141,391

95,028

23,358

22,163

NOTE
Net cash from/(used in) operating
activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
Cash flows from deconsolidation of
a subsidiary
Dividends received
Interest received
Proceeds from disposal of other
investments
Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Purchase of other investments
Purchase of property, plant and
equipment
Net cash (used in)/from investing
activities

A

B

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid
Government loans received
Repayment of government loan
Purchase of treasury shares
Net cash from/(used in) financing
activities

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END

C

The notes set out on pages 138 to 184 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTE
A. Cash flows from deconsolidation of a subsidiary
GROUP
2017
RM’000

2016
RM’000

COMPANY
2017
2016
RM’000
RM’000

Cash and bank balances
Payables
Net assets deconsolidated
Deemed loss on deconsolidation of
investment in a subsidiary
Less: Cash and bank balances

-

115
(2)
113

-

-

-

(113)
(115)

-

-

Cash flows on deconsolidation of a
subsidiary

-

(115)

-

-

B. Purchase of property, plant and equipment
GROUP

Total acquisition cost
Less: Assets transferred from customers
Total cash acquisition

COMPANY
2017
2016
RM’000
RM’000

2017
RM’000

2016
RM’000

100,347
(18,367)

101,749
(9,160)

8
-

141
-

81,980

92,589

8

141

C. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents included in the statements of cash flows comprise cash and cash equivalents
as shown in Note 10 to the financial statements.

The notes set out on pages 138 to 184 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2017
1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION
General
The Company is a public limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia and listed
on the Main Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.
The registered office and principal place of business is located at Level 32, Komtar, 10000 Penang.
The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2017
comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group” and individually
referred to as “Group entities”) and the Group’s interest in a joint venture. The financial statements of
the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2017 do not include other entities.
The controlling shareholder of the Company is the State Secretary, Penang.
The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors in accordance with a
resolution of the directors on 16 April 2018.
Principal Activities
The Company is principally engaged in investment holding activities, whilst the principal activities of the
subsidiaries are stated in Note 6 to the financial statements.
There has been no significant change in the nature of these activities during the financial year.

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
2.1

Statement of Compliance
The financial statements of the Group and of the Company have been prepared in accordance
with applicable Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards (“MFRS”), International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.

2.2

Basis of Measurement
The financial statements of the Group and of the Company are prepared under the historical
cost convention unless otherwise indicated in the summary of accounting policies below.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for
goods and services.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the
most advantageous market must be accessible to by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their best
economic interest.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONT'D)
2.2

Basis of Measurement (Cont'd)
A fair value measurement of a non-financial market takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to their fair value measurement as a whole:
-

2.3

Level 1 : Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.
Level 2 : Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to their
fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.
Level 3 : Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to their
fair value measurement is unobservable.

Functional and Presentation Currency
The financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (“RM”) which is also the Company’s
functional currency. Unless otherwise indicated, the amounts in these financial statements have
been rounded to the nearest thousand.

2.4

Adoption of Amendments/Improvements to MFRS
The accounting policies adopted by the Group and by the Company are consistent with those of
the previous financial years except for the adoption of the following standards that are mandatory
for the current financial year:
Effective for financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017
Amendments to MFRS 12 Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities (under Annual Improvements
to MFRS Standards 2014-2016 Cycle)
Amendments to MFRS 107 Statement of Cash Flows: Disclosure Initiative
Amendments to MFRS 112 Income Taxes: Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised
Losses
Initial application of the above standards did not have any material impact to the financial
statements of the Group and of the Company except as mentioned below:
Amendments to MFRS 107 Statement of Cash Flows: Disclosure Initiatives
The Group and the Company have applied these amendments for the first time in the current
financial year. The amendments require the Group and the Company to disclose a reconciliation
between the opening and closing balances for liabilities arising from financing activities, including
changes arising from both cash flows and non-cash changes, which is disclosed in Note 29.8
to the financial statements.
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31 DECEMBER 2017 (CONT'D)

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONT'D)
2.5

Standards Issued But Not Yet Effective
The Group and the Company have not applied the following standards that have been issued
by the Malaysian Accounting Standards Board (“MASB”) but are not yet effective for the Group
and for the Company:
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
MFRS 9 Financial Instruments (IFRS 9 issued by IASB in July 2014)
MFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
Amendments to MFRS 2 Share-based Payment: Classification and Measurement of Sharebased Payment Transactions
Amendments to MFRS 4 Insurance Contracts: Applying MFRS 9 Financial Instruments with
MFRS 4 Insurance Contracts
Amendments to MFRS 7 Mandatory Date of MFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures
Amendments to MFRS 140 Investment Property: Transfers of Investment Property
Annual Improvements to MFRS 2014-2016 Cycle (except for Amendments to MFRS 12
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities)
IC Interpretation (“IC Int”) 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
MFRS 16 Leases
Amendments to MFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation
Amendments to MFRS 119 Employee Benefits: Plan Amendments, Curtailment or Settlement
Amendments to MFRS 128 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures: Long-term Interests
in Associates and Joint Ventures
IC Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
Annual Improvements to MFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
MFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
Effective date yet to be confirmed
Amendments to MFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and MFRS 128 Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture
The existing MFRS 4 and Amendments to MFRS 4 will be withdrawn upon the adoption of the
new MFRS 17 which will take effect on or after 1 January 2021.
The initial application of the above standards is not expected to have any material impact to
the financial statements of the Group and of the Company upon adoption except as mentioned
below:
MFRS 9 Financial Instruments
MFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces MFRS 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement and all previous versions of MFRS 9. MFRS 9 brings together all three aspects of
the accounting for financial instruments project: (i) classification and measurement, (ii) impairment
and (iii) hedge accounting. MFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018, with early application permitted. Except for hedge accounting, retrospective application
is required but providing comparative information is not compulsory. For hedge accounting, the
requirements are generally applied prospectively, with some limited exceptions. However, the
directors deem the hedge accounting requirements under this standard to be irrelevant as the
Group and the Company do not apply hedge accounting.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONT'D)
2.5

Standards Issued But Not Yet Effective (Cont'd)
MFRS 9 Financial Instruments (cont'd)
The Group and the Company plan to adopt the new standard on the required effective date
and will not restate comparative information. During 2017, the Group and the Company have
performed a detailed impact assessment of aspects (i) and (ii). This assessment is based on
currently available information and may be subject to changes arising from further reasonable
and supportable information being made available to the Group and to the Company in 2018
when the Group and the Company will adopt MFRS 9. Overall, the Group and the Company
expect no significant impact on the statements of financial position and equity. The Group and
the Company will implement changes in classification of certain financial instruments.
(i)

Classification and measurement
Financial assets
The Group expects to continue measuring at fair value all financial assets currently held at
fair value. Quoted equity shares currently held as available-for-sale (AFS) with gains and
losses recorded in other comprehensive income will, instead, be measured at fair value
through profit or loss, which will increase volatility in recorded profit or loss.
The Group and the Company assessed that all trade and other receivables, including
intragroup balances are held to collect contractual cash flows and are expected to give
rise to cash flows representing solely payments of principal and interest. The Group and
the Company analysed the contractual cash flow characteristics of those instruments and
concluded that they meet the criteria for amortised cost measurement under MFRS 9.
Therefore, reclassification of these instruments is not required.
Financial liabilities
There will be no impact on the Group’s and the Company’s accounting for financial
liabilities, as the new requirements only affect the accounting for financial liabilities that are
designated at fair value through profit or loss and the Group and the Company do not have
such liabilities.

(ii)

Impairment
MFRS 9 requires the Group and the Company to record Expected Credit Losses (“ECL”)
on all of its trade and other receivables including intragroup balances, either on a 12-month
or lifetime basis. The Group and the Company expect to apply the simplified approach
prescribed by MFRS 9, which requires a lifetime ECL to be recognised from initial
recognition of the trade and other receivables which are financial assets. The expected
impact from implementation of MFRS 9 and the determination of ECL will have a relatively
insignificant impact on the Group’s and the Company’s receivables and profit before tax
as the current policy on impairment of receivables are considered reasonably consistent
with MFRS 9.

MFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
MFRS 15 replaces the guidance in MFRS 11 Construction Contracts, MFRS 118 Revenue, IC
Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes, IC Int 15 Agreements for Construction of Real Estate,
IC Int 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers and IC Int 131 Revenue – Barter Transactions
Involving Advertising Services.
MFRS 15 establishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. Under MFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which an entity expects to be entitled for transferring goods or services to a customer.
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2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONT'D)
2.5

Standards Issued But Not Yet Effective (Cont'd)
MFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (cont'd)
The Group and the Company have assessed the effects of applying the new standard on the
Group’s and the Company’s financial statements and has identified the following areas that will
be affected:
-

Revenue relating to sale of water will be recognised when control of the services has
transferred, being the point when water is supplied to consumers. As the transfer of risks
and rewards generally coincides with the transfer of control at a point in time, the timing
and amount of revenue recognised for the sale of water under MFRS 15 is consistent with
the Group’s current practice. The Group does not expect any transition adjustments.

-

Revenue from capital contribution funds are in relation to contributions by customers for
connecting the external reticulation mains to the trunk mains. The revenue is recognised
over time when the performance obligation is met, that is when final connection from the
trunk mains to the external reticulation mains takes place. The Group expects a change in
the revenue recognition but does not expect the change to be materially different from its
current practice.

-

The Group receives mains and land from customers (“transferred assets”) with the purpose
of providing consumers with ongoing access to water supply. The transferred assets are
recognised at fair value as property, plant and equipment under IC Int 18 Transfers of
Assets from Customers with a corresponding increase in deferred income. The Group
has concluded that the adoption of MFRS 15 will not have any effect on the accounting
of the transferred assets except for the change in the presentation as required by MFRS
15. Amount that was presented as deferred income will now be presented as contract
liabilities and further analysed into current and non-current portion while the amortisation of
deferred income which was presented as other income will now be presented as revenue.

-

Presentation of contract assets and contract liabilities in the statement of financial position
– MFRS 15 requires separate presentation of contract assets and contract liabilities in the
statements of financial position. This will result in some reclassifications as of 1 January
2018 in relation to contract assets and contract liabilities.

MFRS 16 Leases
The scope of MFRS 16 includes leases of all assets, with certain exceptions. A lease is defined
as a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying asset)
for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
MFRS 16 requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model
in a similar way to finance leases under MFRS 117. The standard includes two recognition
exemptions for lessees – leases of ‘low-value’ assets (e.g., personal computers) and short-term
leases (e.g., leases with a lease term of 12 months or less). At the commencement date of a
lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments (e.g., the lease liability) and an
asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term (e.g., the right-ofuse asset).
Lessees will be required to separately recognise the interest expense on the lease liability and
the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset. Lessees will be required to remeasure the
lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events (e.g., a change in the lease term, a change
in future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine those
payments). The lessees will generally recognise the amount of the remeasurement of the lease
liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.
Lessor accounting is substantially unchanged from today’s accounting under MFRS 117.
Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same classification principle in MFRS 117
and distinguish between two types of leases: operating and finance leases.
Either a full or modified retrospective application is required for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2019 with early adoption permitted. The Group and the Company are currently
assessing the financial impact of adopting MFRS 16.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONT'D)
2.6

Significant Accounting Estimates and Judgements
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any
future periods affected.
2.6.1 Judgements made in applying accounting policies
There are no significant areas of critical judgement in applying accounting policies that
have any significant effect on the amount recognised in the financial statements.
2.6.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year
are discussed below:
(i)

Useful lives of depreciable assets
Plant and machinery are depreciated on a straight line basis over their estimated
useful lives. Management estimates the useful lives of the plant and machinery
to be 10 to 50 years. Changes in the expected level of usage and technological
developments could impact the economic useful lives and residual values of the
plant and machinery. Therefore, future depreciation charges could be revised.

(ii)

Impairment of plant and equipment
The Group performs an impairment review as and when there are impairment
indicators to ensure that the carrying value of the plant and equipment does not
exceed its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount represents the present
value of the estimated future cash flows expected to arise from operations.
Therefore, in arriving at the recoverable amount, management exercises judgement
in estimating the future cash flows, growth rate and discount rate.

(iii)

Inventories
The management reviews for slow-moving and obsolete inventories. This review
requires judgements and estimates. Possible changes in these estimates could
result in revision to the valuation of inventories.

(iv)

Impairment of investment securities
The Group reviews its investment securities and assesses at each financial year end
whether there is any objective evidence that the investment is impaired. If there are
indicators or objective evidence, the investment securities are subject to impairment
review.
The impairment review comprises the following judgement made by management.
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2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONT'D)
2.6

Significant Accounting Estimates and Judgements (Cont'd)
2.6.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont'd)
(iv)

(v)

Impairment of investment securities (cont'd)
(a)

Determination of whether its investment security is impaired following certain
indicators such as, amongst others prolonged decline in fair value, significant
financial difficulties of the issuers or obligors, the disappearance of an active
trading market and deterioration of the credit quality of the issuers or obligors.

(b)

Determination of “significant” and “prolonged” requires judgement and
management evaluation on various factors, such as historical fair value
movement and the significant reduction in fair value.

Impairment of loans and receivables
The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any
objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired. To determine whether there
is objective evidence of impairment, the Group considers factors such as the
probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor and default
or significant delay in payments.
Where there is objective evidence of impairment, the amount and timing of future
cash flows are estimated based on historical loss experience of assets with similar
credit risk characteristics.

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The accounting policies adopted by the Group and by the Company are consistent with those adopted
in the previous financial years unless otherwise indicated below.
3.1

Subsidiaries and Basis of Consolidation
(i)

Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities, including structured entities, controlled by the Company. The
financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements
from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Potential voting rights are considered when assessing control only when
such rights are substantive. The Group also considers it has de facto power over an
investee when, despite not having the majority of voting rights, it has the current ability to
direct the activities of the investee that significantly affect the investee’s return.
Investment in subsidiaries is measured in the Company’s statement of financial position
at cost less any impairment losses, unless the investment is classified as held for sale or
distribution. The cost of investments includes transaction costs.
Upon disposal of investment in a subsidiary, the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and its carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
3.1

Subsidiaries and Basis of Consolidation (Cont'd)
(ii)

Business combination
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method from the acquisition
date which is the date on which control is transferred to the Group.
For new acquisitions, the Group measures the cost of goodwill at the acquisition date as:
•
•
•
•

the fair value of the consideration transferred, plus
the recognised amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree, plus
if the business combination is achieved in stages, the fair value of the existing equity
interest in the acquiree, less
the net recognised amount at fair value of the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed.

When the excess is negative, a bargain purchase gain is recognised in profit or loss.
For each business combination, the Group elects whether to recognise non-controlling
interest in the acquiree at fair value, or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets at the acquisition date.
Transaction costs, other than those associated with the issue of debt or equity securities,
that the Group incurs in connection with a business combination are expensed as incurred.
(iii)

Acquisitions of non-controlling interests
The Group treats all changes in its ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in
a loss of control as equity transactions between the Group and its non-controlling interest
holders. Any difference between the Group’s share of net assets before and after the
change, and any consideration received or paid, is adjusted to or against Group reserve.

(iv)

Loss of control
Upon the loss of control of a subsidiary, the Group derecognises the assets and liabilities
of the subsidiary, any non-controlling interests and the other components of equity related
to the former subsidiary from the consolidated statement of financial position. Any surplus
or deficit arising on the loss of control is recognised in profit or loss. If the Group retains
any interest in the previous subsidiary, then such interest is measured at fair value at the
date that control is lost. Subsequently it is accounted for as an equity accounted investee
or as an available-for-sale financial asset depending on the level of influence retained.

(v)

Joint arrangements
Joint arrangements are arrangements of which the Group has joint control, established by
contracts requiring unanimous consent for decisions about the activities that significantly
affect the arrangements’ returns.
Joint arrangements are classified and accounted for as follows:
•

A joint arrangement is classified as “joint operation” when the Group has rights to
the assets and obligations for the liabilities relating to an arrangement. The Group
accounts for its share of the assets, liabilities and transactions, including its share of
those held or incurred jointly with other investors, in relation to the joint operation.

•

A joint arrangement is classified as “joint venture” when the Group has rights only to
the net assets of the arrangements. The Group accounts for its interest in the joint
venture using the equity method.

Investment in joint venture is stated at cost less impairment losses in the Company’s
statement of financial position, unless the investment is classified as held for sale or
distribution.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
3.1

Subsidiaries and Basis of Consolidation (Cont'd)
(vi)

Non-controlling interests
Non-controlling interests at the end of the reporting period, being the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the equity holders of the Company, are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial position and statement of changes in equity
within equity, separately from equity attributable to the owners of the Company. Noncontrolling interests in the results of the Group is presented in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income as an allocation of the profit or loss and the comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling interests and owners of the Company.
Losses applicable to the non-controlling interests in a subsidiary are allocated to the noncontrolling interests even if doing so causes the non-controlling interests to have a deficit
balance.

(vii)

Transactions eliminated on consolidation
Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising
from intra group transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial
statements.
Unrealised gains arising from transactions with equity-accounted joint venture are
eliminated against the investment to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee.
Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

3.2

Property, Plant and Equipment
(i)

Recognition and measurement
Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost except for assets transferred
from customers (see Note 3.3) which are stated at fair value, less accumulated depreciation
and any accumulated impairment losses.
Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset
and any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to working condition for its
intended use, and the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site
on which they are located. The cost of self-constructed assets also includes the cost of
materials and direct labour. Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the
related equipment is capitalised as part of the equipment.
When significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful
lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and
equipment.
The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant
and equipment and is recognised net within “other operating income” and “administrative
expenses” respectively in profit or loss.

(ii)

Subsequent costs
The cost of replacing a component of an item of property, plant and equipment is
recognised in the carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic
benefits embodied within the component will flow to the Group and the Company, and
its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced component is
derecognised to profit or loss. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and
equipment are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
3.2

Property, Plant and Equipment (Cont'd)
(iii)

Depreciation
Depreciation is based on the cost of an asset less its residual value. Significant components
of individual assets are assessed, and if a component has a useful life that is different from
the remainder of that asset, then that component is depreciated separately.
Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of each component of an item of property, plant and equipment. Leased assets are
depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives unless it is reasonably
certain that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term. Freehold land is
not depreciated as it has an infinite life. Property, plant and equipment under construction
are not depreciated until the assets are ready for their intended use.
The depreciation rates for the current and comparative periods are as follows:
Leasehold land
Buildings and building improvements
Reservoirs
Plant and machinery
Motor vehicles
Equipment and furniture

Amortised over its
lease period
2%
2%
2% - 10%
20%
10% - 33.33%

Property, plant and equipment which were acquired from Badan Kawal Selia Air (BKSA)
upon its corporatisation on 1 March 1999 are depreciated over their remaining useful lives.
Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of the
reporting period and adjusted as appropriate.
3.3

Customers’ Contributions
The Group receives contributions from its customers, items of property, plant and equipment
(“transferred assets”) that are used to connect those customers to a network and provide them
with ongoing access to water supply. On initial recognition, IC Interpretation 18 Transfers of
Assets from Customers requires that such transferred assets are recognised as property, plant
and equipment in accordance with MFRS 116 Property, Plant and Equipment and are measured
at their fair values, whilst the corresponding amount as deferred income and amortised over a
period not longer than the useful lives of the transferred assets.
The transferred assets consist of mains, freehold and leasehold land. The depreciation of mains
and leasehold land and the amortisation of deferred income are recognised over the estimated
useful lives of the transferred assets, ranging from 50 years to 99 years. Freehold land is not
depreciated as it has an infinite life and income is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the
year of the transfer.

3.4

Leases
The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance
of the arrangement at the inception date, whether fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on
the use of a specific asset or asset or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset, even if
that right is not explicitly specific in an arrangement.

147

148

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2017 (CONT'D)

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
3.4

Leases (cont'd)
Finance leases
Leases in terms of which the Group assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership,
which include hire purchase arrangement, are classified as finance lease.
Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between finance charges
and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised in finance costs in profit or loss.
Contingent lease payments are accounted for by revising the minimum lease payments over the
remaining term of the lease when the lease adjustment is confirmed.
A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable
certainty that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is
depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.
Leasehold land which in substance is a finance lease is classified as property, plant and
equipment.
Operating leases
Leases, where the Group does not assume substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
are classified as operating leases and, except for property interest held under operating lease,
the leased assets are not recognised on the statement of financial position. Property interest
held under an operating lease, which is held to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or
both, is classified as investment property.
Payments made under operating leases are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease. Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral
part of the total lease expense, over the term of the lease. Contingent rentals are charged to
profit or loss in the reporting period in which they are incurred.

3.5

Financial Instruments
(i)

Initial recognition and measurement
A financial asset or a financial liability is recognised in the statements of financial position
when, and only when, the Group or the Company become a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.
A financial instrument is recognised initially, at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
instrument not at fair value through profit or loss, transactions costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issuance of the financial instrument.

(ii)

Financial instrument categories and subsequent measurement
The Group and the Company categorise financial instruments as follows:
Financial assets
(a)

Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables category comprises debt instruments that are not quoted in
an active market.
Financial assets categorised as loans and receivables are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Loans and receivables are classified as current assets, except for those having
maturity dates later than 12 months after the end of the reporting period which are
classified as non-current.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
3.5

Financial Instruments (Cont'd)
(ii)

Financial instrument categories and subsequent measurement (cont'd)
(b)

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale category comprises investment in equity and debt securities
instruments that are not held for trading.
Investments in equity instruments that do not have a quoted market price in an
active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are measured
at cost. Other financial assets categorised as available-for-sale are subsequently
measured at their fair values with the gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive
income, except for impairment losses, foreign exchange gains and losses arising
from monetary items and gains and losses of hedged items attributable to hedge
risks of fair value hedges which are recognised in profit or loss. On derecognition,
the cumulative gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
from equity into profit or loss. Interest calculated for a debt instrument using the
effective interest method is recognised in profit or loss.

All financial assets are subject to review for impairment.
Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost.
Financial liabilities are classified as current liabilities, except for those having maturity dates
later than 12 months after the end of the reporting period which are classified as noncurrent.
(iii)

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
statement of financial position if, and only if, there is currently a legally enforceable right
to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

(iv)

Derecognition
A financial asset or part of it is derecognised, when and only when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or the financial asset is transferred to
another party without retaining control or substantially all risks and rewards of the asset.
On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new
liability assumed) and any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in equity is
recognised in the profit or loss.
A financial liability or a part of it is derecognised when, the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged or cancelled or expired. On derecognition of a financial liability, the
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished or transferred
to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or
liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.
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3.6

Impairment
(i)

Financial assets
All financial assets (except for investments in subsidiaries and joint venture) are assessed
at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events having an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the asset. Losses expected as a result of future events, no matter how likely, are not
recognised. For an investment in an equity instrument, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value below its cost is an objective evidence of impairment. If any such objective
evidence exists, then the financial asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
An impairment loss in respect of loans and receivables is recognised in profit or loss and
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
An impairment loss in respect of available-for-sale financial assets is recognised in profit
or loss and is measured as the difference between the asset’s acquisition cost (net of
any principal repayment and amortisation) and the asset’s current fair value, less any
impairment loss previously recognised. Where a decline in the fair value of an available-forsale financial asset has been recognised in other comprehensive income, the cumulative
loss in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss.
An impairment loss in respect of unquoted equity instrument that is carried at cost is
recognised in profit or loss and is measured as the difference between the financial asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss for an investment in an equity instrument
classified as available-for-sale is not reversed through profit or loss.
If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument increases and the increase
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised
in profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed, to the extent that the asset’s carrying
amount does not exceed what the carrying amount would have been had the impairment
not been recognised at the date the impairment is reversed. The amount of the reversal is
recognised in profit or loss.

(ii)

Other assets
The carrying amounts of other assets except for inventories are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any
such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of
the cash inflows of other assets or cash-generating units.
The recoverable amount of an asset of cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in
use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset
or cash-generating unit.
An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its related cashgenerating unit exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
3.6

Impairment (Cont'd)
(ii)

Other assets (cont'd)
Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect
of cash-generating units are allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets
in the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) on a pro rata basis.
Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at the end of each reporting
period for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. An impairment loss is
reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no
impairment loss had been recognised. Reversals of impairment losses are credited to
profit or loss in the financial year in which the reversals are recognised.

3.7

Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
The cost of inventories is measured based on the weighted average cost formula, and includes
expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories and other costs incurred in bringing them to
their existing location and condition.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

3.8

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash comprises cash in hand, cash at bank and demand deposits. Cash equivalents are short
term and highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amount of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, against which bank overdraft
balances, if any, are deducted.

3.9

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group and the Company have a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events, when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and when a reliable estimate of the
amount can be made.
Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to
passage of time is recognised as finance cost expense.

3.10 Contingencies
Where it is not probable that an inflow or an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or
the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the asset or the obligation is not recognised in the
statements of financial position and is disclosed as a contingent asset or contingent liability,
unless the probability of inflow or outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events, are also disclosed as contingent assets or contingent liabilities unless the
probability of inflow or outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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3.11 Equity Instruments
(i)

Classification
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Other shares are classified as equity and/or liability
according to the economic substance of the particular instrument.

(ii)

Share issuance costs
Prior to the Companies Act 2016 which came into operation on 31 January 2017,
incremental external costs directly attributable to the issuance of new shares are deducted
against the share premium account. Effective 31 January 2017 and subsequent periods,
incremental external costs directly attributable to the issuance of new shares are deducted
against equity.

(iii)

Dividends
Dividends on ordinary shares are accounted for in shareholder’s equity as an appropriation
of retained earnings and recognised as a liability in the period in which they are declared.

(iv)

Special rights redeemable preference share
The special rights redeemable preference share (“SRRPS”) would enable the State
Government of Penang through the State Secretary, Penang to ensure that certain
major decisions affecting the operations of the Company are consistent with the State
Government of Penang’s policies. The SRRPS can only be held by the State Secretary,
Penang or its successor, or the Chief Minister or any person acting on behalf of the State
Government of Penang (“Special Shareholder”).
The Special Shareholder is not entitled to any dividend or to participate in the capital
distribution upon the dissolution of the Company but shall rank for repayment in priority
to the ordinary shares. The Special Shareholder, may subject to the provisions of the
Companies Act 2016, requires the Company to redeem the SRRPS at any time. Other
rights and restrictions attached to the SRRPS are set out in Article 21 of the Company’s
Constitution.

(v)

Repurchase, disposal and reissue of share capital (treasury shares)
When share capital recognised as equity is repurchased, the amount of the consideration
paid, including directly attributable costs, net of any tax effects, is recognised as a
deduction from equity. Repurchased shares that are not subsequently cancelled are
classified as treasury shares in the statements of changes in equity.
Where treasury shares are distributed as share dividends, the cost of the treasury shares
is applied in the reduction of the distributable reserves.
Where treasury shares are sold or reissued subsequently, the difference between the sales
consideration net of directly attributable costs and the carrying amount of the treasury
shares is recognised in equity.

3.12 Foreign Currency
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of the
Group entities at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the end of the reporting
period are translated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at that date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
3.12 Foreign Currency (Cont'd)
Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured at historical cost in a foreign currency at the end
of the reporting period are translated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at the date
of the transaction except for those measured at fair value shall be translated at the exchange
rate at the date when the fair value was determined.
Exchange differences arising from the settlement of foreign currency transactions and from the
translation of foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss.
Exchange differences arising on the translation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are
included in profit or loss for the period except for the differences arising on the translation of nonmonetary items in respect of which gains or losses are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income. Exchange differences arising from such non-monetary items are recognised directly in
other comprehensive income.
3.13 Revenue and Other Income
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and to the Company and when the revenue can be reliably measured on the following
basis:
(i)

Sale of water
Revenue from water supplied to consumers are recognised when invoiced and upon
services being rendered.

(ii)

Capital contribution funds
Capital contribution funds for trunk mains is recognised as income when invoiced and
upon services being rendered.

(iii)

Sales from education business
Revenue is recognised upon the services being rendered or performed.

(iv)

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date that the Group’s or the
Company’s right to receive payment is established, which in the case of quoted securities
is the ex-dividend date.

(v)

Rental income
Rental income is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of
the lease. Lease incentives granted are recognised as an integral part of the total rental
income, over the term of the lease. Rental income from subleased property is recognised
as other income.

(vi)

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest method in profit or
loss except for interest income arising from temporary investment of borrowings taken
specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset which is accounted for in
accordance with the accounting policy on borrowing costs.
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3.14 Income Tax
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination or items
recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income.
Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year,
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.
Deferred tax is recognised using the liability method, providing for temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position and their tax
bases. Deferred tax is not recognised for temporary differences arising from the initial recognition
of goodwill and assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary
differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the
same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.
A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.
Unutilised reinvestment allowance and investment tax allowance, being tax incentives that is not
a tax base of an asset, is recognised as a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available to set-off against the unutilised tax incentives.
3.15 Goods and Services Tax
Goods and Services Tax (“GST”) is a consumption tax based on the value-added concept. GST
is imposed on goods and services at every production and distribution stage in the supply chain
including importation of goods and services, at the applicable tax rate of 6%. Input tax that a
company pays on business purchases is offset against output tax.
Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of GST except:
-

where the GST incurred in a purchase of asset or service is not recoverable from the
authority, in which case the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the
asset or as part of the expense item as applicable; and

-

receivables and payables that are stated with GST inclusive.

The net GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of
receivables or payables in the statements of financial position.
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3.16 Employee Benefits
(i)

Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefit obligations in respect of salaries, annual bonuses, paid
annual leave and sick leave are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as
the related service is provided.
A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short term cash bonus
or profit-sharing plans if the Group and the Company have a present legal or constructive
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the
obligation can be estimated reliably.

(ii)

State plans
The Group’s and the Company’s contributions to the statutory pension funds are charged
to profit or loss in the financial year to which they relate. Once the contributions have been
paid, the Group and the Company have no further payment obligations.

3.17 Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset are capitalised during the period of time that is necessary to complete and prepare the asset
for its intended use or sale. Capitalisation of borrowing costs commences when the activities
to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress and the expenditures and
borrowing costs are incurred. Borrowing costs are capitalised until the assets are substantially
completed for their intended use or sale.
Other borrowing costs are expensed as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Group incurred in connection with
the borrowing of funds.
3.18 Segment Reporting
An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from
which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate
to transactions with any of the Group’s other components. An operating segment’s operating
results are reviewed regularly by the chief operating decision maker, which in this case is the
Chief Executive Officer of the Group, to make the decisions about resources to be allocated
to the segment and to assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is
available.
3.19 Earnings Per Ordinary Share
The Group presents basic earnings per share data for its ordinary shares (“EPS”).
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period,
adjusted for own shares held.
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3.20 Related Parties
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group. A related party transaction is a
transfer of resources, services or obligations between the Group and its related party, regardless
of whether a price is charged.
(a)

A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the Group if that person:
(i)
(ii)
(iii)

(b)

Has control or joint control over the Group;
Has significant influence over the Group; or
Is a member of the key management personnel of the Group.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions applies:
(i)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)
(v)
(vi)
(vii)
(viii)

The entity and the Group are members of the same group.
One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity.
Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.
One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.
The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefits of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the Group.
The entity is controlled or jointly-controlled by a person identified in (a) above.
A person identified in (a)(i) above has significant influence over the Group or is a
member of the key management personnel of the ultimate holding company or the
Group.
The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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2,016
875
-

46,840

41,478
5,362
-

39,805

1,419

1,419
-

3,576

3,324
252
-

44,800

37,205
1,256
6,339

55,669

3,768

3,768
-

22,036

20,515
1,530
(9)

81,473

80,214
1,105
(9)
163

84,186

-

-

22,672

20,354
2,318
-

106,858

96,683
199
9,976

678,898

6,105

5,459
646

427,352

387,215
41,961
(1,824)

1,112,355

998,293
48,242
(2,605)
68,425

1,913

-

-

13,759

14,074
885
(1,200)

15,672

15,480
1,392
(1,200)
-

10,086

-

-

61,720

56,258
5,761
(2)
(297)

71,806

65,779
3,692
(2)
(350)
2,687

Total
RM’000

45,578

-

-

-

-

45,578

971,193

11,292

10,646
646

554,022

503,768
53,586
(2)
(3,330)

1,536,507

96,465 1,438,924
36,703
101,749
(2)
(4,164)
(87,590)
-

|-------At fair value------| |---------------------------------------------At cost--------------------------------------------------------|
Plant
Buildings
Plant
Equipment
Capital
and
and building
and
Motor
and
work-inLand machinery
Land improvements Reservoirs machinery
vehicles
furniture
progress
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT'D)
(i)

Included in the carrying amount of land are:
GROUP
2017
2016
RM’000
RM’000
30,771
24,886
55,657

Freehold land
Leasehold land

(ii)

29,131
21,783
50,914

Certain freehold land and leasehold land of the Group with carrying amounts of RM186,000
(2016: RM186,000) and RM25,000 (2016: RM26,000) respectively are in the process of being
registered under the name of a subsidiary.
COMPANY
Equipment and furniture
2017
2016
RM’000
RM’000
At cost
Balance at beginning
Additions
Written off
Balance at end

347
8
(2)
353

209
141
(3)
347

Balance at beginning
Current charge
Written off
Balance at end

167
59
(2)
224

136
34
(3)
167

Carrying amount

129

180

Accumulated depreciation

5.

INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE
GROUP
2017
2016
RM’000
RM’000
At cost:
Unquoted shares
Share of post-acquisition reserve

*

RM99

*
55
55

*
1,386
1,386

COMPANY
2017
2016
RM’000
RM’000
*
*

*
*
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5.

INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE (CONT'D)
Details of the joint venture which was incorporated in the Federal Territory of Labuan, Malaysia are as
follows:
Name of entity

Effective equity interest
2017
%

2016
%

26

26

Pinang Water Limited (“PWL”)

Principal activity

Dormant.

The following shows the summarised financial information of PWL and a reconciliation of the
summarised financial information to the carrying amount of the Group’s interest in PWL, which is
accounted for using the equity method.
GROUP
2017
2016
RM’000
RM’000
Summarised financial information
As at 31 December
Assets and liabilities
Total assets, representing current assets comprising cash and cash
equivalents

243

5,362

Current liabilities, representing total liabilities

(32)

(31)

(139)
(139)

18,425
(10,604)
7,821

Included in the total comprehensive (loss)/income are:
Revenue
Depreciation and amortisation
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary
Interest income
Interest expense
Income tax expense

4
(20)

5,075
(758)
18,146
512
(132)
(45)

Reconciliation of net assets to carrying amount as at 31
December
Carrying amount - Group’s share of net assets

55

1,386

Year ended 31 December
Results
(Loss)/Profit for the financial year
Other comprehensive loss
Total comprehensive (loss)/income

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2017 (CONT'D)

5.

Annual Report
2017

PBA Holdings Bhd
(515119-U)

INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE (CONT'D)

Group’s share of results for the financial year ended
31 December
Group’s share of (loss)/profit
Group’s share of other comprehensive loss
Group’s share of total comprehensive (loss)/income
Other information
Dividends received by the Group

2017
RM’000

2016
RM’000

(36)
(36)

4,791
(2,757)
2,034

1,368

6,750

Contingent liabilities and capital commitments
The joint venture has no contingent liabilities or capital commitments as at the end of the reporting
period.
6.

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES
COMPANY
2017
2016
RM’000
RM’000
265,925
868
266,793

Unquoted shares, at cost
Share-based payments allocated to subsidiaries

265,925
868
266,793

The movement of accumulated impairment loss during the financial year is as follows:
COMPANY
2017
2016
RM’000
RM’000
-

Balance at beginning
Written off
Balance at end

100
(100)
-

The details of the subsidiaries, all of which were incorporated in Malaysia, are as follows:
Name of entity

Effective equity
interest
2016
2017

Principal activity

%

%

Perbadanan Bekalan Air
Pulau Pinang Sdn. Bhd.

100

100

Water supplier involved in the abstraction of
raw water, treatment of water, supply and
sale of treated water to consumers.

PBA Resources Sdn. Bhd.

100

100

Providing training facilities, education and
other non-water related businesses.
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7.

OTHER INVESTMENTS
These investments are managed by an external fund management company in accordance with the
terms of the Investment Management Mandate. As at the end of the reporting period, the funds were
invested as follows:
GROUP

Available-for-sale financial assets
Quoted investments in Malaysia
Loans and receivables
Money market placement
Representing items:
At fair value
At amortised cost

Market value of quoted investments

8.

2017
RM’000

2016
RM’000

1,876

1,778

860
2,736

631
2,409

1,876
860
2,736

1,778
631
2,409

1,876

1,778

INVENTORIES
GROUP

Spare parts and consumables
Chemicals

Recognised in profit or loss:
Inventories recognised as cost of sales
Reversal of write-down

2017
RM’000

2016
RM’000

6,713
710
7,423

8,135
635
8,770

11,994
-

12,097
(621)
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RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

Note
Trade
Trade receivables
Less: Allowance for impairment

9.1
9.1

Non-trade
Other receivables
Less: Allowance for impairment

9.2

GST claimable
Deposits
Prepayments
Amount due from subsidiaries

9.1

9.3

GROUP
2017
2016
RM’000
RM’000

COMPANY
2017
2016
RM’000
RM’000

39,273
(9,422)
29,851

38,410
(9,443)
28,967

-

-

6,887
(1,817)
5,070

6,490
(2,291)
4,199

173
173

254
254

495
11,337
1,564
17,595
46,562

116,022
116,195
116,195

113,731
113,985
113,985

740
9,417
1,727
16,954
46,805

Trade receivables
The Group’s credit policy provides trade receivables with a 30 days (2016: 30 days) credit
period. They are recognised at their original invoice amounts which represent their fair values on
initial recognition.
The movement of allowance for impairment is as follows:
GROUP

Balance at beginning
Current year
Recovered
Reversed
Written off
Balance at end
9.2

2017
RM’000

2016
RM’000

9,443
2,121
(1,283)
(687)
(172)
9,422

9,117
1,338
(743)
(269)
9,443

Other receivables
The movement of allowance for impairment is as follows:
GROUP

Balance at beginning
Current year
Recovered
Written off
Balance at end
9.3

2017
RM’000

2016
RM’000

2,291
48
(484)
(38)
1,817

1,972
512
(188)
(5)
2,291

Amount due from subsidiaries
The amount due from subsidiaries is non-trade related, unsecured, non-interest bearing and is
repayable on demand.
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10.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
GROUP
2017
2016
RM’000
RM’000
Cash and bank balances
Short term deposits with licensed
banks
Short term funds with licensed
financial institutions

11.

COMPANY
2017
2016
RM’000
RM’000

20,422

27,016

96

540

6,000

10,000

2,000

5,000

114,969
141,391

58,012
95,028

21,262
23,358

16,623
22,163

SHARE CAPITAL
2017

Issued and fully paid
Special rights redeemable
preference share (“SRRPS”)
Ordinary shares
Balance at beginning
Transfer of share premium
pursuant to no-par value
regime of the Companies
Act 2016
Balance at end

Note

Number
of shares
’000

11.1

11.2

2016

Amount
RM’000

Number
of shares
’000

Amount
RM’000

*

**

*

**

331,271

165,635

331,271

165,635

331,271
331,271

161,944
327,579
327,579

331,271
331,271

165,635
165,635

* 1 SRRPS
** RM0.50
11.1 Special rights redeemable preference share (“SRRPS”)
The SRRPS would enable the State Government of Penang through the State Secretary, Penang
to ensure that certain major decisions affecting the operations of the Company are consistent
with the State Government of Penang’s policies. The SRRPS can only be held by the State
Secretary, Penang or its successor, or the Chief Minister or any person acting on behalf of the
State Government of Penang (“Special Shareholder”).
The Special Shareholder is not entitled to any dividend or participate in the capital distribution
upon the dissolution of the Company but shall rank for repayment in priority to the ordinary
shares. The Special Shareholder may, subject to the provisions of the Companies Act 2016
require the Company to redeem the SRRPS at any time. Other rights and restrictions attached
to the SRRPS are set out in Article 21 of the Company’s Constitution.
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SHARE CAPITAL (CONT'D)
11.2 Ordinary shares
The new Companies Act 2016 (the “Act”), which came into operation on 31 January 2017,
abolished the concept of authorised share capital and par value of share capital. Consequently,
the amount standing to the credit of the share premium account of RM161,944,000 becomes
part of the Company’s share capital pursuant to the transitional provisions set out in Section
618(2) of the Act. Notwithstanding this provision, the Company may within 24 months from
the commencement of the Act, use the amount standing to the credit of its share premium
account for purposes as set out in Section 618(3) of the Act. There is no impact on the number
of ordinary shares in issue or the relative entitlement of any of the members as a result of this
transition.

12.

RESERVES

Note

GROUP
2017
2016
RM’000
RM’000

12.1

496,702

COMPANY
2017
2016
RM’000
RM’000

Distributable
Retained earnings

472,662

73,259

69,828

(233)
114

161,944
(230)
20

(233)
-

161,944
(230)
-

215
96
496,798

142
161,876
634,538

(233)
73,026

161,714
231,542

Non-distributable
Share premium
Treasury shares
Fair value reserve
Foreign currency translation
reserve

12.2
12.3
12.4

12.1 Retained earnings
The franking of dividends of the Company is under the single tier system and therefore there
is no restriction on the Company to distribute dividends subject to the availability of retained
earnings.
12.2 Treasury shares
The shareholders of the Company in the Annual General Meeting held on 23 May 2017, approved
the Company’s plan to purchase up to 10% of its issued and paid-up share capital of ordinary
shares.
During the financial year ended 31 December 2017, the Company repurchased 2,000 of its
issued and paid-up ordinary shares from the open market.
Number
of
shares

Purchase
price
RM

Consideration
RM’000

Transaction
cost
RM’000

Total
consideration
RM’000

1,000
1,000

1.29
1.22

2
1

-

2
1
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12.

RESERVES (CONT'D)
12.2 Treasury shares (Cont'd)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2017, the Company repurchased 2,000 of its issued
and paid-up ordinary shares from the open market. The average price paid for the shares
repurchased was RM1.26 per share.
The shares repurchased were financed by internally generated funds. The shares repurchased
are being held as treasury shares in accordance with Section 127 of the Companies Act 2016.
Of the total 331,270,401 issued and paid-up ordinary shares as at 31 December 2017, 269,900
(2016: 267,900) ordinary shares are held as treasury shares by the Company. The number of
outstanding ordinary shares in issue is therefore 331,000,501 (2016: 331,002,501) ordinary
shares.
12.3 Fair value reserve
The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of available-for-sale
financial assets until the investments are derecognised or impaired.
12.4 Foreign currency translation reserve
The foreign currency translation reserve comprises foreign exchange differences arising from the
translation of financial statements of the joint venture whose functional currency is other than
RM.

13.

LOANS AND BORROWINGS, UNSECURED

Note
Loans from Federal Government via the State
Government of Penang
Nominal value of loans
Less: Deemed interest recognised as deferred income
Add: Amortised interest
Less: Repayment

Loan from State Government of Penang
Nominal value of loan
Less: Deemed interest recognised as deferred income
Add: Amortised interest

Analysed as:
Non-current
Current

GROUP
2017
2016
RM’000
RM’000

13.1

13.2

43,000
(18,117)
1,330
(1,000)
25,213

44,000
(19,165)
1,366
(1,000)
25,201

60,000
(27,433)
3,941
36,508
61,721

30,000
(14,827)
1,258
16,431
41,632

60,121
1,600
61,721

40,632
1,000
41,632
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LOANS AND BORROWINGS, UNSECURED
13.1 A subsidiary of the Company had on 16 January 2012 and 24 October 2014 obtained term
loans of RM20 million and RM24 million respectively from the Federal Government via the State
Government of Penang to finance Non-Revenue water projects. The term loans are unsecured,
interest free and repayable as follows:
•
RM20 million - repayable over 20 years with effect from 11 September 2016; and
•
RM24 million - repayable over 20 years with effect from 10 December 2018.
13.2 A subsidiary has obtained a term loan of RM80 million on 1 June 2016 from the State Government
of Penang to finance its capital expenditure projects in relation to the replacements of pipelines,
water meters, upgrading of the water treatment plants and water reservoirs. The term loan
is unsecured and is repayable over 10 years with effect from 26 June 2020. However, on 10
January 2018, the State Government of Penang has revised the repayment terms to change the
commencement of repayment to 3 May 2020. Interest will be charged at 4% per annum upon
commencement of repayment of the term loan.
The loan drawdown during the financial year amounted to RM30,000,000 (2016: RM30,000,000).
13.3 On 6 November 2017, the State Government has agreed to give a subsidiary another loan
amounting to RM60 million to finance the subsidiary’s capital expenditure projects. The loan is
unsecured and interest will be charged at 4% per annum and is repayable over 20 years. As at
31 December 2017, the loan is still pending the approval from Suruhanjaya Perkhidmatan Air
Negara.

14.

DEFERRED INCOME

Note
Term loans
Balance at beginning
Transfer from loans and borrowings
Less: Amortisation
Balance at end

14.1

Transfer of assets from customers
Balance at beginning
Additions during the year
Less: Amortisation
Balance at end

14.2

GROUP
2017
2016
RM’000
RM’000

31,368
14,182
(5,271)
40,279

19,165
14,827
(2,624)
31,368

44,313
18,367
(2,753)
59,927

39,830
9,160
(4,677)
44,313

100,206

75,681

Deferred income is in respect of the following:
14.1 The difference between the nominal value of the term loans obtained as mentioned in Note 13.1
and 13.2 and the fair value of the loans measured on initial recognition. The deferred income
is amortised over the period from the initial loan drawdown date up to the maturity date of the
loans.
14.2 The fair values of assets transferred from customers which consist of mains and land upon initial
recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition, the deferred income is amortised over the useful
lives of these assets as disclosed in Note 3.3.
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15.

DEFERRED LIABILITIES
GROUP

Non-current
Current

2017
RM’000

2016
RM’000

59,958
1,595
61,553

61,553
1,595
63,148

Pursuant to migration of the Penang State Water Assets and the loans to Pengurusan Aset Air Berhad
(PAAB) in the financial year 2011, a subsidiary entered into Facility and Lease Agreements (FLA) with
PAAB to enable water supply services to be carried out on the lands leased from PAAB. The FLA
is effective for a period of 45 years from 1 August 2011. Further details of the operating lease are
disclosed in Note 23 to the financial statements.
Following the above events, the outstanding balance of the loans obtained from the Federal Government
via the State Government of Penang was converted into lease incentives, classified under deferred
liabilities and are amortised over the lease period of 45 years with effect from 1 August 2011. During
the financial year, RM1,595,000 (2016: RM1,595,000) was amortised and applied against the lease
expense attributable to the FLA.
16.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
GROUP

Balance at beginning
Recognised in profit or loss (Note 20)
- Current year
- Under provision in prior year
Balance at end

2017
RM’000

2016
RM’000

-

5,490

1,495
1,505
3,000

(7,860)
2,370
-

The deferred tax liabilities are in respect of the following:
GROUP

- Property, plant and equipment
- Capital contribution funds
- Unutilised reinvestment allowance
- Other items

2017
RM’000

2016
RM’000

137,723
8,338
(142,665)
(396)
3,000

-
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PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

Note
Trade
Trade payables
Non-trade
Other payables and accruals
Dividend payable
Accrued flood discounts
Refundable deposits

17.1
17.2

GROUP
2017
2016
RM’000
RM’000

COMPANY
2017
2016
RM’000
RM’000

4,636

5,421

-

-

48,827
5,793
13,163
95,361
163,144
167,780

45,627
5,793
91,730
143,150
148,571

74
5,793
5,867
5,867

173
5,793
5,966
5,966

17.1 Accrued flood discounts
Accrued flood discounts are water bill discounts given by a subsidiary to the consumers for
current year’s water consumption in line with the subsidiary’s “Pulau Pinang Bangkit” initiative.
The discounts will appear on bills dated January to March 2018.
17.2 Refundable deposits
Refundable deposits comprise mainly water supply deposits, reticulation mains deposits,
security deposits and pipe maintenance deposits received from customers.
18.

REVENUE
GROUP
2017
2016
RM’000
RM’000
Gross dividend from a subsidiary
Gross dividend from a joint venture
Interest income
Sale of water
Capital contribution funds
Sales from education business

793
295,458
16,024
78
312,353

368
314,362
11,676
292
326,698

COMPANY
2017
2016
RM’000
RM’000
16,511
1,368
793
18,672

16,511
6,750
368
23,629
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19.

OPERATING PROFIT
GROUP
2017
2016
RM’000
RM’000

COMPANY
2017
2016
RM’000
RM’000

After charging:
Auditors’ remuneration
- Grant Thornton
- audit fees
- non-audit fees
- Local affiliate of Grant Thornton
- non-audit fees
Dams and mains lease charges
Deemed loss on deconsolidation of a
subsidiary
Directors’ allowance
- present Directors
- past Directors
Impairment loss on:
- trade and other receivables (net)
- property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment:
- depreciation (Note 4)
- written off
Raw water intake charges
Rental expenses
Water supply licence fee

153
5

133
5

30
5

20
5

12,966

38
12,966

-

4
-

-

113

-

-

370
2

338
34

207
-

191
9

(285)
-

919
646

-

-

56,267
278
20,463
2,058
3,222

53,586
834
20,438
1,932
3,336

59
15
-

34
23
-

25

10

-

-

159
95

78
-

-

-

55
139

45
79

-

-

4,847
1,710
-

4,488
1,368
5

792
-

368
5

2,753
1,610

4,677
1,601

-

-

And after crediting:
Bad debts recovered
Gain on disposal of
- other investments
- property, plant and equipment
Gross dividends received from
investments quoted in Malaysia
Income from miscellaneous jobs
Income from reconnection, final
connection and warning notice
charges
Interest income
Realised gain on foreign exchange
Recognition of customers’
contribution
Rental income
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TAX (EXPENSE)/INCOME
Recognised in profit or loss:
GROUP
2017
2016
RM’000
RM’000

COMPANY
2017
2016
RM’000
RM’000

Current tax
Current year
Over/(Under) provision in prior year

(660)
4
(656)

(60)
1,686
1,626

(60)
4
(56)

(60)
(3)
(63)

(1,495)
(1,505)
(3,000)
(3,656)

7,860
(2,370)
5,490
7,116

(56)

(63)

Deferred tax
Current year
Under provision in prior year

The reconciliation of tax (expense)/income of the Group and of the Company are as follows:
GROUP
2017
2016
RM’000
RM’000
Profit before tax
Income tax at Malaysian statutory tax
rate of 24%
Income not subject to tax
Non-deductible expenses
Current year reinvestment allowance
Utilisation of unabsorbed tax losses
Deferred tax not recognised
(Under)/Over provision in prior year

COMPANY
2017
2016
RM’000
RM’000

40,936

54,648

16,727

21,635

(9,824)
1,400
(2,978)
9,213
42
(8)
(1,501)
(3,656)

(13,115)
2,712
(2,956)
30,414
64
(9,319)
(684)
7,116

(4,014)
4,444
(483)
(7)
4
(56)

(5,192)
5,583
(454)
3
(3)
(63)

171

172

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2017 (CONT'D)

20.

TAX (EXPENSE)/INCOME (CONT'D)
The Group and the Company have not recognised the following deferred tax (assets)/liabilities arising
from:
GROUP
2017
2016
RM’000
RM’000
Property, plant and equipment
Capital contributions funds
Unabsorbed capital allowances
Unabsorbed tax losses
Unabsorbed reinvestment allowance
Other items

15
(60)
(45)

127,848
7,711
(132)
(101)
(133,452)
(447)
1,427

COMPANY
2017
2016
RM’000
RM’000
13
13

20
20

The potential deferred tax assets of the Group were not recognised in the financial statements as it
was anticipated that the tax effects of such deferral will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
The amount and future availability of unabsorbed capital allowances, tax losses and reinvestment
allowance at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
GROUP

Unabsorbed capital allowances
Unabsorbed tax losses
Unabsorbed reinvestment allowance

2017
RM’000

2016
RM’000

248
594,438

552
423
556,050

These unabsorbed capital allowances, tax losses and reinvestment allowance are available to be
carried forward for set off against future assessable income of its subsidiaries.
21.

EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic earnings per ordinary share
The basic earnings per ordinary share is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable
to owners of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the
financial year as follows:
GROUP

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
Basic earnings per ordinary share (sen)
Issued ordinary shares at beginning
Effect of treasury shares held
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue

2017
RM’000

2016
RM’000

37,280

61,764

331,001

331,003

11.26

18.66

331,271
(270)
331,001

331,271
(268)
331,003

There is no diluted earnings per share as the Company does not have any convertible financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period.
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DIVIDENDS
Sen per
share
(net of tax)

Total
amount
RM’000

2.25
1.75
4.00

7,448
5,792
13,240

21 July 2017
12 January 2018

2.00
1.75
3.75

6,620
5,793
12,413

22 July 2016
13 January 2017

Date of payment

2017
Final 2016 single tier dividend
Interim 2017 single tier dividend

2016
Final 2015 single tier dividend
Interim 2016 single tier dividend

Gross dividends per ordinary share (sen)

2017
RM

2016
RM

4.00

3.75

The gross dividends per ordinary share as disclosed above takes into account the total interim and
final dividend for the financial year.
A final single tier dividend of 2.25 sen per share amounting to RM7,448,000 for the financial year ended
31 December 2017 was recommended by the Directors subject to the approval of shareholders at
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. The financial statements for the current financial year do not
reflect this proposed final dividend. Such dividend, if approved by the shareholders, will be accounted
for in shareholders’ equity as an appropriation of retained earnings in the financial year ending 31
December 2018.
23.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
Leases as lessee
Pursuant to the Water Services Industry Act 2006 (Act 655) with the objective amongst others to
establish a regulatory environment that facilitates self-sustainability amongst the water operators in the
water service industry, a subsidiary has henceforth entered into Facility and Lease Agreements with
PAAB to enable water supply services to be carried out on the lands leased from PAAB. The lease
amounted to RM14.56 million per annum for a period of 45 years effective 1 August 2011. These
Facility and Lease Agreements supersede the operating lease agreements previously entered into with
BKSA.
Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable as follows:
GROUP

Within one year
Between one year to five years
More than five years

2017
RM’000

2016
RM’000

14,561
58,244
489,009
561,814

14,561
58,244
503,571
576,376
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23.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (CONT'D)
The net lease payments, recognised in profit or loss during the financial year is disclosed in Note 19 to
the financial statements as:
GROUP

Operating lease rentals
Lease incentives (Note 15)
Dams and mains lease charges

2017
RM’000

2016
RM’000

14,561
(1,595)
12,966

14,561
(1,595)
12,966

Leases as lessor
A subsidiary leased part of its freehold land to third parties for a period ranging from 30 to 60 years
with rent increment of 20% every five years. The future minimum lease payments under the noncancellable lease are as follows:
GROUP

Within one year
Between one year to five years
More than five years

24.

2017
RM’000

2016
RM’000

360
1,562
42,006
43,928

360
1,490
42,438
44,288

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
GROUP
2017
2016
RM’000
RM’000
Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Defined contribution plan
Other staff related expenses

61,085
789
9,848
9,393
81,115

58,375
721
9,588
10,254
78,938

COMPANY
2017
2016
RM’000
RM’000
701
4
105
36
846

640
4
90
58
792
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RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
Identity of related parties
The Group has related party relationship with its controlling shareholders, subsidiaries, joint venture
and key management personnel.
Key management personnel
The key management personnel compensations are as follows:
GROUP
2017
2016
RM’000
RM’000
Directors:
- allowances
Other key management personnel:
- short-term employee benefits
- defined contribution plan
- estimated monetary value of
benefits-in-kind

COMPANY
2017
2016
RM’000
RM’000

372

372

207

200

4,070
710

4,065
737

352
40

352
40

70
4,850
5,222

69
4,871
5,243

7
399
606

4
396
596

Government related entities
A subsidiary, Perbadanan Bekalan Air Pulau Pinang Sdn. Bhd. (“PBAPP”), transacts with entities
directly or indirectly controlled by the State Government of Penang through its state government
authorities, agencies, affiliations and other organisations, collectively referred to as governmentrelated entities. The transactions with these government-related entities include but are not limited to
the sale of water, rendering and receiving of services, leasing of assets, and use of public utilities.
These transactions are conducted in the ordinary course of PBAPP’s business. PBAPP has established
policies, pricing strategy and approval process for purchases and sales of products and services,
which are independent of whether the counterparties are government-related entities or not.
For the financial year ended 31 December 2017, management estimates that the aggregate amount
of PBAPP’s significant transactions with other government-related entities approximate 2% (2016:
2%) of the Group’s revenue and 10% (2016: 8%) of the Group’s total expenses.
26.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
GROUP

Contracted but not provided for
Authorised but not contracted for

2017
RM’000

2016
RM’000

50,700

33,000

159,000

250,000
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27.

OPERATING LICENCE FOR WATER SUPPLY SERVICE OPERATIONS
Amendments to the Federal Constitution were made to transfer the jurisdiction of water supply
services from the State List to the Concurrent List. These amendments were gazetted on 10 February
2005 and they enable the Federal Government to regulate water supply services while the State
Government regulates the raw water resources.
New acts were subsequently enacted, namely the Water Services Industry Act 2006 (Act 655)(WSIA
2006) and the Suruhanjaya Perkhidmatan Air Negara Act 2006 (Act 654)(SPAN 2006). The WSIA
2006, which came into force on 1 January 2011, provides for the regulation of water supply services
and sewerage services and the establishment of licensing and regulatory framework to promote the
national policy objectives for the water supply services and sewerage services industries. The SPAN
2006, which was approved by Parliament in June 2006 and came into force on 1 February 2007,
provides for the establishment of the regulatory body called Suruhanjaya Perkhidmatan Air Negara
(SPAN) to carry out the provisions of WSIA 2006.
On 2 June 2011, its subsidiary was granted an Individual Service Licence and Facility Licence by
SPAN pursuant to Section 9 of the WSIA 2006. The licence is renewable every three years and will
expire on 31 December 2019. The licence fees payable is calculated at 1% of the subsidiary’s gross
turnover, which is interpreted as revenue derived from the principal activities of the subsidiary and is
inclusive of other water related income.

28.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION
The Group has only one reportable segment, which is principally engaged in the abstraction of raw
water, treatment of water, supply and sale of treated water to consumers in the State of Penang and
to engage in water related business. The Group’s Chief Executive Officer (the Chief operating decision
maker) reviews internal management reports on the reportable segment on a quarterly basis.
Accordingly, information by operating segment on the Group’s operations as required by MFRS 8 is
not presented.
Geographical segment
Geographical segment information has not been prepared as the Group’s operations are confined to
Penang, Malaysia.

29.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
29.1 Categories of financial instruments
The table below provides an analysis of financial instruments categorised as available-forsale financial assets (“AFS”), loans and receivables (“L&R”) and financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost (“FL”).
Carrying
amount
RM’000

AFS
RM’000

L&R
RM’000

FL
RM’000

2,736
44,338
141,391
188,465

1,876
1,876

860
44,338
141,391
186,589

-

GROUP
2017
Financial assets
Other investments
Receivables and deposits
Cash and cash equivalents
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)
29.1 Categories of financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial liabilities
Loans and borrowings
Payables and accruals

Carrying
amount
RM’000

AFS
RM’000

L&R
RM’000

FL
RM’000

61,721
154,619
216,340

-

-

61,721
154,619
216,340

2,409
44,503
95,028
141,940

1,778
1,778

631
44,503
95,028
140,162

-

41,632
148,571
190,203

-

-

41,632
148,571
190,203

116,195
23,358
139,553

-

116,195
23,358
139,553

-

5,867

-

-

5,867

113,985
22,163
136,148

-

113,985
22,163
136,148

-

5,966

-

-

5,966

2016
Financial assets
Other investments
Receivables and deposits
Cash and cash equivalents

Financial liabilities
Loans and borrowings
Payables and accruals

COMPANY
2017
Financial assets
Receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Financial liabilities
Payables and accruals
2016
Financial assets
Receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Financial liabilities
Payables and accruals
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29.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)
29.2 Net gains and losses arising from financial instruments
GROUP
2017
RM’000

2016
RM’000

94
285
379

(182)
(919)
(1,101)

Net gains/(losses) on:
Available-for-sale financial assets
- recognised in other comprehensive income
Loans and receivables

29.3 Financial risk management
The Group and the Company are exposed to a variety of financial risks arising from their
operations and the use of financial instruments. The key financial risks include credit risk, liquidity
risk, interest rate risk and foreign currency risk.
29.4 Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of a financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. The Group’s exposure to credit risk arises
principally from its receivables and investment securities. The Company’s exposure to credit risk
arises principally from advances to subsidiaries.
29.4.1

Receivables
The risk of counterparties defaulting is controlled by the application of credit approvals,
limits and monitoring procedures. Credit risks are minimised and monitored via deposits
received from customers and notices sent out to customers 7 days after due date
for settlement of debt. Trade receivables are monitored on an ongoing basis via the
Group’s management reporting procedures.
As at the end of the reporting period, the maximum exposure to credit risk arising from
receivables is represented by the carrying amount in the consolidated statement of
financial position.
Management has taken reasonable steps to ensure that trade receivables that are
neither past due nor impaired are stated at their realisable values. The Group uses
ageing analysis to monitor the credit quality of the trade receivables.
The disclosure of the exposure of credit risk for trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period by geographic region is not disclosed as the Group’s operations are
confined to the Penang State.
The Group maintains an ageing analysis in respect of trade receivables only.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)
29.4 Credit risk
29.4.1

Receivables
The ageing of the Group’s trade receivables as at the end of the reporting period is as
follows:
Individual
Gross impairment
RM’000
RM’000

Net
RM’000

2017
Not past due
Past due 15 - 60 days
Past due 61 - 365 days
Past due more than 365 days

10,836
3,815
8,853
15,769
39,273

(3)
(9,419)
(9,422)

10,836
3,815
8,850
6,350
29,851

10,676
3,842
8,960
14,932
38,410

(3)
(9,440)
(9,443)

10,676
3,842
8,957
5,492
28,967

2016
Not past due
Past due 15 - 60 days
Past due 61 - 365 days
Past due more than 365 days

The allowance account in respect of trade receivables is used to record impairment
losses. Unless the Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount is possible, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off against the receivable directly.
29.4.2

Investments and other financial assets
Investments are allowed only in liquid securities and only with counterparties that have
good credit rating. These investments are managed by an external fund management
company in accordance with the terms of the Investment Management Mandate.
As at the end of the reporting period, the Group has only invested in domestic securities.
The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount in the
statement of financial position.
In view of the sound credit rating of counterparties, management does not expect any
counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.
The investments and other financial assets are unsecured.

29.4.3

Inter company balances
The Company provides unsecured advances to its subsidiaries. The Company monitors
the results of its subsidiaries.
As at the end of the reporting period, the maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by its carrying amount in the Company’s statement of financial position.
As at the end of the reporting period, there was no indication that the advances to
the subsidiaries are not recoverable. The Company does not specifically monitor the
ageing of these advances. Nevertheless, these advances are not regarded as overdue
and are repayable on demand.
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29.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)
29.5 Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations when they
fall due. The Group’s exposure to liquidity risk arises principally from its various payables and
loans and borrowings.
The Group maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they fall
due.
It is not expected that the cash flows included in the maturity analysis could occur significantly
earlier, or at significantly different amounts.
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s and the Company’s financial
liabilities as at the end of the reporting period based on undiscounted contractual payments:

Carrying
amount
RM’000

Within
1 year
RM’000

1-2
years
RM’000

2-5
years
RM’000

More
than
5 years
RM’000

115,200
154,619
269,819

1,600
154,619
156,219

2,200
2,200

31,080
31,080

80,320
80,320

79,987
148,571
228,558

1,000
148,571
149,571

2,200
2,200

13,997
13,997

62,790
62,790

5,867

5,867

-

-

-

5,966

5,966

-

-

-

Contractual
cash flows
RM’000

GROUP
2017
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Loans and borrowings
61,721
Payables and accruals
154,619
216,340
2016
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Loans and borrowings
41,632
Payables and accruals
148,571
190,203
COMPANY
2017
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Payables and accruals
5,867
2016
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Payables and accruals
5,966
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)
29.6 Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest
rates and other prices will affect the Group’s financial position or cash flows.
29.6.1

Currency risk
The Group is not significantly exposed to foreign currency risk as transactions
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the Group entities is
not material.

29.6.2

Interest rate risk
Cash flows interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk is
the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market
interest rates. The Group’s and the Company’s income and interest-earning financial
assets are mainly short term in nature and have been placed in short-term deposits
with licensed banks.
The Group’s and the Company’s exposure to interest rate risk is not material as the
Group and the Company do not have any significant interest bearing financial liabilities
and interest-earning financial assets other than short-term deposits placed with
licensed banks.

29.6.3

Other price risk
Equity price risk arises from the Group’s investments in equity securities.
Management of the Group monitors the equity investments on a portfolio basis. Material
investments within the portfolio are managed on an individual basis and all buy and sell
decisions are approved by the Risk Management Committee of the Group.
The management is of the view that the results of the Group is not sensitive towards
the changes in equity price risk as there are no equity investments being designated
as fair value through profit or loss. Changes in equity price risk for equity investments
designated as available-for-sale is not significant to the total equity of the Group.

29.7 Fair value information
The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, short term receivables and payables
approximate their fair values due to the relatively short term nature of these financial instruments.
The fair values of the other financial assets and financial liabilities, together with their carrying
amounts shown in the statements of financial position are as follows:
2017

2016

Carrying
amount
RM’000

Fair
value
RM’000

Carrying
amount
RM’000

Fair
value
RM’000

1,876
860

1,876
860

1,778
631

1,778
631

61,721

61,721

41,632

41,632

GROUP
Financial assets
Quoted shares
Money market placement
Financial liabilities
Loans and borrowings

The following summarises the methods used in determining the fair value of financial instruments
reflected in the above table.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)
29.7 Fair value information (Cont'd)
Investment in quoted shares and debt securities
The fair values of financial assets that are quoted in an active market are determined by reference
to their quoted closing bid price at the end of the reporting period.
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Fair value, which is determined for disclosure purpose, is calculated based on the present value
of future principal and interest cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the end of
the reporting period.
29.8 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities
The movement of financial liabilities arising from financial activities during the financial year is as
follows:

2016
RM’000

Cash
flows
RM’000

41,632

29,000

Others
RM’000

2017
RM’000

GROUP
Loans and borrowings

(8,911) *

61,721

* Consists of the difference between the nominal value and fair value of the term loans upon
drawdown of the term loans, net of current year amortisation.
Pursuant to the transition provisions of the Amendments to MFRS 107 Statement of Cash
Flows, the Group has not disclosed comparative information for the prior period.
30.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT
30.1 Financial assets that are measured at fair value
The carrying amount of the Group’s and the Company’s financial assets (other than investments
in quoted equity instruments) and financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting period
approximate their fair values due to their short term nature.
The table below analyses financial instruments measured at fair value at the end of the reporting
period, by the level in the fair value hierarchy:

Level 1
RM’000

Level 2
RM’000

Level 3
RM’000

Total
fair value
RM’000

Carrying
amount
RM’000

1,876

-

-

1,876

1,876

1,778

-

-

1,778

1,778

GROUP
2017
Financial assets
Investment in quoted shares
2016
Financial assets
Investment in quoted shares

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2017 (CONT'D)

30.

PBA Holdings Bhd
(515119-U)

Annual Report
2017

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (CONT'D)
30.1 Financial assets that are measured at fair value (Cont'd)
Policy on transfer between levels
The fair value of an asset to be transferred between levels is determined as at the date of the
event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer. There were no transfers between
Level 1 and Level 2 during the financial year.
30.2 Non-financial assets that are measured at fair value
The following table shows the levels within the hierarchy of non-financial assets measured at fair
value as at the end of the reporting period:

Level 1
RM’000

Level 2
RM’000

Level 3
RM’000

Total
fair value
RM’000

Carrying
amount
RM’000

-

-

12,745
59,567
72,312

12,745
59,567
72,312

12,745
59,567
72,312

-

-

11,109
43,949
55,058

11,109
43,949
55,058

11,109
43,949
55,058

GROUP
2017
Land
Plant and machinery

2016
Land
Plant and machinery

Level 3 fair value
Level 3 fair values of the land are derived from market price obtained from the relevant authorities,
whilst fair values of the mains are generally derived based on management’s valuation by
reference to suppliers’ quotations for similar items.
31.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The Group’s objectives when managing capital is to maintain a strong capital base and safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so as to maintain investor, creditor and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the business.
There were no changes in the Group’s approach to capital management during the financial year.
There were no external capital requirements and/or covenants imposed on the Group as at the end of
the reporting period.
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32.

MATERIAL LITIGATION
On 9 February 2015, a subsidiary of the Company appointed Prominent Multimedia Sdn. Bhd. (“PMSB”)
via a contract to implement a project known as Integrated Revenue Management System. PMSB
failed to complete the implementation within the timeframe agreed in the contract and consequently,
the subsidiary terminated the contract with PMSB.
On 5 May 2016, PMSB issued a Notice of Arbitration to the subsidiary referring the matter to Kuala
Lumpur Regional Centre of Arbitration claiming a sum of RM10,444,000 for wrongful termination of
the contract. The subsidiary made a counterclaim of RM10,517,000 against PMSB. A hearing was
conducted on 24 to 26 January 2018 and further fixed for continued hearing on 20 to 23 March 2018.
Subsequently, negotiations to resolve the dispute commenced. Following which both parties have
agreed on an amicable settlement. Parties agreed to withdraw their respective claims with no liberty
to file afresh and no orders as to costs. The subsidiary shall pay RM1,000,000 to PMSB as ex-gratia
payment.
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ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDINGS
AS AT 02 APRIL 2018

Issued Shares

:

331,270,401 Ordinary Shares (“Shares”)
and 1 Special Rights Redeemable Preference Share (“Special Share”)

Class of Equity Securities

:

Ordinary Shares (“Shares”)

Voting Right

:

1 vote per Share

Distribution Schedule of Shareholders
No. of Holders

Size of Shareholdings

No. of Issued Shares #

14

Less than 100

427

*

5,499

100 - 1,000

5,399,307

1.63

2,224

1,001 - 10,000

9,959,133

3.01

637

10,001 to 100,000 shares

19,985,033

6.04

126

100,001 to less than 5% of issued shares

80,506,600

24.32

2

5% and above of issued shares

215,150,001

65.00

331,000,501

100.00

8,502

%#

Note:# Exclude 1 Special Share which is not listed on the Main Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad and
269,900 Shares which are currently held as treasury shares.
* Negligible
List of the 30 Largest Securities Account Holders
(without aggregating the securities from different securities accounts belonging to the same person)

No. Name

No. of
Shares held #

%#

182,050,001

55.00

1

STATE SECRETARY, PENANG

2

PENANG DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

33,100,000

10.00

3

YAYASAN BUMIPUTRA PULAU PINANG BHD.

13,567,900

4.10

4

NEOH CHOO EE & COMPANY, SDN. BERHAD.

5,000,000

1.51

5

CARTABAN NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN. BHD.
EXEMPT AN FOR CA INDOSUEZ (SWITZERLAND) SA, SINGAPORE
BRANCH (MALAYSIAN)

4,597,500

1.39

HSBC NOMINEES (ASING) SDN. BHD.
EXEMPT AN FOR CREDIT SUISSE

3,568,000

1.08

CIMB GROUP NOMINEES (ASING) SDN. BHD.
EXEMPT AN FOR DBS BANK LTD

3,384,700

1.02

KENANGA NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN. BHD.
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR LIM KUAN GIN

3,200,000

0.97

MAYBANK NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN. BHD.
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR WONG KAM MUN

3,066,300

0.93

6
7
8
9

185

186
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List of the 30 Largest Securities Account Holders (cont'd)
(without aggregating the securities from different securities accounts belonging to the same person)

No. Name

No. of
Shares Held #

%#

10

OOI CHIENG SIM

2,912,600

0.88

11

TEOH GUAN KOK & CO. SDN. BERHAD.

2,684,500

0.81

12

PUBLIC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN. BHD.
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR OOI CHIENG SIM

2,183,600

0.66

13

PUBLIC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN. BHD.
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR TAN HOCK CHENG

2,166,600

0.65

14

HSBC NOMINEES (ASING) SDN. BHD.
EXEMPT AN FOR CREDIT SUISSE

1,719,800

0.52

15

LIM TEAN KAU

1,602,000

0.48

16

EMERALD LODGE SDN. BHD.

1,264,000

0.38

17

SYNERGY MOTION SDN. BHD.

1,157,000

0.35

18

AFFIN HWANG NOMINEES (ASING) SDN. BHD.
DBS VICKERS SECS (S) PTE LTD FOR ASIA HUMANISTIC CAPITAL
INC

1,100,000

0.33

19

DYNAQUEST SDN. BERHAD.

1,000,000

0.30

20

LIM YAM KONG

1,000,000

0.30

21

PUBLIC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN. BHD.
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR ENG SU LIM

807,000

0.24

22

LIM SEOW CHIN

800,000

0.24

23

ONG BEE LIAN

787,400

0.24

24

SHIN LEE YEUCH @ CHIN LEE YEUK

622,000

0.19

25

PUBLIC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN. BHD.
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR WONG PHOOI YIN

598,000

0.18

26

PUBLIC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN. BHD.
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR YAP QWEE BENG

575,400

0.17

27

TENG ENG SEAH

564,000

0.17

28

LIM MING LANG @ LIM MING ANN

500,100

0.15

29

YAP CHOO JOO @ YAP TSE LOO

500,000

0.15

30

CHONG CHEE HUI

490,000

0.15
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
(excluding those who are bare trustees pursuant to Section 130 of the Companies Act, 2016)
No. of Shares beneficially held
Name of Substantial Shareholders
State Secretary, Penang

Direct Interest

%#

Indirect Interest

%

Note

182,050,001

55.00

-

-

a

33,100,000

10.00

-

-

-

Penang Development Corporation

DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDINGS
No. of Shares beneficially held
Direct
Interest

%

Indirect
Interest

YAB Tuan Lim Guan Eng

-

-

-

YB Dato’ Haji Mohd Rashid Bin Hasnon

-

-

-

YB Prof. Dr. P. Ramasamy a/l Palanisamy

-

-

-

YB Dato’ Seri Farizan Bin Darus

-

-

-

YB Dato’ Sarul Bahiyah Binti Abu

-

-

-

YB Tuan Lim Hock Seng

-

-

-

YB Tuan Phee Boon Poh

-

-

-

YB Tuan Chow Kon Yeow

-

-

-

YB Dato’ Haji Abdul Malik Bin Abul Kassim

-

-

-

Y Bhg Dato’ Seri Nazir Ariff Bin Mushir Ariff

-

-

-

Y Bhg Dato’ Agatha Foo Tet Sin

-

-

-

Y Bhg Dato’ Syed Mohamad Bin Syed Murtaza

-

-

13,567,900

Y Bhg Dato’ Sr. Kuvenaraju a/l Pachappen

-

-

-

YBhg Dato’ Brian Tan Guan Hooi

-

-

-

Puan Mary Geraldine Phipps

-

-

-

Name of Directors

%#

Note

4.10

b

Notes:a) Exclude 1 Special Share which is not listed on the Main Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.
b) Deemed interest held through Yayasan Bumiputra Pulau Pinang Bhd pursuant to Section 8 of the
Companies Act, 2016.
INTEREST IN THE RELATED CORPORATIONS
None of the above Directors have any interest in Shares in the related corporations of the Company.
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TOP 10 PROPERTIES OF THE GROUP
Item
No.

PROPERTY

1

Sungai Dua
Treatment Plant

2

Telok Bahang

LOT NO.

LOCATION
(MUKIM,
BANDAR/
DAERAH)

TYPE

TENURE

LAND
AREA
(HECTARE)

NET BOOK
VALUE AS AT
31 DECEMBER
2017
RM’000

2394
2395

11, SPU
“

Treatment
Plant

99 years
“

1.441
13.149
14.590

177,301

695
PT1
15220
231
377
380
383
384
535
10001
381
389

1, DBD
2, DBD
“
“
“
“
“
“
“
“
“
“

Pumphouse
& Reservoir

In perpetuity
“
“
“
“
“
“
“
“
“
99 years
“

7.662
1.449
5.670
0.052
0.991
0.405
2.076
0.628
2.458
0.316
0.376
0.086
22.169

23,108

3

Bukit Indera
Muda Reservoir

927
928
1113
908
10001

3, SPT
“
21, SPT
3, SPT
“

Reservoir

99 years
“
“
In perpetuity
“

2.959
2.970
0.859
0.741
0.934
8.463

20,994

4

Jawi Reservoir

3235

5, SPS

Reservoir

In perpetuity

3.132

20,087

5

Rifle Range
Road
Workshop,
Stores & Office

2105
2137 & 2138
726

Sect. 2,
Georgetown,
DTL

Workshop,
Store,
Quarters &
Office

99 years
97 years
In perpetuity

2.066
0.859
0.304
3.229

18,703

6

Bukit Dumbar
Reservoir

729
PT16
658
659
661

Sect. 4,
Jelutong,
DTL
“
“

Reservoir

In perpetuity
“
“
“
“

5.623
9.101
2.430
0.289
0.930
18.373

18,534

7

Pulau Jerejak
Reservoir &
Pipeline

11255

Mk 13 DTL

Reservoir &
Pipeline

In perpetuity

3.539

18,410

8

Batu Ferringhi
Quarters,
Bungalow &
Treatment Plant

10018

17, DTL

Quarters &
Treatment
Plant

In perpetuity

9.188

14,352

9

Jawi Office &
Store

PT534

11, SPS

Office/Store

99 years

6.992

13,149

10

Batu Kawan
Reservoir

PT1452
PT1887

13, SPS
“

Reservoir

99 years
“

1.511
0.205
1.716

11,825
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the Eighteenth (18th) Annual General Meeting of PBA Holdings Bhd.
(“PBAHB” or the “Company”) will be held at the Hotel Jen, Magazine Road, 10300 Georgetown, Penang on
Thursday, 28 June 2018 at 10.00 a.m. for the following purposes: AGENDA
AS ORDINARY BUSINESS
1.

To receive the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31 December
2017 together with the Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon.
(Please refer to the Note 2)

2.

To approve the payment of a final single tier dividend of 2.25 sen per share in respect
of the financial year ended 31 December 2017.

Resolution 1

(Please refer to Note 4)
3.

To re-elect the following Directors who retire by rotation in accordance with Article
114 of the Company’s Constitution: a)
b)
c)
d)
e)

YB Tuan Phee Boon Poh
YB Tuan Lim Hock Seng
YB Dato’ Haji Abdul Malik Bin Abul Kassim
YBhg. Dato’ Agatha Foo Tet Sin
Puan Mary Geraldine Phipps

Resolution 2
Resolution 3
Resolution 4
Resolution 5
Resolution 6

(Please refer to Note 5)
4.

To re-appoint Messrs. Grant Thornton as Auditors of the Company until the
conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting and to authorise the Directors to fix
their remuneration.

Resolution 7

(Please refer to Note 6)
AS SPECIAL BUSINESS
5.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions, with or without
modifications: 5.1 Ordinary Resolution 1: Payment of benefits payable to the Directors up to an amount of
RM450,000.00 from 29 June 2018 until the next Annual General Meeting
of the Company
“THAT the benefits payable to the Directors up to an amount of RM450,000.00
for the period from 29 June 2018 until the next Annual General Meeting of the
Company pursuant to Section 230(1)(b) of the Companies Act, 2016, be and
is hereby approved.”

Resolution 8
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (CONT'D)

AS SPECIAL BUSINESS (CONT’D)
5.2 Ordinary Resolution 2: Proposed renewal of authority for the Company to undertake a share
buy-back of up to 10% of its issued and paid-up ordinary share capital
(“Proposed Renewal of Share Buy-Back Authority”)
“THAT, subject always to the Companies Act 2016 (“the Act”), the provisions
of the Company’s Constitution, the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa
Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”) and all other applicable laws,
guidelines, rules and regulations, the Company be and is hereby authorized, to
the fullest extent permitted by law to purchase such amount of ordinary shares
in the Company (“PBAHB Shares”) from time to time through Bursa Securities
upon such terms and conditions as the Directors may deem fit and expedient
in the interest of the Company provided that: i)

the aggregate number PBAHB Shares which may be purchased or held by
the Company shall not exceed ten per centum (10%) of the total number of
shares as quoted on Bursa Securities for the time being of the Company;

ii) the maximum fund to be allocated by the Company for the purpose of
purchasing the PBAHB Shares under the Proposed Renewal of Share BuyBack Authority shall not exceed the Company’s audited retained profits of
the Company for the time being;
iii) the authority conferred by this resolution shall commence immediately upon
passing of this ordinary resolution and shall continue to be in force until: (a) the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the
Company following the forthcoming AGM, at which time the authority
will lapse unless renewed by ordinary resolution, either unconditionally
or conditionally; or
(b) the expiration of the period within which the next AGM after the date is
required by law to be held; or
(c) revoked or varied by ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders in
a general meeting,
whichever occurs first, but shall not prejudice the completion of purchase(s)
by the Company of PBAHB Shares before the aforesaid expiry date and,
made in any event, in accordance with the provisions of the guidelines
issued by Bursa Securities and any prevailing laws, rules, regulations,
orders, guidelines and requirements issued by any relevant authorities;
iv) upon completion of the purchase(s) of the PBAHB Shares by the Company,
the Directors of the Company may decide either to cancel PBAHB Shares
so purchased or to retain PBAHB Shares so purchased as treasury shares
of which may be distributed as dividends to shareholders and/or resold
on the Bursa Securities and/or subsequently cancelled, or to retain part of
PBAHB Shares so purchased as treasury shares and cancel the remainder
and in any other manner as prescribed by the Act, the requirements of
the Bursa Securities and all other applicable laws, guidelines, rules and
regulations issued by other relevant authority for the time being in force;
AND THAT authority be and is hereby given to the Directors of the Company
to take all such steps as are necessary or expedient to implement, finalise,
complete or to give full effect to the above purchase(s) with full powers to assent
to any conditions, modifications, resolutions, variations and/or amendments (if
any) as may be required or imposed by the relevant authorities and with the
fullest power to do all such acts and things thereafter in accordance with the
Act, the provisions of the Constitution of the Company and the requirements
and/or guidelines of Bursa Securities and other relevant governmental and/or
regulatory authorities.

Resolution 9
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AS SPECIAL BUSINESS (CONT’D)
5.3 Mandate for YBhg. Dato’ Agatha Foo Tet Sin who has served as
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company for a cumulative
term of more than nine (9) years, to continue to act as Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company
“THAT subject to the passing of Ordinary Resolution 5, approval be and is hereby
given to YBhg. Dato’ Agatha Foo Tet Sin, who has served as Independent NonExecutive Director of the Company for a cumulative term of more than nine (9)
years to continue to act as Senior Independent Non-Executive Director of the
Company in compliance with the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance.”
6.

Resolution 10

To transact any other ordinary business of which due notice shall have been given.

NOTICE OF DIVIDEND ENTITLEMENT
NOTICE IS ALSO HEREBY GIVEN that subject to the approval of the shareholders of the Company at the
18th Annual General Meeting to be held on 28 June 2018, a final single tier dividend of 2.25 sen per share
in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2017 will be paid on 20 July 2018 to the shareholders
whose names appear in the Record of Depositors on 6 July 2018.
A depositor shall qualify for entitlement to the dividend only in respect of:(a)

Shares transferred into the depositor’s securities account before 4.00 p.m. on 6 July 2018 in respect
of ordinary transfers; and

(b)

Shares bought on the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad on a cum entitlement basis according to the
Rules of the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

By Order of the Board,
THUM SOOK FUN
(MIA 24701)
Company Secretary
Dated: 30 April 2018
Penang
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (CONT'D)

Notes: 1.

2.

Appointment of Proxy and/or Authorised Representative
(i)

For the purpose of determining a member who shall be entitled to attend, speak and vote at this 18th Annual
General Meeting, the Company shall be requesting Bursa Malaysia Depository Sdn Bhd in accordance
with Article 64 of the Constitution of the Company and Section 34(1) of the Securities Industry (Central
Depositories) Act 1991, to issue a General Meeting Record of Depositors as at 20 June 2018. Only a
depositor whose name appears on the Record of Depositors as at 20 June 2018 shall be entitled to attend,
speak and vote at the said meeting or appoint proxy to attend, speak and vote on his/her behalf.

(ii)

A member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint his or her proxy to attend and vote
in his or her stead. Where a member appoints two (2) or more proxies, the appointments shall be invalid
unless he or she specifies the proportions of his or her shareholdings to be represented by each proxy.

(iii)

A proxy may but need not to be a member of the Company. There shall be no restriction as to the qualification
of the proxy. Any proxy or duly authorised representative appointed to vote and attend instead of a member,
shall have the same right as the member to speak at the meeting.

(iv)

In the case of a corporate member, the instrument appointing a proxy must be either under its common seal
or under the hand of its officer or attorney duly authorised.

(v)

Where a member is an authorised nominee, as defined under the Securities Industry (Central Depositories)
Act 1991, it may appoint at least one (1) proxy but not more than two (2) proxies in respect of each securities
account it holds which is credited with ordinary shares of the Company. The appointment of two (2) proxies
in respect of any particular securities account shall be invalid unless the authorised nominee specifies the
proportion of its shareholding to be represented by each proxy.

(vi)

Where a member is an exempt authorised nominee (“EAN”) as defined under the Securities Industry (Central
Depositories) Act 1991 which holds ordinary shares in the Company for multiple beneficial owners in one
securities account (“omnibus account”), there is no limit to the number of proxies which the EAN may
appoint in respect of each omnibus account it holds.

(vii)

Any alteration to the instrument appointing a proxy must be initialed. The instrument appointing a proxy
must be deposited at the registered office of the Company at Level 32, KOMTAR, Jalan Penang, 10000
Georgetown, Pulau Pinang, not less than 48 hours before the time fixed for holding the Meeting or any
adjournment thereof.

Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2017
This Agenda item is meant for discussion only, as Section 340(1) of the Act does not require a formal approval for
the Audited Financial Statements from the shareholders. Therefore, this Agenda is not put forward for voting.

3.

Poll Voting
Pursuant to Paragraph 8.29(A)(1) of the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad
(“Listing Requirements”), all resolutions set out in this notice will be put to vote by way of a poll.

4.

Final dividend
With reference to Section 131 of the Act, a company may only make a distribution to the shareholders out of profits
of the Company available if the Company is solvent. On 26 February 2018, the Board had considered the amount
of dividend and decided to recommend the same for the shareholders’ approval.
The Directors of the Company are satisfied that the Company will be solvent as it will be able to pay its debts as
and when the debts become due within twelve (12) months immediately after the distribution is made on 20 July
2018 in accordance with the requirements under Section 132(2) and (3) of the Act.

5.

Re-election of Directors
Article 114 of the Company’s Constitution states that one-third (1/3) of the Directors shall retire from office and shall
be eligible for re-election at each AGM. All Directors shall retire from office at least once in each three (3) years but
shall be eligible for re-election.

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (CONT'D)

5.
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Re-election of Directors (cont’d)
In determining the eligibility of the Directors to stand for re-election at the forthcoming AGM 2018, the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) has considered the following: (i)
(ii)

Evaluation on the effectiveness of the Directors, the Board as a whole and all Board Committees; and
For Independent Non-Executive Directors (“INEDs”) only, the level of independence demonstrated by the
INEDs and their ability to act in the best interest of the Company.

In line with Practice 5.1 of the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance, the Board has conducted an assessment
of the Directors of the Company based on the relevant performance criteria which include the following: (i)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)

Board mix and composition;
Quality of information and decision making;
Boardroom activities;
Board’s relationship with the management;

The Board approved the NRC’s recommendation for the retiring Directors pursuant to Article 114 of the Company’s
Constitution, respectively. All the retiring Directors have consented to their re-election and abstained from
deliberation as well as decision on their own eligibility to stand for re-election at the relevant NRC and Board
meetings, where applicable.
6.

Re-appointment of Auditors
Pursuant to Section 271(3)(b) of the Act, shareholders shall appoint auditors who shall hold office until the
conclusion of the next AGM in year 2019. The current auditors have expressed their willingness to continue in
office and the Board of Directors has recommended their re-appointment. The shareholders shall consider this
Resolution 7 and to authorize the Board of Directors to determine their remuneration thereof.
The Board and Audit and Risk Management Committee have considered the re-appointment of Messrs. Grant
Thornton as auditors of the Company and collectively agreed that Messrs. Grant Thornton has met the relevant
criteria prescribed by Paragraph 15.21 of Listing Requirements.

7.

Explanatory Notes on Special Business
7.1

Payment of Benefits Payable to the Non-Executive Directors
Section 230(1) of the Act provides amongst others, that the fees of the Directors and any benefits payable
to the Directors of a listed company and its subsidiaries shall be approved at a general meeting.
Under Ordinary Resolution 8, the benefits payable to the Non-Executive Directors pursuant to Section
230(1)(b) of the Act have been reviewed by the Board of Directors of the Company, which recognises that
the benefits payable is in the best interest of the Company for the period from 29 June 2018 until the next
AGM. The benefits comprise of allowances, benefits in kind and the meeting allowance, which will only be
accorded based on actual attendance of meetings by the Directors.
In this respect, the Board wishes to seek shareholders’ approval for the benefits payable to the NonExecutive Directors for the period from 29 June 2018 until the next AGM, details of which are as follows: Description
Monthly fixed allowances

Chairman

Non-Executive Directors

Company

Subsidiaries

Company

Subsidiaries

RM500

RM3000

RM500 – RM1500

RM1000

RM300

RM300

RM300

RM300

RM300

RM300

RM300

RM300

Meeting allowance (per meeting)
a)

Board Member

b) Board Committee Members
Other Claimable Benefits

Business travel and
accommodation, communication,
medical coverage and other
claimable benefits

Business travel and
accommodation, communication,
medical coverage and other
claimable benefits

Payment of benefits to the Non-Executive Directors will be made by the Company and its subsidiary on
a monthly basis and/or as and when incurred if the proposed Resolution No. 8 has been passed at the
forthcoming 18th AGM.
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7.

Explanatory Notes on Special Business (cont’d)
7.2

Proposed Renewal of Share Buy-Back Authority
The proposed adoption of Resolution No. 9 is to renew the authority granted by the shareholders of the
Company at the 17th AGM held on 23 May 2017.
The proposed renewal of the Shares Buy Back Authority, if passed, will allow the Directors to buy-back and/
or hold up to a maximum of 10% of the issued shares capital of the Company. This authority will, unless
revoked or varied by the Company in a general meeting, expire at the conclusion of the next AGM of the
Company, or the expiration of period within which the next AGM is required by law to be held, whichever is
earlier.
For further information, please refer to the Statement to Shareholders dated 30 April 2018, which is
dispatched together with the Company’s Annual Report 2017.

7.3

Mandate for YBhg. Dato’ Agatha Foo Tet Sin who has served as Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company for a cumulative term of more than nine (9) years, to continue to act as
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company
Pursuant to Practice 4.2 of Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance, the Company is required to seek
shareholders’ approval if intends to retain an independent director who has served the Company for a
cumulative term of more than nine (9) years.
The proposed Resolution 10, if passed, will retain YBhg. Dato’ Agatha Foo Tet Sin who will attain 9 years
tenure at this 18th AGM, to continue to act as Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company.
Both the NRC and the Board have at the annual assessment assessed the independence of YBhg. Dato’
Agatha Foo Tet Sin. They were of the view that she remains objective and independent in expressing her
views and in participating in deliberation and decision making of the Board and Board Committees. Her
length of service on the Board does not in any way interfere with her exercise of independent judgement
and ability to act in the best interests of the Company. In addition, she has confirmed and declared in writing
that she is an Independent Director and has satisfied all the criteria of an Independent Director set out in
Paragraph 1.01 of the Listing Requirements.

8.

Personal Data Privacy
By submitting an instrument appointing a proxy(ies) and/or representative(s) to attend, speak and vote at the
forthcoming 18th AGM of the Company and/or any adjournment thereof, a member of the Company:
(i)

(ii)

(iii)

consents to the collection, use and disclosure of the member’s personal data by the Company (or its
agents) for the purpose of the processing and administration by the Company (or its agents) of proxies
and representatives appointed for the AGM (including any adjournment thereof) and the preparation and
compilation of the attendance lists, minutes and other documents relating to the AGM (including any
adjournment thereof), and in order for the Company (or its agents) to comply with any applicable laws, listing
rules, regulations and/or guidelines (collectively, the “Purposes”);
warrants that where the member discloses the personal data of the member’s proxy(ies) and/or
representative(s) to the Company (or its agents), the member has obtained the prior consent of such
proxy(ies) and/or representative(s) for the collection, use and disclosure by the Company (or its agents) of
the personal data of such proxy(ies) and/or representative(s) for the Purposes; and
agrees that the member will indemnify the Company in respect of any penalties, claims, demands, losses
and damages as a result of the member’s breach of warranty.
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STATEMENT ACCOMPANYING NOTICE
OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
(Pursuant to Paragraph 8.27(2) of the Listing Requirements)

As at the date of this notice, there are no individuals who are standing for election as Directors (excluding the
above Directors who are standing for re-election or re-appointment) at this forthcoming 18th AGM.
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ADMINISTRATIVE GUIDE

Eighteenth Annual General Meeting (“18th AGM”) of PBA Holdings Bhd (Company No. 515119-U)
Date
: 28 June 2018, Thursday
Time : 10.00 a.m.
Venue : Hotel Jen, Magazine Road, 10300 Georgetown, Penang.
Parking
1. Company will reimburse the parking fee of up to
RM6.00 upon presentation of the parking ticket for
reimbursement purpose.
Registration
1. Registration will start at 8.30 a.m. at Pinang Ballroom
Foyer (Level 3) and will end at a time as directed by the
Chairman of the meeting.
2. There will be signages to the registration area and you
will have to queue for registration.
3. Please produce your original Identity Card (“IC”) to the
registration personnel for verification.
4. After the verification, you are required to write your
name and sign the Attendance List for the meeting.
5. You will be given the following during the registration:
(1) a Wristband with bar code (“Wristband”); and
(2) a door gift collection coupon.
No person will be allowed to enter the meeting hall
without the Wristband.
There will be no replacement in the event that
you lose or misplace the door gift coupon.
6. No person will be allowed to register on behalf of
another person even with the original IC of that other
person.
7. The registration counter will only handle verification
of identity and registration. If you have any enquiry,
please proceed to the Helpdesk Enquiry Counter
located at the foyer of the meeting hall.
Food and Beverage
1. After registration, please proceed to CHA Room
(Level 2). Breakfast will be provided prior to the
commencement of the 18th AGM.
Entitlements to Attend, Speak and Vote
1. Only Depositor whose name appears on Record of
Depositors as at 20 June 2018 or the appointed proxy
holder/representative shall be entitled to attend, speak
and vote at the AGM.
Helpdesk
1. Please proceed to the helpdesk located at the foyer of
the meeting hall for any clarification or queries.
2. If a member want to terminate or revoke his/her proxy,
the member shall submit the notice of such revocation/
termination in writing to the Company before the
commencement of the AGM.
Proxy
1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting
is entitled to appoint his or her proxy to attend and
vote in his or her stead. Where a member appoints two
(2) or more proxies, the appointments shall be invalid
unless he or she specifies the proportions of his or her
shareholdings to be represented by each proxy.
2. If you wish to attend the AGM yourself, please do not
submit any Proxy Form. You will not be allowed to
attend the AGM together with a proxy appointed by
you.
3. If you have submitted your Proxy Form prior to the
AGM and subsequently decided to attend the AGM
yourself, please proceed to the helpdesk to revoke the
appointment of your proxy.
4. Please ensure that the original Proxy Form must be
deposited with the Company's registered office at Level
32, KOMTAR, Jalan Penang, 10000 Georgetown,
Pulau Pinang not less than 48 hours before the time
fixed for holding the Meeting or any adjournment
thereof.

Corporate Member
1. Any corporate member who wishes to appoint a
representative instead of a proxy to attend the AGM
should submit the original certificate of appointment
under the seal of the corporation to the office of the
Share Registrar before the AGM or to the registration
staff on the AGM day for the Company’s records.
Voting Procedure
1. The voting at the 18th AGM will be conducted on a poll
and the votes will be casted electronically.
2. The Company has appointed the Share Registrars,
Securities Services (Holdings) Sdn Bhd as Poll
Administrator to conduct the poll by way of electronic
voting (“e-voting”) and Commercial Quest Sdn Bhd to
verify the results of the poll.
3. The registration for attendance will be closed to
facilitate the commencement of the poll.
4. The presentation slides to guide the shareholders/
proxy to cast the votes electronically will be available
prior to the commencement of the poll.
5. When entering the meeting hall, a keypad voting
device will be given to each shareholder or proxy
holder based on the Wristband for e-voting purposes.
6. Each shareholder/proxy is invited to cast his/her vote
and the whole polling process for the 18th AGM is
expected to be concluded in 30 minutes. Thereafter,
18th AGM will resume for the declaration of results by
the Chairman.
7. The keypad voting device is not allowed to be brought
out of the meeting hall and is required to be returned
to the Company at the conclusion of the 18th AGM.
Shareholders/proxy holders who wish to leave the
meeting hall during the meeting, are required to return
the said device to the Company at the exit door of the
meeting hall.
Annual Report 2017
1. The Annual Report 2017 is available on PBA Holdings
Bhd’s website at www.pbahb.com.my or Bursa
Malaysia's website at www.bursamalaysia.com under
Company Announcements.
2. If you wish to request for a printed copy of the
Annual Report 2017, please forward your request by
completing the Request Form provided by us. We will
send to you by ordinary post within four market days
from the date of receipt of email or written request.
You may also collect the same from the registration
counters on the date of the 18th AGM.
Enquiry
1. If you have any enquiry prior to the meeting, please
contact the following person during office hours:
PBA Holdings Bhd (515119-U)
Level 32, KOMTAR
Jalan Penang,
10000 Georgetown, Pulau Pinang.
Telephone Number : 604-2006 700
Fax Number
: 604-2006 704
Contact person
: Dr. Mary Ann Harris,
Chief Financial Officer

Number of shares held
CDS Account no.

FORM OF PROXY
I/We

(Tel:)

NRIC/ Passport No.

(Full Name in Capital Letters)

of
(Full address in Capital Letters)

being a member/members of PBA HOLDINGS BHD. (“the Company”) hereby appoint the following person(s):First Proxy
Name / NRIC No.

Address

No. of shares or % of shares to be
presented

Address

No. of shares or % of shares to be
presented

Second Proxy
Name / NRIC No.

or failing him/her/them, the Chairman of the meeting, as *my/our proxy to vote in *my/our name(s) on *my/our behalf at the Eighteenth
(“18th”) Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Company to be held at Hotel Jen, Magazine Road, 10300 Georgetown, Penang on
Thursday, 28 June 2018 at 10.00 a.m. and at any adjournment thereof.
*My/our proxy is to vote on the resolutions referred to in the Notice of 18th AGM as indicated below: -

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
Resolution 1 To approve the declaration of a final single tier dividend
Resolution 2 To re-elect YB Tuan Phee Boon Poh as Director
Resolution 3 To re-elect YB Tuan Lim Hock Seng as Director
Resolution 4 To re-elect YB Dato’ Haji Abdul Malik Bin Abul Kassim as Director
Resolution 5 To re-elect YBhg. Dato’ Agatha Foo Tet Sin as Director
Resolution 6 To re-elect Puan Mary Geraldine Phipps as Director
Resolution 7 To re-appoint Messrs. Grant Thornton as auditors

First Proxy
For
Against

Second Proxy
For
Against

SPECIAL BUSINESS
Resolution 8 Ordinary Resolution – Payment of benefits payable to the Non-Executive
Directors under Section 230(1)(b) of the Companies Act 2016
Resolution 9 Ordinary Resolution – Proposed Renewal of Share Buy-Back Authority
Resolution 10 Mandate to retain YBhg. Dato’ Agatha Foo Tet Sin as an Independent NonExecutive Director of the Company
(Please indicate with an “X” in the appropriate box how you wish your proxy to vote. If no instruction is given, the proxy will vote or
abstain at his/her discretion).
* Strike out whichever not applicable.
Note : Please note that the short descriptions given above of the Resolutions to be passed do not in any way whatsoever reflect
the intent and purpose of the Resolutions. The short descriptions have been inserted for convenience only. Shareholders are
encouraged to refer to the Notice of Annual General Meeting for the full purpose and intent of the Resolutions to be passed.
Dated this _______ day of _____________________, 2018.
__________________________________________
Signature of Shareholder/Common Seal
Notes:
1. For the purpose of determining a member who shall be entitled to attend, speak and vote at this 18th Annual General Meeting, the Company shall be
requesting Bursa Malaysia Depository Sdn Bhd in accordance with Article 64 of the Constitution of the Company and Section 34(1) of the Securities
Industry (Central Depositories) Act 1991, to issue a General Meeting Record of Depositors as at 20 June 2018. Only a depositor whose name appears
on the Record of Depositors as at 20 June 2018 shall be entitled to attend, speak and vote at the said meeting or appoint proxy to attend, speak and
vote on his/her behalf.
2. A member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint his or her proxy to attend and vote in his or her stead. Where a member
appoints two (2) or more proxies, the appointments shall be invalid unless he or she specifies the proportions of his or her shareholdings to be
represented by each proxy.
3. A proxy may but need not to be a member of the Company. There shall be no restriction as to the qualification of the proxy. Any proxy or duly
authorised representative appointed to vote and attend instead of a member, shall have the same right as the member to speak at the meeting.
4. In the case of a corporate member, the instrument appointing a proxy must be either under its common seal or under the hand of its officer or attorney
duly authorised.
5. Where a member is an authorised nominee, as defined under the Securities Industry (Central Depositories) Act 1991, it may appoint at least one (1)
proxy but not more than two (2) proxies in respect of each securities account it holds which is credited with ordinary shares of the Company. The
appointment of two (2) proxies in respect of any particular securities account shall be invalid unless the authorised nominee specifies the proportion
of its shareholding to be represented by each proxy.
6. Where a member is an exempt authorised nominee (“EAN”) as defined under the Securities Industry (Central Depositories) Act 1991 which holds
ordinary shares in the Company for multiple beneficial owners in one securities account (“omnibus account”), there is no limit to the number of proxies
which the EAN may appoint in respect of each omnibus account it holds.
7. Any alteration to the instrument appointing a proxy must be initialed. The instrument appointing a proxy must be deposited at the registered office of
the Company at Level 32, KOMTAR, Jalan Penang, 10000 Georgetown, Pulau Pinang, not less than 48 hours before the time fixed for holding the
Meeting or any adjournment thereof.
8. Pursuant to Paragraph 8.29(A)(1) of the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad, all resolution set out in this notice will
be put to vote by way of a poll.

Please fold across the line and close

stamp

The Company Secretary

PBA Holdings Bhd. (515119-U)

Level 32, KOMTAR, Jalan Penang,
10000 Georgetown,
Pulau Pinang, Malaysia
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24-HOUR
CUSTOMER CALL CENTRE

04-255 8 255

Level 32, KOMTAR, Jalan Penang,
10000 Georgetown, Pulau Pinang.
PBAPP Call Centre (24 hours): 04-255 8 255
Email: customer@pba.com.my | Website: www.pba.com.my

